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DEFINITIONS
B=

“associate(s)” means  has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
[BEEA g BB AR T Z A ERRE
“Board” means  the board of Directors
[Exg] g EEg
“Bye-laws” means  the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company
NG = RARBEBERARE R AT
“China Oceanwide Group” means  China Oceanwide Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
[z ] g Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oceanwide
Holdings
FZEBARAT - AREBEMKINERARF - JNZEEROEZEM
JEE/NGT
“China Oceanwide means  China Oceanwide Holdings Group Co., Ltd.*, a company incorporated
Holdings Group” g in the PRC with limited liability and the controlling shareholder of
[FEZEZEREE ] Oceanwide Holdings
PEDZEEREBARAG - ARPREFMAZHERRIEF - T2/81%EK
B R AR R
“China Oceanwide Holdings” means  China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 715), a company
or “Company” g incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability whose Shares are listed on
[FZ 2R k[ AR A A the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

MZEBRBRABRMNAIR :716)  RRARETMRILNBERA
Al ERONEER AT ER EH

“Director(s)” means  the director(s) of the Company

(&%) g RARIESE

“Group” means  the Company and its subsidiaries

[R&EHE ] g EAN/NCIPS S =N

“HKS” means  Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

[ ¥ = B BENEEEYE

“Hong Kong” means  the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
(&% & A B BB RITT R

“IDR” means Indonesian Rupiah, the lawful currency of Indonesia
[ENEJE ] & HEeRE  HEesEEE

“Indonesia” means  the Republic of Indonesia

[ENFE] & EE e Fa g A

“Listing Rules” means  the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
[ EAR Al = B PrEE 7 AR A
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DEFINITIONS (Continued)

== (E)

“Model Code” means  the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

[1Z2E<F Al g Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FRAIM SRR E R BT AZE S ETIESFR HNEESTE

“Oceanwide Holdings” means  Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd.* (Stock Code: 000046), the indirect

BraisEzdidl g controlling shareholder of the Company and a joint stock company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability whose shares are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
CBERRMDAERQA(FHMRE : 000046) @ AR A #) HE ZE R R
R WARPEFMKIOROEREEAR - ERODRIESFZ S
i)

“PRC” means  the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual
[ EE ] g report, shall exclude Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan

HREARKNE - piAF@RMs - TREES  RBURFISIITHE k& &
“RMB” means  Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
N = AR - hBIEEEEY
“SFO” means  the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
[ 375 R BRE 15101 = Kong)
BH KRB GO (EBEGIEST1 &)
“Share(s)” means  ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
[ A&7 | RATRARGREESE0.10 TR E @K
“Shareholder(s)” means  holder(s) of the Shares
BEd i L SGESEEUN
“Stock Exchange” means  The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
[ B 22 iy | & BERBERGABRAR
“U.S.” means  United States of America
[ & ENBERE
“US$” means U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the U.S.
[Tl i ET o EBZEEE
“%” means  per cent.
[% ] i1 Bkt

=B HESN  RAEFIHRA - £THE

Unless otherwise specified, in this annual report, conversions of
US$ into HK$, RMB into HK$ and IDR into HK$ in this annual
report are based on the exchange rate of US$1.00 = HK$7.7526,
RMB1.00 = HK$1.1882 and IDR1.00 = HK$0.000531
respectively for illustration purpose only. No representation is
made that any amounts in US$, RMB, IDR or HK$ can be or
could have been converted at the relevant dates at the above
rate or any other rates at all.

*

for identification purpose only £tz 5)

M AR B R HIJE J& 528 B T3 5
B #1.00 3 7T 38 BB 7.7526 T + A R
1.007T 52 & #1.1882 T & HI/EJ& 1.00T
BB B0.000531 TC H PE F R E - (£
B2 o BET R EMZET - ALK - £
JEIE BB B A X B Al BEE AR B BF A
Bi1% |l E SR S 12 (F (] Bl fE SR A 12 o

FZERAERAT 2020 Fi
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (“China Oceanwide
Holdings” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), being the platform of the overseas core businesses
of its controlling shareholder, Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd.”
(“Oceanwide Holdings”, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000046)), has devoted
itself to the investment in and development of real estate
development projects in the first-tier cities of North America,
property investment projects in the core areas of Shanghai, the
People’s Republic of China (“China” or the “PRC”) and other
U.S. dollar or U.S. dollar concept assets since 2015. During
2020, the global economy was subject to volatility and the
unprecedented novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic. All
business segments of the Group were thus affected in different
extent. In respect of property investment, some tenants of the
two properties in Shanghai who were affected by the COVID-19
pandemic were offered rent concessions as advised by the PRC
government, which was offset by the increase in occupancy
rate. In respect of real estate development, the land used for
hotel and residential development on Oahu Island in Hawaii has
impairment of approximately HK$337.3 million after assessment
due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic to the local
tourism industry, while the construction progress of the real
estate development project in Los Angeles, the United States
of America (the “United States” or “U.S.”) was affected as the
macro-economic performance of the U.S. was affected by the
COVID-19 last year, coupled with the arbitration between the
general contractor and the Group and the general contractor’s
decision to terminate the construction contract, resulting in an
impairment of approximately HK$280.5 million due to project
valuation amount is insufficient to cover the costs incurred.
The project development was also temporarily suspended
from September 2020, resulting in an uncapitalized interest
of approximately HK$184.4 million. In respect of the finance
investment, exchange losses of approximately HK$42.7 million
were incurred from borrowings denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
due to RMB appreciation. These factors contributed to the
increase in consolidated loss attributable to shareholders for the
year 2020 by HK$868.6 million to HK$926.6 million.

ERW|E

FZERERAR(HIZER ] HIARD
Al BEREMNBARBAIALEE])E
BN AR AR R Z SRR AR (D B BR A A
(2] EROBRFINFBHZ S
AR RS : 000046)) BB IMZ L
BEE #2015 FRABKOREEL
BRIEEZ-—SWETHEMEMBIEL
REARLMBE(HEA] EEZORESE
MMEREBEMEMETIETHSE
EMREER - 2020F 2B EEHES
B ZERTATARB I EARE S A
((FEMADERBEFE  AEES@EE
BIRRBIZEITRAEBENTE - WERLKE
FE - LGRS E FE R B A AT
FoMBAZHEMARBEEENHEFIR
HESRE - B B E H RN
Big: FHERZEIE  ERURERZE
BLEA S B S R 3R A it i R T b
RBEZBEWIRESE KA BEED
FEEE3.373 B TLMRE - MR EFEE
FR(MERDEATHNEHEMNZEER =
FEZHEMA T EZEREBLERER M
FREOEEAREEMETHMME REK
IFEEARAMRTE R EEEHIEEN
ITREE BREEBFETEANEER
ERRAR - LABKEE & 4978 %6 2,805 18 7T B R
B BEBMEIRA2020F9 AHKE
LABREE £ RBEE AL F B 4B 1.844 (8
T BMSRERR S E - ARARBHE
SUARBEANERELRE K EBIBLOE
4270870 - EERES 2020 FE A K
REMLRAEEBE LA EK 8686 ETES
#.9.266 BT °
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
ERH|E (&)

The impact of the COVID-19 outbreak is expected to
persist in 2021. The U.S. and the Republic of Indonesia
(“Indonesia”), where the Group’s major projects are located,
are not expected to recover within a short period of time. The
financing environment of the Group has become more difficult,
resulting in an increase in the financing costs of the Group and
significant uncertainties as to when the economy will resume
normal. However, with the diversified investment and financing
management channels as well as outstanding professionals in the
free market of Hong Kong, the Group will strive to overcome the
difficulties and hope to improve our overall performance through
continuous active maintenance and optimization of existing
projects, continuous reform and enhancement, and ongoing
management of external risks and challenges, as well as fully
formulating strategies and plans to cope with the uncertainties
under economic downturn. Looking ahead, in response to market
changes, the Group will promote business growth and explore
new revenue stream by various means, dispose of unprofitable
projects or assets and acquire quality projects when appropriate,
which may increase new business growth points and improve
profitability in due course. Meanwhile, the Group will strive to
reduce costs so as to maintain sound liquidity and maximize
shareholders’ value in a sustainable manner.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
ER|E (&)

MACRO-ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The global investment market experienced the biggest crisis
since the collapse of Lehman Brothers in 2008 due to the global
spread of COVID-19 since the Chinese New Year in 2020. Due to
the poor market sentiment, the U.S. stock market recorded the
largest single-day decline since 1987, and the S&P 500 Volatility
Index hit a record high in 2020. Despite the gradual recovery
of the stock market in the second half of 2020, the U.S. gross
domestic product (“GDP”) has negative growth of 3.5% in 2020.
The U.S. economy recorded the worst performance in 74 years
since the Second World War in 1946 and the first contraction in
11 years since the global financial crisis in 2009. The market was
highly volatile and the US Federal Reserve suddenly cut interest
rates by 1.5% in total in early and mid-March 2020 to 0.25%,
and relaunched the quantitative easing program which has not
been relaxed so far, indicating the market’s concerns over the
impact of the pandemic on economic activities. In addition, the
slump in oil prices in the first half of 2020 has brought additional
uncertainties to the global market. In the short term, the global
market has been hit hard and fluctuated significantly. The World
Trade Organization forecasted that global trade would shrank by
approximately 9.2% in 2020. The International Monetary Fund
expected the global economy to contract by 3.5% in 2020.
Under the pandemic, many countries, including China and the
U.S., have adopted lockdown and quarantine policies, and
business activities have been significantly affected. Coupled
with the anti-racism protests in the U.S., the GDP of the U.S.
plunged by 32.9% in the second quarter of 2020, which was a
record high. The pandemic has not been under control so far.
The progress of the Group’s U.S. projects was thus delayed,
with total impairment of approximately HK$617.8 million and
uncapitalised interest of HK$184.4 million arising from the
suspension of operation in 2020. The key concerns of global
enterprises will be whether the economy can recover rapidly.

BREBRR

S

FEMAB020FEEHFHREL S
HoHMBEKEE EHERETS
KREB2008F EE N BWENRKAH
B ARMIERAKE  ERHRWEIT
B 1987 F LA 2R & A B8 A ki@ - 4% & 500
W RIEH R 2020 F 8| NESL Fm + 4t
FEIRZE TSR 2020 F T F F & B E &
i EE BN AERE(GDP]) 2020 %
FRANXKRILS%  KFAIT19465F =
Rt RAB RIS TAFERSZERR B
E2009F 2 e RMEBIIFURER
ZHE- MBRIRES  EEBTEER
MR2020F 3 ARSI AR EARMEIL1SE
B SFETHE025F  WEHMHE
ItER  E5NARME  BRZRSEHK
BEEBR BB RES o it - HEIRN
2020F ¥ F 2B THAEHMISEHE R
EEZTHEE - RmME  2WHEER
FTEITE  WEHRERE  ERESHHELS
TER| - 2020 F 2B HEMHEH9.2% 5
BRERE S ABTE 2020 F 2 RIS E 8
BEEMHE35% c BESHPEMERTAN
FEERHE M ERREECR -
EHRHNEAFE  HEAENEEEK
RIER AR REEE) S EB 2020 F & =
ZH) GDP &% 32.9% * 8 T B s8R bA SR H
5 EBESIARZE  AEEMERE
BB REE INEMEE - 2020 FEEER
BLHHBE 6178 EITLHETATH R K
BARAF B BE1.8441E T KELTRE
MREHBERIRDENSRIET -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
ERH|E (&)

China’s economy was mainly clouded by the uncertainties
caused by its trade disputes with the U.S.. During the beginning
of 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 in the PRC prompted the
Central Government to announce an extension of the Chinese
New Year holiday. The local governments implemented various
prevention and control measures, including restriction of public
activities, quarantine control measures for certain persons,
banning people from leaving home and closure of unnecessary
public area. The abovementioned measures severely affected
various economic activities and the commercial operation of
tenants. The leasing market was first hit under such severe
economic environment. The Group made rent concessions in
respect of the properties in the PRC at tenants’ request. As
the Group actively sought tenants to fill the vacant units in the
second half of 2020, the overall performance of the property
investment segment got back on track.

In response to the impact of the pandemic on the economy at
home and abroad, the PRC strengthened the counter-cyclical
regulation and reduced the cost burden of enterprises with
difficulties through more flexible monetary policies and proactive
fiscal policies, so as to help enterprises resume normal operation
as soon as possible, relieve employment pressure, promote
investment and consumption in the real economy, and hedge
the downward pressure of the economy. According to the data
published by the National Bureau of Statistics on 19 January
2021, the PRC GDP in the fourth quarter of 2020 increased by
6.5% year-on-year and 2.6% quarter-on-quarter, and the growth
for the entire year of 2020 increased by 2.3% as compared to
2019. The PRC economy has been shaken off the drag caused
by the pandemic, with its GDP increasing progressively in the
first three quarters, indicating a gradual economy recovery.
In general, the outbreak in the first half of 2020 has disrupted
the original development momentum of the economy, and the
economy was in the process of gradual recovery in the second
half of the year.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

FELEFZREXEEB FUNSI BT
HAEEMSE LRE - 3T AR 2020
FYEAHBEDYR  PREFEMLER
rfﬁiﬁﬂ BN E RSB ERE

BERGIAREE  HETATEE
ﬁfﬁ%%ﬂ%m&%ﬁAM&%%K%
ZAHTER - FAEERENESEL
BEBREFLPHEEEE  HEMHEL
BENKCERETHEEEE  A5EAM
FPERMpPBEYEELESBE - AR
KREEN2020F ¥ FREBSHMER U
BREEEBN  MERERREERES
BEBE

REEERNINEIBELBENZE - hEM
MPEHASNE  BAEMESNEK
R WREBRAE A BREEK - U
BERECENNABE  EPHEERR
METRESE  BRUEXESN  REZE
KEREMBEE  HHAKEETTESD -

20211 B19R ' BRHEABAMER
AR 2020 F M EEH B GDP AL IE K

6.5% ' R LI R2.6% ' 2020F 2 F i,
2019F K 2.3% ° EPI,Z&@E}%WEF
BETHREREMREE ZEZ GDP A
LLE R - B m%%@piﬁ@é% o EEEEM

T 2020 FHIEFREBHE AL TR
BREMNERLE  BEFLEHINERE

HHEEHIRIE -



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
ER|E (&)

In terms of monetary policy, Mr. Yi Gang, the Governor of the
People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC”), stated in a speech at the
2020 Financial Street Forum that PRC would be “adhered to
a sound monetary policy and firmly support market entities to
maintain stable employment”. In general, the monetary policy
of 2021 will be characterized by normalization. Economic repair
and monetary normalization remain the two clues to the macro
picture ahead. However, the pattern of easing in the first half
and becoming neutral in the second half of 2020 has been
formed. Since February 2020, the PBOC has adopted a series of
measures, such as interest rate cuts, reserve requirement ratio
cuts and special loan refinancing and rediscounting, to maintain
reasonable and sufficient liquidity in the banking system.
However, until the global pandemic being fully controlled,
economic recovery will be difficult and capital shortage will
continue. The management of the Group strictly adhered to the
principle of stability and continued to control risks, focusing on
the adequacy of capital in supporting the progress of its business
development. Through flexible alignment of various financing
channels, the Group enhanced its overseas liquidity consolidation
efforts and improved the efficiency of its cash utilisation in
order to allow its projects being developed in an orderly manner
according to sufficiency of funds, respective development plans
and corresponding timelines. With the unremitting efforts of
the management, the Group raised net proceeds from bank
and other loans of HK$1,699.9 million in 2020. At the same
time, the Group continued to receive financial support from
its controlling shareholder to support the liquidity needs of the
Group. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has loans in the
total amount of approximately HK$6,579.6 million from the
controlling shareholder (31 December 2019: HK$6,805.4 million)
and undrawn facilities of HK$5,824.5 million (31 December 2019:
HK$5,655.1 million).

Most projects under development and borrowings of the Group
are denominated in U.S. dollars and reported in Hong Kong
dollars. Due to the linked exchange rate system in Hong Kong,
U.S. dollars will not fluctuate significantly. During the vyear,
the financial performance of the Group’s overseas (outside
China) projects did not incur huge exchange losses due to the
weakening of U.S. dollars. However, some RMB-denominated
loans of the Group incurred exchange losses due to the
continuous strengthening of RMB in the second half of the year.

BEERAH - ARRITITRSHE 2020
CRERELNEFFRTBEER
MEEBR BEIHRMSEZEBER
| o BHRE - 2021 FHE BB N
BEEETL - LBEBEMNEEERED
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B ARIRITE2020F 2 A » HRELT —
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M RFEBRITERRBDUESERR - B
EREBRTERIE A LBEBEIUE
A KBERR  SEEEERTIE
fERA - BEESIRRE  ERETELN
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SEBAEIYESEREEE  HaE
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B B8 & SRIE R BB 16.9001B T - A%
E R R EESIIERE RO - B
SHAEBERBHE LT R N2020F
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
ERH|E (&)

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group is a conglomerate engaging in the businesses of
property investment, real estate development, energy and
strategic finance investments. Taking into account the existing
five real estate development projects in the U.S. and the energy
project in Indonesia, the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$25,129.2 million. Mainly located in prime
locations in major cities in the U.S., the above properties will
be developed into diversified residential, hotel and commercial
properties partly for sale and partly for holding in the future and
are expected to bring revenue and returns to the Group.

Due to the provision for impairment of approximately HK$337.3
million of one Hawaii Project, the provision for impairment of
approximately HK$280.5 million of the Los Angeles Project and
the uncapitalised interest of approximately HK$184.4 million
arising from the suspension of the projects, together with the
exchange losses of approximately HK$42.7 million incurred
during the year 2020, consolidated loss attributable to the
shareholders of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$926.6 million (2019: HK$58.0 million) while
basic loss per share was HK5.74 cents (2019: loss per share of
HKO0.36 cents).
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Revenue for the year amounted to HK$100.0 million (2019:
HK$113.0 million) and loss before interest expense and tax
(“LBIT”) for the year was HK$744.3 million (2019: HK$47.9
million). Excluding other net losses of HK$670.4 million' (2019:
net gains of HK$16.4 million), recurring LBIT for the year
was HK$73.9 million (2019: HK$64.3 million). The increase
in recurring LBIT was mainly due to a drop in revenue for the
year, and the increase in operating expense of the real estate
development segment recognized in the income statement
due to the suspension of the Los Angeles Project and the
management’s intention to focus resources on the development
of certain projects and the development of other projects has
been delayed, part of the expenses of those projects were not
capitalized. As a result, the Group incurred losses during the
year, which was partly offset by the decrease in administrative
expenses under the cost control initiatives adopted by the
management.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year 2020 (2019: Nil).

Other net losses (before tax and non-controlling shareholders’
interests) of HK$670.4 million in 2020 included provision for
expected credit losses of HK$10.7 million, net exchange losses
of HK$42.7 million (primarily arising from RMB borrowings due to
RMB appreciation during the year) and provision for impairment
for properties under development of HK$617.8 million; net off with
gains on redemption of convertible notes of HK$0.8 million. Other
net gains (before tax and non-controlling shareholders’ interests) of
HK$16.4 million in 2019 included net exchange gains of HK$10.2
million, net gains (before tax) on disposal of financial assets of
HK$4.1 million, fair value gains (before tax) on revaluation of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$2.5 million
and net off with the provision for expected credit losses of HK$0.4
million.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Property investment

During the year, the property investment segment continued to
contribute stable rental income and profits with the two office
and commercial properties in Shanghai. However, considering
the overall economic environment and the impact of COVID-19,
many tenants requested waiver of rent or applied for early
surrender of tenancy during the year. Coupled with the continual
influx of new supplies in the central business district of Puxi,
the occupancy rates of the two properties in Shanghai were
adversely affected. Looking forward to 2021, although the
economy of the PRC is expected to continue to recover, it will
still be subject to the pandemic and the progress of vaccine
development, which will have an impact on the future income
and occupancy rates of these two properties in Shanghai. As
at 31 December 2020, the average occupancy rate of the two
office and commercial properties in Shanghai was 95%.

Real estate development

Since the U.S. ranks first in the global economy, the Group
maintained its focus on the development of its U.S. real estate
projects. All of the projects are located in prime locations of
major cities in the U.S. and are positioned as mid-to-high-end
luxurious property complexes and new regional landmarks.
However, due to the impact of the global COVID-19 pandemic
and the changes in the macro-economic environment, the real
estate business of the Group in the U.S. has been adversely
affected to a larger extent. After taking into account the
influence of external factors and the judgment on the future
business development, in order to truly and accurately reflect
the asset value of the Company as at 31 December 2020, the
Group conducted assessment and impairment testing for each
project, and finally assessed that the difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount of one Hawaii Project and
the Los Angeles Project were approximately HK$337.3 million
and approximately HK$280.5 million, respectively, and the
total provision made and recorded in the income statement
accordingly was HK$617.8 million. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had five real estate development projects as follows:
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Los Angeles Project

The real estate development project in Los Angeles, the U.S. of
the Group is located in the core of Los Angeles near landmark
buildings such as Staples Center (home to the Lakers and
the Clippers), Microsoft Theater, Los Angeles Convention
Center and The Ritz Carlton. With considerable flow of people
and customers, it is an excellent site for the development of
a commercial complex. The project covers a total land area
of approximately 18,662 square meters (“sgm”) with a gross
floor area of approximately 138,249 sgm. It is planned to be
developed into a large scale mixed use urban commercial
complex with three upscale condominiums, a luxury five-star
hotel under the “Park Hyatt” brand, which is the topnotch hotel
brand under the Hyatt Group, a shopping mall with a gross
floor area of approximately 15,476 sgm, and the largest LED
signage panel on the west coast of the U.S.. The construction
of the project commenced in the second half of 2014. In 2018,
construction works of the project for all main structures were
completed. Curtain wall installation works for the main structures
were completed. Over 85% of electrical and mechanical work
was completed so far; and over 60% of interior drywalls in
buildings 2 and 3 were installed. Under the tremendous impact
of the global COVID-19 pandemic and the changes in the
macro-economic environment, the difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount of the Los Angeles Project as
of 31 December 2020 was assessed to be HK$280.5 million,
and provision was made and recorded in the income statement
accordingly. As at 31 December 2020, total funds invested in
the project were approximately US$1,166.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,042.6 million).
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New York Project

The Group’s real estate development project in New York
involves two parcels of land situated in the core area of the
Seaport District, Lower Manhattan, the U.S., and are adjacent
to the East River and close to the famous Brooklyn Bridge on
its east, looking toward New York Harbor and the Statue of
Liberty on its south, facing the World Trade Center on its west
and overlooking the skyline of the whole Manhattan Island on
its north. With a land area of approximately 1,367 sgm and a
development area of 75,975 sgm, the site is well-positioned
for hotel and residential development. Certification has been
obtained from the City Planning Commission of the City of
New York in respect of the project, which is planned to be
developed into a mixed use building comprising a high-end
hotel and residential units. The project is currently at the stage
of preliminary planning. As at 31 December 2020, total funds
invested in the project were approximately US$408.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,165.4 million).

Hawaii Projects

In 2020, the tourism industry in Hawaii was severely affected
by the COVID-19 pandemic, with both the number of visitors
and the amount of visitor spending recorded a decrease
of approximately 70% year-on-year, indicating exposure to
impairment risk of the Group’s land for hotel use located at
popular tourist areas on Oahu Island in Hawaii. In order to reflect
the true and accurate asset value of the land as at 31 December
2020, the valuer estimated the assessed value of the three
parcels of land based on the market approach with reference to
the transactions and costs of surrounding areas. The difference
between the assessed value and the carrying amount was
approximately HK$337.3 million, and provision was made and
recorded in the income statement accordingly.
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Ko Olina No. 2 Land

The Group’s Ko Olina No. 2 Land Real Estate Development
Project is located at several parcels of land in Ko Olina District
on Oahu Island in Hawaii, the U.S., one of the world’s most
popular tourist destinations. These land parcels are one of the
scarce sites available for hotel development on Oahu Island and
have rich natural resources and a beautiful coastline with a land
area of approximately 70,000 sgm and an estimated gross floor
area of approximately 92,292 sgm. It is planned to be developed
into two luxury branded hotels and residential condominiums.
The project is currently at the stage of preliminary planning. As
at 31 December 2020, total funds invested in the project were
approximately US$218.6 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,694.7 million).

Ko Olina No. 1 Land

The Group’s Ko Olina No. 1 Land Real Estate Development
Project is located at three parcels of land on Oahu Island in
Hawaii, the U.S. with an area of approximately 106,311 sgm. The
Group reached an agreement with the company of the “Atlantis”
brand in December 2016 to develop the land parcels into an
international luxury resort under the “Atlantis” brand, which
will comprise approximately 800 guestrooms, an aquarium,
restaurants, bars, spas, gyms, conference facilities, outdoor
pools and bars, etc. There will also be a residence component
providing approximately 524 luxury residences associated
with the “Atlantis” brand. The project is currently at the stage
of preliminary planning. As at 31 December 2020, total funds
invested in the project were approximately US$306.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,377.7 million).
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Kapolei

The Group’s Kapolei Real Estate Development Project is located
at several parcels of land on Oahu Island in Hawaii, the U.S. with
an area of approximately 2.05 million sgm. These parcels of land
are adjacent to the abovementioned land parcels in Ko Olina
District on Oahu Island and can create synergies and enhance
brand values. The land is planned to be used for the construction
of commercial and residential properties as well as community
facilities. The project is currently at the stage of preliminary
planning. As at 31 December 2020, total funds invested in the
project were approximately US$125.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$970.6 million).

Energy

The Group’s energy project involves two coal-fired steam power
plants (each with a net capacity of 150 megawatts) in the Medan
industrial zone of Indonesia (the “Medan Project”). The project
company for the Medan Project, PT. Mabar Elektrindo, has
entered into a power purchase agreement with a local state-
owned power grid company, PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara
(Persero). The structural construction for the Medan Project is
basically completed and the project is currently at the installation
stage. As at 31 December 2020, total funds invested in the
Medan Project were approximately US$364.5 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,825.8 million).

Financial investment and others

As the stock market continued to be volatile, most of the bonds
and other investments were disposed of by the Group during
previous years. As set out in Note 38(b) to consolidated financial
statements in this report, the shares of China Huiyuan Juice
Group Limited (“Huiyuan Juice”) held by the Group during the
year were delisted in January 2021 and thus the Group has
directly accounted for the loss based on the difference between
the relevant fair value of HK$96.6 million and book value in
equity.
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OUTLOOK

The sudden outbreak of COVID-19 has caused a huge impact
on the global political and economic environment, and China
Oceanwide Holdings has encountered unprecedented difficulties.
Facing the complicated and ever-changing development
environment both at home and abroad as well as the
uncertainties of economic downturn, the management of China
Oceanwide Holdings will pay close attention to the development
of the pandemic, and also the impact of the changes in the
PRC’s macro-economy and policies as well as the global
economic and political environment and market environment and
competitive landscape on the Group. We will work hard together,
overcome difficulties and forge ahead, continue to consolidate
its operating strategies and streamline its asset management
policy, so as to maintain the sustainable long-term growth of
the Group. The management will focus primarily on liquidity
management and take the maintenance of sufficient capital
reserve as our first priority. Funds will be raised through disposal
of non-core businesses, shareholder or third party loans, debt
and equity financing alternatives as well as various refinancing.
We will adjust the development progress of various projects,
optimize capital structure and management of projects in order
to fully control various capital and operation risks that come
with business growth. Meanwhile, we will place further efforts on
project operation and management, and strictly control capital
expenditures and various costs.
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In relation to the termination of the construction contract by
the general contractor currently faced by the Los Angeles
Project and the ongoing legal proceedings, the Company has
engaged lawyers to defend in the relevant legal proceedings,
and worked closely with the official solicitors in the U.S. and
Hong Kong. In addition, the Group is making continuous efforts
to explore opportunities to resolve the matter by other means,
including borrowing construction loans, seeking support from
the intermediate holding company to obtain funds to pay the
general contractor. In particular, the Group is in the process of
negotiating with potential lenders regarding construction loans.
If construction loans are successfully obtained, part of the loans
will be used for the settlement of the amount due under the
Company’s parent’s guarantee. The Group is also committed
to facilitating the progress of due diligence of the construction
loans, while negotiating with a potential new general contractor
on the matters of engagement with a view to completing the Los
Angeles Project soon.

On the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will continue to
be cautious and will extensively identify investment and business
development opportunities for efficient and stable growth. The
Group will also actively seek opportunities and make effective
use of its available resources and viable business opportunities
to seek development and optimize its asset allocation, and timely
dispose of unprofitable assets in exchange for more profitable
business in the short term, with an aim to improve profitability
and lay a solid foundation for its future development.

With the long-term development plan and leveraging on
Oceanwide Holdings’ experienced management team, the Group
will strive to develop each of its existing core projects and
believe that with the implementation of stringent cost and risk
control, China Oceanwide Holdings will be able to strengthen its
financial position by improving its operational flexibility to mitigate
the adverse impact on its business operations arising from the
COVID-19 pandemic and global economic recession.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BRIRIZHIAR B TP E R AR B R
RERKRUENMEREETHRERZRERF &
SECEFEMABRAEEREFETR
MoV EXBREENRREMEEZS
o dboh - REBIETEH B HIRREE
Hn A (BREEER  SKPEER
NA ARG B & 7 A B 7 30 87
REH - LER  ARBEEEEGEERA
M EEEREE WIBNEFSREER
o HR o RFEARBEREAR
AN R RERMER ZFE - NEER
BRI HEZEERERAETNEE - A
FHEEBEFEAEBENBEIEE K
KEHTRBIZHIAR -

AEBESEEATMWNART @ #EZE
FEZMWYEREREBIRES R
EBMROSEMNBEN  AEETExX
BEHRKE  LEMFBEZEERMA
TR SRER - BLEEMR  EF
BBRERELOHNEE - BEEHA
FRAMUENER - AMRTTBAEES - &
MIRERESH - RAKRNERETEREE

i -

BRERENERRE - E2EBERER
LENEEEN  AEBBBNBREHR
BORE - BEEERBITERENEAR
RERBIEST - Pz EREEE BN EER
LT BEMBAORN - BIRERT
F R M B RREETORPTE L SRR Em
ERETRFE



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
ER|E (&)

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all of our staff for their hard work and dedication.
| would also like to thank all of our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their continuous support.

HAN Xiaosheng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has developed into a conglomerate with synergetic
development in four major segments, namely “Property
Investment”, “Real Estate Development”, “Energy” and “Finance
Investment and Others”, forming a sound business development
strategy. The management actively procured financing through
various financing channels according to its capital requirements.
All segments have taken shape. However, in 2020, under the
volatility of the global economy and the unprecedented COVID-19
pandemic, all business segments of the Group were affected to
different extent. For property investment, some tenants of the
two properties in Shanghai who were affected by the COVID-19
pandemic were offered rent concessions as suggested by the
PRC government, which was offset by the increase in occupancy
rate. In respect of real estate development, land used for hotel
and residential development on Oahu Island in Hawaii have
incurred impairment of HK$337.3 million after assessment due
to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic to the local tourism
industry, while the construction progress of the real estate
development project in Los Angeles, the U.S. was affected
and the macro-economic performance was affected by the
COVID-19 last year, coupled with the arbitration between the
general contractor and the Group and its decision to terminate
the construction contract, resulting in provision for impairment
of approximately HK$280.5 million and uncapitalized interest
of approximately HK$184.4 million. In respect of financing
investment, exchange losses of approximately HK$42.7 million
were incurred from borrowings denominated in RMB due to the
RMB appreciation. While preserving business development and
exploring new revenue stream, the Group will continue to follow
prudent financial management principles, maintain sound liquidity
and implement cost control on capital expenditure and operating
expenses. The Group will also actively seek opportunities to
optimize its asset portfolio and dispose of non-profitable assets
in due course in return for more profitable business in the short
term, so as to enhance profitability and increase shareholders’
return.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Property Investment

In 2020, revenue generated from the two office and commercial
properties in Shanghai under the property investment segment
amounted to HK$93.7 million (2019: HK$88.5 million). Earnings
before interest expense and tax (“EBIT”) was HK$73.0 million,
representing an increase of 9% from HK$67.0 million for the
corresponding period of 2019. The increase in both revenue and
EBIT was mainly attributable to the increase in occupancy rates.
As at 31 December 2020, the average occupancy rate of these
two properties was approximately 95%. In view of the continual
influx of new supplies in the central business district of Puxi,
Shanghai, although the PRC economy is expected to continue
to recover, it is still subject to the pandemic and the progress
of vaccine development. It is expected that the performance of
the property investment segment is expected to remain under
pressure. The management will cope with challenges in the
market and strive to maintain the occupancy rates by adjusting
rent-free periods and raising agency commissions.

Real estate development

With the unique and strategic foresights of the management, the
real estate development segment has acquired several quality
projects in the U.S. in the early stage and is now in possession
of over 2.24 million sgm of land in prime locations of various
major cities in the U.S. for development. The total asset value
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEE W& DM (&)

of the Group’s projects in the U.S. has reached HK$20,193.9 Bor Bt @& A222528 F t(8
million with a total investment of US$2,225.2 million (equivalent 1725111B7T) » TRR/RBZEBNERHE
to HK$17,251.1 million). A brief description of each project is set o

out in the following table:

Fund
invested as at
31 December

2020
12020 F
Project name Site area 12A31H Current project status Project development
HEAR THER ERAES BHARKER HEER

(sgm)  (US$’ milion)
(EAXK) (B&%n)

Los Angeles Project 18,662 1,166.4  Construction works for all main Upscale condominiums, a luxury five-

BEWIER structures were completed; curtain star hotel under the “Park Hyatt”
wall installation works for the main brand, a large-scale shopping mall
structures were completed; over and the largest LED signage panel
85% of electrical and mechanical on the west coast of the U.S.

controls and end devices of the tower BHAE « UIAKERE | REHEHT
building were completed; 70% of the ERRERE - KAUEDESREE
installation of the project’s overall AESARLED E5HE
electrical and mechanical systems
were completed; and over 60% of
interior drywalls in buildings 2 and 3
were installed.
XA EREBIRNE  BREE
SMERIETRE  HETREAIEED
DEEEEEMKHRED TR BB
85% ' A BBEERL T 70%H)
ZE 2 3HBEARERIE K
B 60%

New York Project 1,367 408.3 At the stage of preliminary planning. A mixed use complex comprising
ARAEE FRRBTERBEIRER - high-end hotel and residential units

BERmEENETNESRERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEE W& oM (&)

Fund
invested as at
31 December

2020
72020
Project name Site area 12A31H Current project status Project development
BEEH THEE ERAESL BEARER BRER
(sqm) (US$’ million)
(FAK) (B8%n)
Hawaii Ko Olina No. 2 Land 70,000 218.6 At the stage of preliminary planning. Two luxury branded hotels and
Project BRAIEEZIRER - residential condominiums
ERRRIHB = 50IER HRAEERBEEERAE
Hawaii Ko Olina No. 1 Land 106,311 306.7 At the stage of preliminary planning. An international luxury resort under
Project BRAEEZIREE the “Atlantis” brand with luxury
BB RN —RHIEE residences and a hotel
B R A Atlantis | (SR B HT) migan
ANERZZEERN  B2FELT
KB
Hawaii Kapolei Project 2,045,481 125.2 At the stage of preliminary planning. Commercial, residential properties and

ERRFHERER

BRRATHAEBIRE -

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

community facilities

BE EEREERR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEE W& DM (&)

As certain of the above projects are currently not in operation
and are still in the preliminary stage of development, loss before
interest expense and tax (“LBIT”) of the real estate development
segment amounted to HK$706.3 million (2019: HK$74.7 million).
The increase in losses was mainly due to the provision for
impairment of HK$337.3 million incurred by one Hawaii Project
with reference to the market approach and the provision for
impairment of approximately HK$280.5 million for the Los
Angeles Project. In the impairment testing at the end of 2020,
the Company used the same method as in previous years to
evaluate all real estate development projects, and the recoverable
amount of each business asset group was determined based on
the market approach and the present value of estimated future
cash flows. In particular, the New York Project has not been
impaired by reference to the market approach. However, Hawaii
is severely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, with both the
number of visitors and the amount of visitor spending recorded
a decrease of approximately 70% year-on-year, and the retalil
industry shrank while unemployment rate increased in Hawaii.
Given that the economic system which relies on the tourism
industry can hardly recover in short term, the Group’s land for
hotel use located at popular tourist areas on Oahu Island in
Hawaii is exposed to impairment risk. In order to reflect the true
and accurate asset value of the land as at 31 December 2020,
the valuer estimated the assessed value of the Hawaii land based
on the market approach with reference to the transactions and
costs of surrounding areas. The difference between the assessed
value and the carrying amount was approximately HK$337.3
million, and provision for impairment was made and recorded in
the income statement accordingly. Meanwhile, due to termination
of construction contract by the general contractor in September
2020, the expected completion date of the Los Angeles Project
in the cash flow model is delayed. In addition, the discount
rate adopted in the model is increased after considering the
changes in the macro-economic environment, a provision for
impairment of HK$280.5 million was calculated accordingly.
The project suspension also resulted in an uncapitalised interest
of approximately HK$184.4 million. Excluding the impairment
losses of the Hawaii and Los Angeles Projects, LBIT increased to
HK$88.5 million in 2020 as compared with HK$74.7 million in the
corresponding period of 2019. The increase in losses was mainly
due to the fact that certain expenses of the Los Angeles Project
could not be capitalized during suspension.
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B MARIREE  BEHERERRR
MEAMETHRMEAEE(HE R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEER W RN ()

Energy

In 2015, the Group acquired projects to develop two coal-fired
steam power plants (each with a net capacity of 150 megawatts)
in the Medan industrial zone of Indonesia (the “Medan Project”).
The project company for the Medan Project has entered into a
power purchase agreement with a local state-owned power grid
company, PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero). The structural
construction for the Medan Project is basically completed and
the project is now at the installation stage. Upon commencement
of operation, the Medan Project is expected to contribute a
stable revenue stream to the Group. As at 31 December 2020,
total funds invested in the Medan Project were approximately
US$364.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,825.8
million).

As the Medan Project is currently at the stage of installation
works, LBIT of the energy segment for the year was HK$42.4
million (2019: HK$34.8 million). The increase in LBIT was mainly
attributable to the increase in provision for expected credit
losses on amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of the
Medan Project of approximately HK$9.8 million due to increase
in forward looking rate and expected delay in loan repayment.

Financial investments and others

In 2020, revenue from the finance investment and others
segment was HK$6.3 million, representing a decrease of 74%
as compared to HK$24.6 million in 2019. LBIT for the year
was HK$68.6 million (2019: HK$5.4 million). The increase in
losses was mainly due to the exchange losses of approximately
HK$43.0 million arising from RMB denominated loans as a
result of RMB appreciation. Excluding other net losses for 2020
and other net gains for 2019, LBIT was HK$27.1 million (2019:
HK$21.8 million). The increase in losses was mainly due to the
decrease in dividend and interest income, which was partially
offset by the decrease in operating expenses due to the strict
cost control of the segment.
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I\/IANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEE W& DM (&)

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the Group’s listed
equity securities was HK$2.4 million (31 December 2019: fair
value of non-publicly traded listed equity securities amounted to
HK$96.6 million). The decrease was mainly due to the losses of
HK$96.6 million arising from the difference between the fair value
and the carrying amount of the Group’s shares in Huiyuan Juice
held during the year, which was delisted in January 2021, was
directly accounted for in equity.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY OF THE
GROUP

Looking ahead, the Group will gradually carry out asset
optimization. On the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will
continue to be cautious and will extensively identify investment
and business development opportunities for efficient and stable
growth. The Group will also actively seek opportunities to
optimize its asset allocation, and timely dispose of unprofitable
or low-return assets in exchange for more profitable business in
the short term, with an aim to improve profitability and lay a solid
foundation for its future development.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Fund management

The primary treasury and funding policies of the Group focus on
liquidity management to achieve an optimum level of liquidity,
while funding subsidiary operations in a cost-efficient manner.
The management closely monitors the liquidity position of the
Group to ensure the liquidity structure, comprising assets,
liabilities and commitments, of the Group can meet its funding
requirements. The Group’s finance department will source
funding by borrowings and issuance of debts, convertible notes
and new shares when necessary. Operating as a centralized
service, the finance department manages the Group’s funding
needs and monitors financial risks, such as those relating to
interest and foreign exchange rates, as well as counterparties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not
enter into any interest or currency swaps or other financial
derivative transactions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEER W RN ()

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except for cash and bank deposits, loans receivables,
note receivables, lease liabilities, bank and other loans, amount
due to an intermediate holding company, amount due to a fellow
subsidiary and convertible notes. The interest rates for the loans
receivables, note receivables, amount due to an intermediate
holding company, amount due to a fellow subsidiary, certain
other loans and convertible notes are fixed. The interest rate risk
of the Group mainly arises from floating-rate bank borrowings
resulting in the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk to the
Group. The management controls our interest rate risk by
reviewing fixed-rate and floating-rate borrowings. During the
reporting period, the Group considered that there was no need
to use interest rate swaps to hedge our exposure to interest rate
risks.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the U.S.
dollar (“US$”), Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and RMB as the
revenue and operating costs of the Group are denominated in
these currencies. The Group is also exposed to other currency
movements, primarily in terms of investments in the U.S. and
Indonesia, bank deposits, loans, note and interest receivables,
certain other loans and amount due to an intermediate holding
company denominated in US$. Foreign exchange risk arises
from currency exchange transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group
has not entered into any derivative instruments to hedge its
foreign exchange exposures. The Group’s management manages
this risk by closely monitoring the exchange rate movement and
changes in market conditions that may have a significant impact
on the operations and financial performance.

Market price risk

The Group’s main market price risk exposures relate to its
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and through
other comprehensive income, which mainly comprise equity
securities. The Group closely monitors the price movement and
changes in market conditions that may have an impact on the
value of these financial assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEE W& DM (&)

Credit risk

Surplus of the Group’s capital is managed in a prudent manner,
usually in the form of bank deposits with financial institutions
with good credit ratings. The senior management of the Group
regularly monitors price movements of financial institutions
and its counterparties and credit ratings and sets limits for the
total amount of credit for each of its counterparties, in order to
manage and control default and credit risks.

As at 31 December 2020, the other receivables of the Group
were mainly (i) loans and interest receivables made to the non-
controlling shareholder of the energy project to develop two coal-
fired steam power plants (with a net capacity of 150 megawatt
each) in the Medan industrial zone of Indonesia. As at the date of
this report, the Group is still negotiating with the non-controlling
shareholders on the renewal of the loan agreement, and the
Group is working to reach an agreement with the non-controlling
shareholders on the renewal of the loan agreement.

Liquidity and Working Capital

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total unsecured and
unrestricted cash, liquid funds and listed investments amounted
to HK$37.6 million (2019: HK$70.4 million), 38.4%, 35.2%
and 25.7% (2019: 24.8%, 65.2% and 9.6%) of which were
denominated in US$, HK$ and RMB respectively, and the
remainder were denominated in various other currencies.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and other loans
(including convertible notes) of HK$6,590.9 million (2019:
HK$5,363.1 million), of which HK$4,005.5 million (2019:
HK$1,609.9 million) were fixed-rate borrowings repayable
within one year; HK$1,570.1 million (31 December 2019: nil)
were floating-rate borrowings repayable in one year, HK$302.4
million (2019: nil) were fixed-rate borrowings repayable in one
to two years, nil (2019: HK$1,276.0 million) were floating-rate
borrowings repayable in two to five years; and HK$712.9 million
(2019: HK$2,477.2 million) were fixed-rate borrowings repayable
in two to five years. As at 31 December 2020, the Group also
had an amount due to an intermediate holding company of
HK$6,579.6 million (2019: HK$6,805.4 million) which was fixed-
rate borrowings repayable in one to two years. The Group’s
gearing ratio (being calculated as total borrowings divided by
total equity) as at 31 December 2020 was 69.2% (2019: 50.8%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEER W RN ()

The Group will also continue to seek additional bank and other
borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing financial
obligations and future operating and capital expenditures, and
consider seeking other alternative financing, such as proceeds of
disposal of assets, in order to improve the operating cash inflow
of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group will also seek additional
financial support from China Oceanwide Group Limited, an
intermediate holding company, such as obtaining additional
financial support, for any additional financial needs, if any.

Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash used in
operating activities amounted to HK$311.0 million (2019:
HK$448.9 million) and net cash generated from investing
activities amounted to HK$73.7 million (2019: net cash used
of HK$333.9 million). The increase in net cash generated from
investing activities was mainly due to the cash received from
the early redemption of the invested notes of HK$168.1 million
in 2020. Net cash generated from financing activities during the
year amounted to HK$201.5 million (2019: HK$217.5 million),
which mainly included borrowings from banks.

Charges and contingent liabilities

The details of the pledged assets and contingent liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out in Notes 31
and 32 to the consolidated financial statements in this report
respectively.

Apart from Notes 31 and 32, the Group had not created any
other guarantee or other contingent liabilities during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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I\/IANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 83 employees
(2019: 86). Total staff remuneration costs (including the
Directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$68.8 million (2019: HK$90.5 million).

The Group ensures that the remuneration packages of its
employees are competitive and that individual performance is
rewarded according to the remuneration management policy
the Group. The remuneration packages of the employees are
reviewed annually.

For details in relation to the share option scheme of the
Company, please refer to pages 48 to 50 of this annual report.

PAST PERFORMANCE AND FORWARD-
LOOKING STATEMENTS

The performance and the results of operations of the Group
contained in this annual report are historical in nature, and past
performance is not able to provide guarantee for the future
results of the Group. Any forward-looking statements and
opinions which may be contained in this annual report are based
on current plans, estimates and projections, and therefore involve
risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from
the expectations discussed in such forward-looking statements
and opinions. The Group, the Directors, and the employees
and agents of the Group assume (a) no obligation to correct or
update the forward-looking statements or opinions contained in
this annual report; and (b) no liability in the event that any of the
forward-looking statements or opinions do not materialize or turn
out to be incorrect.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREBEEGRE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HAN Xiaosheng, aged 64, has been an executive Director
since November 2014 and a chairman and chief executive officer
of the Board since December 2014. Mr. HAN is also a chairman
of the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and
a member of the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) under the Board as well as a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. He is a senior accountant in the
PRC and an executive director and a chairman of China Tonghai
International Financial Limited (“China Tonghai International
Financial”, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 952)). Mr. HAN previously served as an executive director,
a chief executive officer of Oceanwide Holdings (from May 2015
to March 2019) and a chairman of the supervisory committee
of Oceanwide Holdings (from March 2019 to May 2020). He
obtained a Master’s degree in economics from Renmin University
of China in July 1996 and a Doctor’s degree in management
science from Huazhong University of Science and Technology in
June 2018.

Mr. LIU Hongwei, aged 54, has been an executive Director
since November 2014 and a deputy chairman of the Board since
January 2020. Mr. LIU is also a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company. He is currently a supervisor of Oceanwide
Holdings and an non-executive director of CuDECO Limited,
whose shares are previously listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange (Stock Code: CDU), delisted in February 2020. He
is also an executive director of China Tonghai International
Financial. Mr. LIU obtained a Bachelor’s degree in engineering
from Dalian Ocean University in July 1989 and a Master’s degree
in management from Massey University in New Zealand in April
2006.

Mr. LIU Bing, aged 63, has been an executive Director since
November 2014. Mr. LIU is also a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company. He is currently a non-executive director of
China Tonghai International Financial. He was previously a vice
chairman of Minsheng Holdings Co., Ltd.,* (“Minsheng Holdings”)
whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 000416) (from 2017 to 2020). Mr. LIU obtained his
Master’'s degree in business administration from Sacred Heart
University in the U.S. in August 1989.
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Mr. ZHANG Xifang, aged 48, has been an executive Director
since August 2017. Mr. ZHANG is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. He is currently a vice chairman
and chief executive officer of Oceanwide Holdings, an executive
director of China Tonghai International Financial, and a non-
executive director of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd., whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 9668).
He served as a head of the operation division of the finance
and asset management department and a deputy director of
the finance and asset management department of State Grid
Corporation of China, a deputy general manager of State Grid
Asset Management Co., Ltd.*, a director and a deputy general
manager of State Grid Yingda International Holdings Group Co.,
Ltd.*, a general manager of Yingda Taihe Property Insurance Co.,
Ltd.* and a chairman of Yingda Insurance Asset Management
Co., Ltd.*. Mr. ZHANG studied the undergraduate programme of
accounting at Central University of Finance and Economics from
September 1991 to June 1995 and obtained a Bachelor’s degree
of economics. He also studied the programme of business
administration at Tsinghua University School of Economics and
Management from March 2006 to January 2009 and received a
Master’s degree in business administration.

Mr. LIU Guosheng, aged 52, has been an executive Director
since November 2014. Mr. LIU is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. He is a senior accountant in the
PRC. Mr. LIU is currently a chief financial officer of Oceanwide
Holdings. Mr. LIU obtained a Bachelor’s degree in economics
from Hangzhou Dianzi University in July 1991 and a Master’s
degree in economics from Wuhan University in December 2008.

Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHAO Yingwei, aged 50, has been a non-executive
Director since November 2014. Mr. ZHAO is also a member of
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) under the Board.
He is a senior accountant in the PRC and is currently a deputy
chairman of the supervisory committee of Oceanwide Holdings,
the chairman of the supervisory committee of Minsheng Holdings
and a non-executive director of China Tonghai International
Financial. Mr. ZHAO previously served as an executive director
of Oceanwide Holdings. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
economics from Renmin University of China in January 1997
and a Master’s degree in engineering from Beihang University in
January 2013.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Jipeng, aged 65, has been an independent
nonexecutive Director since November 2014. He is also
a chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. LIU is a senior economist and
certified public accountant in the PRC. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of China Minsheng Banking
Corp., Ltd., whose shares are dually listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1988) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600016), and China Tonghai International Financial;
an independent director of Chongging Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd., whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 000625), Valiant Co., Ltd., whose shares are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002643), and
CECEP Guozhen Environmental Protection Technology Co.,
Ltd., whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 300388). He previously served as an independent
director of Zhongjin Gold Corp., Ltd., whose shares are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600489) (from
2014 to 2021) and of China-Singapore Suzhou Industrial Park
Development Group Co., Ltd., whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601512) (from 2014
to 2020) and an independent non-executive director of Wanda
Hotel Development Company Limited, whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 169) (from 2013 to 2019).
Mr. LIU obtained a Bachelor’s degree in economics from Capital
University of Economics and Business in July 1983 and a
Master’s degree in economics from Graduate School of Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences in July 1986.
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Mr. YAN Fashan, aged 69, has been an independent non-
executive Director since November 2014. Mr. YAN is also a
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee. He is currently a professor in the
school of economics at Fudan University and an independent
director of Pengqi Technology Development Co., Ltd.*, whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
600614). He obtained a Master’'s degree in economics from
Fudan University in 1981 and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in
economics from Fudan University in June 1998.

Mr. LO Wa Kei Roy, aged 49, has been an independent non-
executive Director since November 2014. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. LO is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
fellow of the CPA Australia and an associate of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. LO is currently
an independent non-executive director of several companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, including China
Zhongwang Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1333), Xinming
China Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2699), China Tonghai
International Financial, Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1718) and G-Resources Group Limited (Stock Code:
1051). He was previously an independent non-executive director
of Sun Hing Vision Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 125)
(from 1999 to 2021) and Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company
Limited (Stock Code: 1335) (from 2012 to 2020). He also
serves as a managing director of Shinewing (HK) CPA Limited,
a member of the Shanghai Pudong New Area Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and the
executive vice-president and an executive council member of the
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association.
Mr. LO obtained a Bachelor’s degree in business administration
from University of Hong Kong in November 1993 and a Master’s
degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2000.
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Senior Management

Mr. SHI Yuehong, aged 57, has been a risk control director
of the Company since December 2014. Mr. SHI is a senior
engineer. He holds a degree in construction engineering from
Tongji University.

Ms. WAN Wing Sze May, aged 44, has been a chief financial
officer of the Company since March 2015. Ms. WAN joined
the Company in January 2004. Ms. WAN holds a Bachelor
of business administration degree in accounting and is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She has more than 20 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management and business control
and has extensive experience in corporate restructuring.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders its report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are property investment
in the PRC, real estate development in the U.S. and the
development in the energy sector in Indonesia as well as finance
investment and others. Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group as required under
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year, a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2020 (if any) as well as an indication
of likely future development in the business of the Group are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 8 to 23 of this annual
report, and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
24 to 35 of this annual report. The above sections form an
integral part of this report of directors.

The analysis of the revenue and results by principal activities and
geographical locations of the operations of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group conducts its business in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations and integrates industry best
practices into our operations where appropriate. Details of the
Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group’s business and operations
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 76
to 103 of this annual report and the 2020 Social Responsibility
Report which is available at websites of the Company and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. The relevant discussions
in this annual report and the 2020 Social Responsibility Report
form part of this report of directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 115 of
this annual report.

No final dividend is recommended by the Board for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be held
on Thursday, 20 May 2021, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Friday, 14 May 2021 to Thursday,
20 May 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 13
May 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 8 to 23 and
pages 24 to 35 of this annual report respectively. Description of
the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are disclosed in
Notes 5, 6, 32 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR PROJECTS AND EVENTS

Details regarding major projects undertaken by the Group
and events that have taken place during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 24 to 35 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEEHRE(E)

RESERVES

Particulars on the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements and the consolidated statement
of changes in equity from pages 123 to 125 of this annual report
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There is no distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2020 calculated under the Companies Act of
Bermuda.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of the movements of properties, plant and equipment,
investment properties and properties under development during
the year are set out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group are set out from
pages 302 to 304 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

HAN Xiaosheng
LIU Hongwei
LIU Bing
ZHANG Xifang
LIU Guosheng

Non-executive Director
ZHAOQ Yingwei
Independent Non-executive Directors

LIU Jipeng
YAN Fashan
LO Wa Kei Roy

In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws, Messrs. LIU
Guosheng, LIU Jipeng and YAN Fashan shall retire by rotation at
the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out from pages 36 to 40 of this annual
report.

UPDATE ON DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INFORMATION UNDER RULE
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and confirmations from
the Directors and chief executive, the changes in the information
of the Directors and chief executive required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent to
the date of the Company’s 2020 interim report are set out below:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Name of Director

BEEgR

Details of Change
BENFEE

LIU Bing
21K

ZHANG Xifang
REFS

LIU Jipeng
2

Yan Fashan
BUEE

LO Wai Kei Roy
EER

Ceased to be vice chairman of Minsheng Holdings Co., Ltd.*, whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000416) on 15 May 2020.
R20205 A1 ATBEAREERRNBRAG(ERONAINEBZLSRZFT L
M+ FHREG: 000416)BEEER -

Appointed as a non-executive director of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd., whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 9668) on 15 January
2020.

R 2020 F 1 A 15 ARG RITROD AR A A (AR AD RBERPT L - BRI
9668)HIFEITE S °

Appointed as a chief executive officer of Oceanwide Holdings on 15 January
2021.
R 202151 A 15 BEEZGIERER -

Appointed as an independent director of Valiant Co., Ltd., whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002643), on 12 May
2020.

RR2020% 5 A12 A EEFE A EBERHBR A A(ARONRYIEFR S L
M BHNREE - 002643) B ESE -

Resigned as an independent director of China-Singapore Suzhou Industrial Park
Development Group Co., Ltd., whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 601512) on 29 June 2020.

M2020F6 A9 BB ETHEMN IXERHEEERNH AR AR (HRHN LF
BHRXG LT BHATE - 601512)BUES -

Appointed as an independent director of CECEP Guozhen Environmental
Protection Technology Co., Ltd., whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 300388) on 30 December 2020.

M 20204 12 A 30 A EEH &gt BB R REHEIR () AR 2 Al (ARG RIRYIFEH R
ST LT - FBHNRE  300388)BULES o

Resigned as an independent director of Zhongjin Gold Corp., Ltd., whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600489) on 11
March 2021.

R2021F3A MM AFETF2EeRNERANEROY N EBERFZR S
M FBHMRHEG - 600489) B EE ©

His annual remuneration has been increased from HK$200,000 to HK$250,000
with effect from 1 October 2020.

1% < FE < 2 fmE% 200,000 7L N ZE B 250,0007T © B2020F 10 A1 Hi
HER o

His annual remuneration has been increased from HK$200,000 to HK$250,000
with effect from 1 October 2020.

% 2 FEB < E BB 200,000 o1 1 =B 250,000 7T © B 2020F 10 51 B8
HR o

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Sun Hing Vision Group
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
125) on 1 March 2021.

72021 F3 A1 BEHEM B SR EERAMR A A (R MBS EH - BRHOK
5% 126) B IFMITES -

His annual remuneration has been increased from HK$200,000 to HK$250,000
with effect from 1 October 2020.
2 FE e 2 RABTE 200,000 TG N E A 250,000 © B2020F10 H1 B
AR o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF
INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors (the “INED(s)”) an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all of them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in
relation to the businesses of the Group, to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which any Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year and without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts of the Directors, no contracts (as
defined in Section 543 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622))
relating to the management and/or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Directors had interests in the
following businesses (apart from the businesses of the Company
or its subsidiaries) conducted through the companies named
below, their subsidiaries, associated companies or other
investment forms which are considered to compete or be
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the principal
businesses of the Group conducted during the year required to
be disclosed as follows pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing
Rules:
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Name of Director Name of Company

Exps

DA EH

Position(s) of Director

EERM

Nature of Competing
Business

BEEBME

HAN Xiaosheng
PR A

LIU Hongwei
P

LIU Bing
217K

ZHANG Xifang

REF

LIU Guosheng
2=

ZHAQO Yingwei
HHEE

China Oceanwide Holdings Group
B2 A R

China Oceanwide Holdings Group
Bz AR R E

Oceanwide Holdings

2R

China Oceanwide Holdings Group
Bz AR

Oceanwide Holdings

R

Oceanwide Holdings
AL )

China Oceanwide Holdings Group
P EDZ EEREE

Oceanwide Holdings

R

Director

5=

Vice President
Blliazk

Supervisor

BE=

Director

5=

Deputy Chairman,
President
BlESR - BH

Chief Financial Officer
B s 4R Es

Executive Director,
Executive Vice
President,

Chief Financial Officer

WITES - iTalazE -
e

Deputy Chairman of
Supervisory Committee
EESRIERE

Real estate investment

FHERE

Real estate investment

FHERE

Real estate development
and investment

FiERZERE

Real estate investment

FHERE

Real estate development
and investment

FHEREEKRE

Real estate development
and investment

FIEREEKE

Real estate investment

FHERE

Real estate development
and investment

i AR % B E
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As the Board is independent of the board of directors of
the above entities, the Group has been able to carry on its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length with, the above
entities. Further, although the above entities are also engaged
in real estate development/investment, no competition is
considered to exist among members of the Group (which focus
on offshore investments) and the above entities (which focus on
onshore investments).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any interest in a
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted on 19 May 2015, under
which the Directors may grant options to eligible persons to
subscribe for the Shares, subject to the terms and conditions as
stipulated therein.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the participants (the “Participants”) with an opportunity to
obtain an equity interest in the Company, thus linking their
interest with the interest of the Group and thereby providing
them with an incentive to work better for the interest of the
Group.
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Participants

The Board may, at their discretion, invite any Directors
(whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not), any employee (whether full-time
or part-time) and any consultant or adviser of or to the
Company or the Group (whether on an employment or
contractual or honorary basis and whether paid or unpaid),
who, in the absolute opinion of the Board, have contributed
or will contribute to the Company or the Group, as the
Participants.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

The refreshment of scheme mandate limit under the Share
Option Scheme was approved by the Shareholders at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 23 May 2019.
The maximum number of Shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshment of scheme mandate limit under Share Option
Scheme (i.e. 23 May 2019), being 1,614,265,306 Shares,
representing 10% of the issued shares as at the date of
this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme to each Participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the number of
Shares in issue as at the date of grant unless approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.

Subscription price

The subscription price shall be such price to be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and notified to the
Participant in the offer and shall be at least the higher of:

(@) the closing price per Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the offer date;
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(b) the average closing price per Share as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five (5) consecutive business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value per Share.

Option Period

A period of time where the grantee may exercise the option
(the “Option Period”), which period in any circumstances
shall not be more than 10 years from the offer date to be
notified by the Board to each grantee which the Option
Period shall commence on the offer date and expire on the
last day of the Option Period as determined by the Board.

Exercise period

Subject to the any condition or restriction in connection
with the exercise of the option which may be imposed by
the Board when granting the option and the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme, the option may be exercised by
the grantee (or his or her legal personal representative(s)) at
any time during the Option Period.

Term of the Share Option Scheme

No option may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
on or after the date of the tenth anniversary of the date on
which the Share Option Scheme becomes unconditional
(the “Scheme Period”), but in respect of all options which
remain outstanding and exercisable on the expiry of the
Scheme Period, the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect.

No option had been granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme since its date of adoption.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity- linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

RIGHTS ISSUE

No rights issues were conducted by the Company during the
Year.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 27 December 2018, the Company issued convertible
notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$600 million
with the initial conversion price of HK$0.71 per share
(subject to adjustment). For further details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 12, 20, 27 and 28
December 2018 and Note 27(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at the date of this annual report, the net proceeds from the
issue of the notes of HK$587.5 million have been utilised in
the following ways: () as to HK$556.5 million for refinancing
two loans advanced by licensed banks in Hong Kong; (i) as to
HK$14.0 million for interest payment; and (iii) as to approximately
HK$17.0 million for the general operating expenses.

An aggregate amount of HK$26.5 million convertible notes were
repurchased and cancelled during the Year. The number of
Shares which may be issued pursuant thereto were 807,746,479
as at the date of this annual report.

Details of the convertible notes are set out in Note 27(d) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations amounted to HK$775,000 (2019: HK$783,000) were
made by the Group during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year nor at the end of the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
which enables the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES IN THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and their respective associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors were
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Company’s own Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Securities Code”) were as follows:

() Long positions in Shares
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Approximate%
of shareholding
in the Company

Number of HARAT
Name of Director Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held BRREZBA
EEnE 514 REEME sl B & E B2tk (%)
LIU Jipeng Beneficial owner Personal interest 9,212,000 0.05
24 s EmlEaA EPN
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() Long positions in shares of Oceanwide Holdings m RZEERRAZEFE
Number of

ordinary Approximate%

shares in of shareholding

Oceanwide in Oceanwide

Holdings held Holdings

Name of Director Capacity Nature of Interests FrigizimiER 2 e R

R g4 s ZREREAE ZBHE DL (%)

HAN Xiaosheng Beneficial owner Personal interest 3,500,000 0.06
BEEA EmEAA (VN 325

LIU Bing Beneficial owner Personal interest 90,000 0.001
211K EnEAA B Az

LIU Hongwei Beneficial owner Personal interest 30,000 0.0005
2t EnEAA B AR

ZHANG Xifang Beneficial owner Personal interest 276,000 0.005
REFR EnEAA BAER

LIU Guosheng Beneficial owner Personal interest 400,000 0.007
21 EnlEAA EA#ER

ZHAO Yingwei Beneficial owner Personal interest 200,000 0.003
THE(E EmBEAA (PN 323

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of Br EXFTIREEE SN - 7R 20204 12 A

the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and
their respective associates had any other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Securities Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2020,
the following persons had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

FERRREMATIRROR
HERD zEER AR

FEEFTA - R 2020512 A31H » T4
ALTRBEDKBEERGFHEEREES &
HEEBIEXVRE2 REIN W2 IEA
MARNBHEZEZIAR  KETAKR
NEERFESFRBEEDFE 336 KFE 2
ERfa A= M e AR R R FT
ZHERTAE

Long positions in Shares i E v i

Approximate %

of shareholding

Number of in the Company

Name Capacity Shares held ERDTREZ

wE LB g4 FrERGEA BHABE DL (%)

LU Zhigiang Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,721,178 74.94
B | N o (Note 1)
(PREE1)

HUANG Qiongzi Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,721,178 74.94
BmIBE ST YN (Note 1)
(M43E1)

Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,721,178 74.94
REERAER AT BRI AE 2 (Note 2)
(Hi3E2)

Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,721,178 74.94
wBEEBRAF e il N ol (Note 3)
(MIEE3)

China Oceanwide Holdings Group Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,721,178 74.94
Dz AR R E RSN E 2w (Note 4)
(PffEE4)

Oceanwide Holdings Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,721,178 74.94
PR RGN R 2 s (Note 5)
(M$5E5)
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Approximate %
of shareholding
Number of in the Company

Name Capacity Shares held HAERATREZ
HE BB B4 FrERAE A BA A DL (%)
China Oceanwide Group Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,721,178 74.94
RiZEE ST YN (Note 5)
(PBF5ES)
Oceanwide Holdings International  Beneficial owner 11,346,221,178 70.28
Co., Ltd EEEEA (Note 5)
R B B BR A ) (PBF5ES5)
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled corporations 10,137,316,183 62.80
BREHFRNOHBR AR g NIl (Note 6)
(M3t 6)
Haitong International Holdings Interest of controlled corporations 10,137,316,183 62.80
Limited SRl NCIPE: £ (Note 7)
GBI B PR A A (B5E7)
Haitong International Securities Interest of controlled corporations 10,137,316,183 62.80
Group Limited el NS s (Note 8)
BRERESEEAR AR (Pffzx8)
Haitong International Financial Security interest in Shares 9,414,077,108 58.32
Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.  #BRHREEZ (Note 8)
(PftzE8)
Notes: BEE -

(1) Mr. LU Zhigiang and Ms. HUANG Qiongzi (spouse of Mr. LU
Zhigiang) together held more than one-third of the voting power
at general meetings of Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.*. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. LU Zhigiang and Ms. HUANG Qiongzi were deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.*
is interested.

(2)  Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* held 100% equity interest in Oceanwide
Group Co., Ltd.*. By virtue of the SFO, Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.*
was deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Oceanwide
Group Co., Ltd.* was interested.
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(8) Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* held 98% equity interest in China

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Oceanwide Holdings Group. By virtue of the SFO, Oceanwide
Group Co., Ltd.* was deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which China Oceanwide Holdings Group was interested.

China Oceanwide Holdings Group directly and indirectly held
68.49% equity interest in Oceanwide Holdings. By virtue of the
SFO, China Oceanwide Holdings Group was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Oceanwide Holdings was
interested.

Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd and Oceanwide
Holdings International Finance Ltd are the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of China Oceanwide Group, which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Oceanwide Holdings. By virtue of the
SFO, China Oceanwide Group and Oceanwide Holdings were
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 12,097,721,178
Shares, including: (i) 11,346,721,178 Shares held by Oceanwide
Holdings International Co., Ltd and (i) 751,500,000 Shares held
by Oceanwide Holdings International Finance Ltd. Oceanwide
Holdings International Co., Ltd and Oceanwide Holdings
International Finance Ltd have charged 8,250,403,108 Shares and
751,500,000 Shares respectively in favour of Haitong International
Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. for a loan facility.
Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd. has also charged
3,095,818,070 Shares in favour of China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd., Hong Kong Branch in order to secure the obligations of China
Tonghai International Financial Limited (“CTIF”, whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 952)), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of Oceanwide Holdings, under a credit facility.

Haitong Securities Co., Ltd holds 100% equity interest in Haitong
International Holdings Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Haitong
Securities Co., Ltd was deemed to be interested in all the Shares
in which Haitong International Holdings Limited was interested.

Haitong International Holdings Limited held 64.40% equity interest
in Haitong International Securities Group Limited. By virtue of the
SFO, Haitong International Holdings Limited was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Haitong International Securities
Group Limited was interested.

Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. and
Haitong International Financial Products Limited are the indirect
subsidiaries of Haitong International Securities Group Limited. By
virtue of the SFO, Haitong International Securities Group Limited
was deemed to be interested in (i) 9,414,077,108 Shares in which
Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. had
security interest and; (i) 723,239,075 underlying Shares beneficially
owned by Haitong International Financial Products Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there was
no other person who held interests and/or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which was required, to be entered
in the register to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO, or was a substantial Shareholder.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, of which (a)
the transactions summarised in Note 33a(i)(2), c(i), d(i) and e(i)
constituted non-exempted continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with
the applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules; and (b) the transactions summarised in Note 33a(i)(1), b(i),
(i) and (iii), d(i) and (iii) and e(ii) constituted one-off connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which are fully
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Material Related
Party Transactions” as set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements and those connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions disclosed herein below,
there were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its ultimate
holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or its connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group conducted

the following transactions which constituted connected

transactions/continuing connected transactions of the Company

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(A)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Connected Transactions

Consulting Services Agreement

On 30 December 2015, China Oceanwide International
Investment Company Limited (“China Oceanwide
International Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Oceanwide Holdings Group, the controlling
shareholder of Oceanwide Holdings, entered into a
consulting services agreement (the “Consulting Services
Agreement”) with China Oceanwide Power Co., Limited
(“China Oceanwide Power”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to which China Oceanwide
International Investment shall provide consultancy services
for the two coal fuel steam power plant facilities with net
capacity of 150 megawatt (“MW”) each developed by
PT. Mabar Elektrindo (“PT Mabar”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in the Medan Industrial
Area, North Sumatra, Indonesia (the “Medan Project”) to
China Oceanwide Power and PT Mabar and assist China
Oceanwide Power and PT Mabar in the financing and
insurance arrangement in respect of the Medan Project and
to assist the development of PT Mabar.

Subject to China Oceanwide International Investment
successfully assisting China Oceanwide Power or PT Mabar
in securing a loan facility of not less than US$400,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,101.0 million) from the
relevant banks or financial institutes during the course of
providing the above consultancy services, China Oceanwide
Power agreed to pay a service fee of not more than
US$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7.8 million)
(exclusive of tax) (the “Service Fee”) to China Oceanwide
International Investment.
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The Consulting Services Agreement had expired on
29 December 2017 and a supplemental agreement to
Consulting Services Agreement was entered into between
China Oceanwide International Investment and China
Oceanwide Power on 1 February 2018 to extend the
service period of China Oceanwide International Investment
to 31 January 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, nil fee was payable
or paid by China Oceanwide Power under the Consulting
Services Agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement) and China Oceanwide.

Sublease Agreement

On 30 December 2020 (San Francisco time)/31 December
2020 (HK time), Tonghai Properties Corporation (formerly
known as China Oceanwide International Properties
(US) Corp., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the subtenant (the “Subtenant”), entered
into a sublease agreement (“Sublease Agreement”) with
Tonghai International Group (USA) Co. Ltd. (formerly known
as China Oceanwide USA Holdings Co. Ltd.), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Oceanwide Holdings Group, as
the sublandlord (the “Sublandlord”), for sublease in respect
of the premises (the “Premises”) located on the 29th floor
in Three Embarcadero Center San Francisco, California,
the U.S., for a term of one year commencing on 1 January
2021.
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In accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the Group
recognized the value of the right-of-use asset on its
consolidated statement of financial position in connection
with the fixed base rent in relation to the sublease of the
Premises under the Sublease Agreement. Accordingly,
the payment of the fixed base rent under the Sublease
Agreement was regarded as an acquisition of right-of-
use asset by the Subtenant which constituted a one-off
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.

The value of the right-of-use asset to be recognized by the
Group during the year ending 31 December 2021 in relation
to the Fixed Base Rent under the Sublease Agreement
shall amount to approximately US$389,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3.0 million), which is the present value
of the fixed base rent payable by the Subtenant to the
Sublandlord under the Sublease Agreement during the term
of the Sublease Agreement in accordance with HKFRS 16.

Continuing Connected transactions
Apartment and Office Lease Agreements

PT. China Oceanwide Indonesia (“PT COI”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Oceanwide International
Investment, and PT Mabar entered into (i) an apartment
lease agreement on 18 January 2015 pursuant to which PT
Mabar agreed to lease certain apartments located in Jin.
Senopati Raya No. 44, Jakarta Selatan from 1 February
2015 to 31 December 2017; (ii) an office lease agreement
on 18 May 2015 pursuant to which PT Mabar agreed to
lease certain office space located in JI. KH. Mas Mansyur
Kav. 126, Jakarta 12920-Indonesia from 1 June 2015 to 31
December 2017; and (iii) an apartment lease agreement on
18 June 2015 pursuant to which PT Mabar agreed to lease
certain apartments located in JIn. Senopati Raya No. 44,
Jakarta Selatan from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017
(together with the above apartment lease agreement and
office lease agreement, the “Expired Agreements”).
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For further details, please refer to 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018
and 2019 annual reports of the Company.

On 29 December 2017, PT COI and PT Mabar entered
into a renewed apartment lease agreement and a renewed
office lease agreement (collectively the “Renewed
Agreements”) to renew the Expired Agreements for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2020.

The maximum aggregate amount of rent payable by PT
Mabar under the Renewed Agreements, determined based
on the annual rent stated in the Renewed Agreements is
IDR12,479,544,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6.6
million, excluding value added tax (“VAT”), other fees and
utility bills) for each of the three financial years ended 31
December 2020.

The annual cap under the Renewed Agreements was
determined between PT COI and PT Mabar after arm’s
length negotiation on normal commercial terms, taking into
account the location of the relevant properties, the term of
the Renewed Agreements, the market rates and conditions,
and the historical annual rental amounts under the Expired
Agreements.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the rent payable
by PT Mabar under the Renewed Agreements was
IDR12,479,544,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6.6
million).

HE— T FBEBL2E A QT 2015F -
2016 £F ~ 2017 4F - 20184 [ 2019
FEETR o

2017412 A29H » PT COIEPT
Mabar 7] 32 A B 78 & 48 89 15 & Mol
AEHEERBZ(RBIERR
&) LEETSHE - A20184F
1A1H®BE2020F12A31HIEA
HAGHF o

E £2020F12A31H 1IF = @ it
BEEST REBEEBEHBHETH
B EHEEEE  PT MabariR i% &
HpaEdnllesraBaed s
12,479,544,000 ENJE & (FHE R 4975
¥ee0B I )(TEIERER - Hib
ERANAAERE) -

BHWMEETNFELRIIAPT
COI#2PT Mabar £ 22 ¥ 1 7 & #2 IE
FREGRT UEEEMEEMEZ
VE- BHHZcFHETEES
RAAAREIEHER AR S FE
SFHESHEMETE -

HZE2020F 12 AG1HIEFE - PT
MabariR B EHpZEEMNNE LA
12,479,544,000 ENE & (FEZE A 4978
#6608 L) °

FZERAERAT 2020 Fi

61



62

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEEHE(E)

Capital Contribution to a Non-wholly Owned
Subsidiary

On 14 May 2014, China Oceanwide Power as lender and
Shanghai Electric Power Construction Co., Ltd* (“SEPC”,
which held 20% equity interest in PT Mabar, together with
PT. Shanghai Electric Power (“PT SEPC”), collectively
the “SEPC Group”) as borrower entered into a loan
agreement pursuant to which China Oceanwide Power
agreed to make available a loan in the principal amount
of up to US$3,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27.1 million) at an interest rate equivalent to the rate
of expected average financing cost for the power plant
project developed by PT Mabar to SEPC. The purpose of
this loan was to provide SEPC with funds to make capital
contribution into PT Mabar in proportion to its 20% equity
interest. The loan shall be repaid when SEPC obtains the
approval of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange
of the PRC (“SAFE”) for the transfer of its capital overseas.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, SEPC has repaid
the loan with the approval of SAFE. For the year ended 31
December 2020, no interest income was accrued. As at
31 December 2020, the interest receivable of the loan was
approximately US$531,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4.1 million).
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Engineering, Procurement and Construction
Contracts

On 23 December 2013, PT Mabar as employer and SEPC
as contractor entered into a master agreement (the “Master
Agreement”) pursuant to which PT Mabar engaged SEPC
to provide all materials, parts, equipment and construction
equipment, transportation to sites (including customs
clearance) and other labour services and to perform all
works, activities and services on a fixed lump sum turn
key basis for the design, engineering, procurement,
construction, commissioning, testing and completion of,
and making good of defects in relation to the power plant
facilities of the Medan Project. The Master Agreement
was renewed twice on 23 November 2015 and 8 June
2017 respectively, the renewed total consideration was
US$431,930,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,348.6
million). For further details, please refer to 2017, 2018 and
2019 annual reports of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no construction
cost was incurred by PT Mabar under the aforesaid
agreements. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate
amount paid by PT Mabar under the aforesaid agreements
was US$283,504,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,197.9 million).

Loan Agreement

On 14 May 2014, China Oceanwide Power as lender
entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with
PT. Garda Sayap Garuda (“GSG”, which held 20% equity
interest in PT Mabar) as borrower, making available a loan
(the “Loan”) (reference is made to the 2015 and 2016
annual reports of the Company) which was subsequently
renewed on 30 December 2015, (i) the principal amount of
the Loan to US$28,353,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$219.8 million); (ii) the loan period to three years
commencing from the date of the Loan Agreement; and
(ili) the interest rate equivalent to the financing interest
rate (including but not limited to upfront fee, commitment
fee, loan arrangement fee, bank advisory, agency and
management fee etc.) of the Medan Project.
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On 12 May 2017, China Oceanwide Power and GSG
entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to renew the Loan Agreement for a term
commencing from 17 May 2017 to 31 December 2019. For
further details, please refer to the 2017, 2018 and 2019
annual reports of the Company.

As set out in the announcement of the Company on 2
January 2020, negotiation between China Oceanwide
Power and GSG over the further renewal of the Loan
Agreement is still ongoing. As at the date of this report, no
supplemental agreement has been entered into between
China Oceanwide Power and GSG and no annual cap
has been determined for the year ended 31 December
2020. For the year ended 31 December 2020, no interest
income was accrued by China Oceanwide Power. As at
31 December 2020, the principal and interest receivable
(before discounting and provision of expected credit losses)
of the Loan amounted to US$36,996,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$286.8 million).

Services Transactions and Investment and Lending
Transactions

On 21 September 2017, the Company entered into a
framework services agreement (the “First Framework
Services Agreement”) with China Tonghai International
Financial Limited (“CTIFL”, whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 952) and a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of Oceanwide Holdings). Pursuant to
the First Framework Services Agreement, the Company
and CTIFL have conditionally agreed to engage in
various services transactions, and investment and
lending transactions with each other for the period from
20 November 2017 to 31 December 2019. Oceanwide
Holdings is the controlling shareholder of both the
Company and CTIFL.

On 30 August 2019, the Company entered into a
framework services agreement (the “Second Framework
Services Agreement”) with CTIFL for another term of three
years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.
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For details, please refer to the announcement of the HFBEBLHEA AR 201948 A30H
Company dated 30 August 2019 and the circular of the MAERARGF2019F9 A30H A
Company dated 30 September 2019. HPK o

The annual caps for the three financial years ended/ending
31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively are shown

R E = 20204 + 2021 F K 20224
12A31HIE=EAMBRFENFEE

below: RIS :
For the year ended For the year ending For the year ending
Type of transactions 31 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2022
RABEH BE2020F128318  HE2021E12A%18  HE202%F12531A
LEE LEE LEE
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
BYEET AREET BHEET
(1) Service transactions %% 2
(@ Income from service transactions provided to CTIFL Group
RhEREAR e REBREORELS L hE 05 05 05
(b)  Expenses for service transactions provided by CTIFL Group
(including interest expenses to CTIFL arising from the lending transactions)
HPEREERCREIRUORERHLER
(RERERRSMPER SRR SRR MORERL) 9.0 9.0 9.0
(2) Investment, lending and underwriting transactions %% » 8% REXR S
() Maximum daily invested amount for investment transactions provided to CTIFL Group
mhER AR REBRRRERANRSBARELE
- Fund investment Z£ 4% & 60.0 60.0 60.0
(o) Maximum daily amount/outstanding balance for lending and
underwriting transactions provided by CTIFL Group
mrERSRAR SRS ARSI RAHRANEREELE/ AL LR
- Financial assistance B4 )
* Loan principal E5144 480 480 480
- Underwriting 134 120 120 120

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group accrued
expenses of HK$53,379,000 for service transactions
provided by CTIFL Group (including interest expenses to
CTIFL Group arising from the lending transactions) to the
Group and the maximum daily amount/outstanding balance
of the loan principal for lending transactions provided by
CTIFL Group to the Group amounted to HK$480,000,000.
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Lease Agreements

On 6 September 2019, Oceanwide Shen Gang Asset
Operation (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (“Oceanwide Shen Gang”),
a company established in the PRC and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a lease
agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with Tohigh Property
Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (“Tohigh Property”), a
company established in the PRC and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* which is
a controlling shareholder of the Company, pursuant to
which Oceanwide Shen Gang agreed to lease certain office
premises (the “Property”) to Tohigh Property for a term of
36 months from 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2022.

On 11 October 2019, Oceanwide Shen Gang entered into
a supplemental lease agreement (the “Supplemental Lease
Agreement”) with Tohigh Property, pursuant to which
Oceanwide Shen Gang agreed to lease certain additional
office units (the “Temporary Property”) to Tohigh Property
for its temporary use pending the completion of the
renovation of the Property under the Lease Agreement, for
a term of 3 months 13 days from 18 September 2019 to 31
December 2019.
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The following table sets out the annual caps in respect of
the transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement
and the Supplemental Lease Agreement for each of the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 and ending
2021 and 2022:

For the year ended
31 December 2019
BZE2019412A831H

For the year ended
31 December 2020
BIZE2020512831H

For the year ending
31 December 2021
BZE2021%F12A31H

TR HEE = R EE R =
HINRETHR ZNEZE 20194 -
20204 - 2021 6 % 20224 12 A 31
AIEFESFNFE LR

For the year ending
31 December 2022
BE2022412A831H

HFE IEFE HFE IEFE
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR ARHE AR AR
2,000,000 3,400,000 3,500,000 2,400,000

(equivalent to (equivalent to (equivalent to (equivalent to
approximately approximately approximately approximately
HK$2.4 million) HK$4.0 million) HK$4.2 million) HK$2.9 million)

(FHEERLEE24087L) BERLBE4008TT) (EERLOBEE4208TT) GESERLEBE20087T)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Oceanwide
Shen Gang, Tohigh Property and Shanghai Yuzhong
Investment Management Co., Ltd., (“Shanghai Yuzhong”,
a fellow subsidiary of Tohigh Property and Oceanwide
Shen Gang which are all under common control of China
Oceanwide Holdings Group Co., Ltd.,) have entered into
a three-party agreement to transfer the tenancy and all
corresponding obligations as the tenant of the Property
pursuant to the Lease Agreement from Tohigh Property to
Shanghai Yuzhong for the period from 1 February 2020 to
31 July 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total rent
payable and paid by Tohigh Property and Shanghai
Yuzhong to Oceanwide Shen Gang amounted to
RMB3,202,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3.8
million).
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The INEDs have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that (other than those expressly
stated otherwise and separate compliance procedures have
been conducted), the transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited (“Yongtuo Fuson”), the Company’s
auditor, were engaged to report on the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information
and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Yongtuo Fuson has issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEEHRE(E)

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Facility Agreement Dated 23 September 2019

On 23 September 2019, the Company, as guarantor, entered
into a facility agreement relating to a term loan facility in an
amount of US$140.0 million equivalent to approximately
HK$1,085.4 million) with, among others, China Oceanwide
Property Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as borrower (“COPH”), and OCM Harbour Investments
Pte. Ltd., an independent third party as lender, agent and
security agent (the “Lender”). On 24 September 2019, COPH
entered into a keepwell deed with the Lender and Oceanwide
Holdings. The maturity date of the loan is the date falling three
years after the first utilisation date of the loan.

Pursuant to the facility agreement, upon the controlling
shareholders of the Company ceasing to control at least 51% of
the issued share capital of the Company, the facility agreement
will be cancelled and all outstanding amounts (including principal
and interest) due and owing by COPH to the Lender under the
facility agreement shall become immediately due and payable.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 23 September 2019.

As at the date of this annual report, the above specific
performance obligation imposed on the controlling shareholders
of the Company under the aforesaid facility agreement continued
to exist.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEEHE(E)

Subscription Agreement Dated 6 November 2019

On 6 November 2019, the Company, as parent guarantor,
entered into a subscription agreement relating to the notes
(the “Notes”) in an amount of US$250.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,938.2 million) with, among others, China
Oceanwide Real Estate Development Holdings Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company as issuer. An amendment
agreement has been subsequently signed and the maturity of the
Notes has been extended to 5 November 2021.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, (i) upon the controlling
shareholders of the Company ceasing to control, directly or
indirectly, the Company or any person or group of persons
action in concert gains control of the Company; (i) trading on
Oceanwide Holdings’s shares is suspended on the main board
of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for more than 10 consecutive
trading days; or (i) Oceanwide Holdings’s shares cease to be
listed on the main board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, there
will be acceleration of the Notes.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 November 2019.

As at the date of this annual report, the above specific
performance obligation imposed on the controlling shareholders
of the Company under the aforesaid subscription agreement
continued to exist.

Facility Agreement Dated 22 January 2020

On 22 January 2020, the Company entered into a facility
agreement with a licensed bank in the PRC relating to a
US$135.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,046.6
million) facility. The facility has a term of two years.

As one of the conditions of the facility, Oceanwide Holdings shall
procure its savings and respective interests (equivalent to the
outstanding loan amount or more) in the bank as security for the
facility, the breach of which the outstanding loan amount of the
facility shall trigger mandatory repayment obligation on the part
of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEEHRE(E)

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 3 February 2020.

As at the date of this annual report, the loan was repaid in full
and the facility was not renewed.

Facility Agreement Dated 8 May 2020

On 8 May 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as borrower, entered into a facility agreement with a licensed
bank in the PRC relating to a RMB600.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$712.9 million) facility. The facility has a term of
36 months.

As one of the conditions of the facility, Oceanwide Holdings,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, shall provide a
guarantee (equivalent to the outstanding loan amount and
interests) by entering into a guarantee agreement with the bank
as security for the facility, the breach of this specific performance
obligation and certain undertakings in the guarantee agreement
will constitute an event of default under the facility.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 8 May 2020.

As at the date of this annual report, the above specific
performance obligation imposed on the controlling shareholders
of the Company under the aforesaid facility agreement continued
to exist.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEEHE(E)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company from and against
all losses or liabilities which any of them may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of their duties in their offices.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout
the year and is still in force. In addition, the Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for
the directors and officers of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in Notes 27 and 33g to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the listed securities of the
Company. In addition, the Company has not redeemed any of its
listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There were no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Byelaws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 301 of
this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEEHRE(E)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the retirement benefits schemes of the Group is
set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s revenue (excluding interest
and dividend incomes) for the year ended 31 December 2020
attributable to the major customers of the Group were as follows:
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Percentage of
total revenue
of the Group

EAREE

BRANBE DL

The largest customer AR 19%
Five largest customers in aggregate ~ A AZFP A& 53%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the major customers noted above.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has not
made any purchases other than incurring rental outgoings and
overhead expenses.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float in compliance with the requirement of the
Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this annual
report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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DISCLOSURE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL INITIATIVES

The Company’s corporate governance practices during the year
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 76
to 103 of this annual report. The Group’s environmental and
social initiatives during the year are set out in the 2020 Social
Responsibility Report which is available at websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY PARTIES

The Group’s success depends on, amongst other matters, the
support from key parties which comprises of the customers,
suppliers, subcontractors and employees.

The Group appreciates the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. The Group values
the feedback from customers, mainly our tenants for the
investment properties, through daily communication, and will
address their concerns in a timely manner. For the suppliers
and subcontractors, the Group assures their performance for
delivering quality products and sustainable services through
supplier approval process and by spot checks on the delivered
goods. During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no
circumstance of any event between the Group and its key parties
which will have a significant impact on the Group’s business
and on which the Group’s success depends. The account of the
Group’s relationship with employees and suppliers is set out in
the 2020 Social Responsibility Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted the Securities Code regulating Directors’
dealings in securities of the Company, on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code. In response to
specific enquiries made, all the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the Securities Code and the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

TCERERERARBRENLES

ARBIFANEREAFRANAFERE
T6 AEF 103 EMEEERAREN - A%
BFARRRENL ST EHOEEEHR 2020
FHEEARE(IRARBRPUERER
R MEBMARARMEUE TEH)A -

BIEATZBHF

AEBZADBBRR(EFRE)EF - #
fEE  ABELEEFEEIBAL IR -

REEBRMERP REEEERTRITER
HEBHBHRREEBAECEE K -
AEBEREFP(XZEAREMENEF)
FRABEBRIRENER T REE
BREBETAOME - AR HERMAR
i AREBEARERERERBER
NEY BRESCEREEEEERRARF
BRI A EAIRE - #Z 20209 12 A 31
AIEFEA ASEBEAFZATTED
BEAREEEBRAEBRBUK A
EREATENTMSEY AEBEEES
R EE A B ERELSE N 2020F G E
EWEA °

ERETRESRENEETR

EZERNTELFTAUREESTETAR
NAEINEHFRR S AIERPER 2 RIH
REGEEER - HAEAAGEENARESE
o RREERRBRENEHE2020F12
AB1BIEFEA—BEETHES TR RIFAE
SPAN o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEEHRE(E)

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Please refer to Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements
for events after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited (“BDQO”) resigned as auditor of the Company
on 15 January 2021. On the same day, the Board, with the
recommendation of the audit committee under the Board,
appointed Yongtuo Fuson as auditor of the Company to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of BDO and to hold
office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 20 May 2021 (the “2021 AGM”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by Yongtuo
Fuson, who will retire and, being eligible, will offer itself for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Yongtuo
Fuson as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the 2021
AGM.

Save as disclosed above, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”)
resigned as auditor of the Company on 22 February 2019. On
the same day, the Board, with the recommendation of the audit
committee under the Board, appointed BDO as auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
PwC and to hold office until the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2019 (the “2019
AGM”). At the 2019 AGM and the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 18 June 2020, BDO was re-appointed as
auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board
Han Xiaosheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERBME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining good standards
of corporate governance best suited to the needs and
interests of the Group as it believes that effective corporate
governance practices are fundamental to safeguarding interests
of the Shareholders and other stakeholders and enhancing
shareholders’ value. To this end, the Board and our management
make continuous effort to reinforce our standards of corporate
governance with emphasis on independence, effective internal
control, transparency and accountability to the Shareholders.

The Company has complied during the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Year”) with all applicable code provisions (“Code
Provision(s)”) and principles under the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, except for the following deviations which are explained

below:
CODE PROVISION A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

From 1 January 2020 to 21 January 2020, Mr. HAN Xiaosheng
performed the two roles of the Company’s chief executive
officer (“CEQ”) and chairman of the Board. With effect from 22
January 2020, he ceased to be CEO but remains as chairman
of the Board and executive Director while Mr. WU Chen was
re-designated from deputy CEO to CEO.

With effect from 5 August 2020, Mr. WU Chen ceased to be
CEO while Mr. HAN Xiaosheng resumed the role of CEO, thus
assuming the dual roles of CEO and the chairman of the Board.

The Board believes that having the same individual in both roles
as chairman of the Board and CEO ensures that the Group has
consistent leadership and could make and implement the overall
strategy of the Group more effectively. The Board believes that
this structure does not compromise the balance of power and
authority. The Board will regularly review the effectiveness of
this structure to ensure that it is appropriate to the Group’s
circumstances.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Confinued)

TEERRE (E)

CODE PROVISION A.5.5(2)

Code Provision A.5.5(2) stipulates that where the board
proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an independent
non-executive director at the general meeting, it should set out in
the circular to shareholders, among other things, if the proposed
independent non-executive director will be holding his seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, why the board believes the
individual will still be able to devote sufficient time to the board.

The details as required under this Code Provision in respect of
the re-election of Mr. LO Wa Kei Roy as the independent non-
executive Director at the 2020 annual general meeting was not
provided in a circular of the Company dated 29 April 2020 due
to inadvertence. Such details had nevertheless been disclosed
in a supplemental announcement of the Company dated 12 May
2020.

CODE PROVISION E.1.2

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate) to attend.

Due to other business engagements, Mr. HAN Xiaosheng,
the executive Director, the chairman of the Board and the
chairman of the nomination committee under the Board and
Mr. YAN Fashan, the independent non-executive Director and
the chairman of the remuneration committee under the Board,
did not attend the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the
Company held on 18 June 2020. Other independent non-
executive Directors were present at the AGM to enable the
Board to develop a balance understanding of the views of the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”).
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) regulating the
Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of the Model Code.
In response to specific enquiries made, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Securities Code and
the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three INEDs.

At least one of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are
well-versed in respective areas such as accounting and finance,
business management and industry knowledge and the Board
as a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of skills and
experience. The Directors’ biographical details are set out from
pages 36 to 40 of this annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no financial
or family relationship among the Board members. All of them
are free to exercise their independent judgment on all matters
concerning the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Confinued)

ERERHmS (F)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in 2013. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance and as an essential element in
maintaining strategic objectives and sustainable development
of the Group. All appointment of the Board members will be
based on merits against objective criteria and with due regards
for benefits and balance of diversity on the Board. The Board
diversity will be considered in terms of, among other things,
gender, age, professional experience and qualifications and
educational and cultural background, and any other factors that
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) under
the Board may consider relevant and applicable from time to
time towards complementing and extending the skills, know-how
and experience of the Board.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the Group’s
strategies, providing leadership and guidance to put them
into effect, reviewing and monitoring the performance of the
Group and are accountable to the Shareholders. To maximise
the effectiveness of the Group’s operations, the Board has
delegated management and administration of the Group’s daily
operations to the executive Directors and the management (the
“Management”) while reserving several important matters for its
approval. To this end, the Board has adopted written guidelines
(the “Guidelines”) laying down the division of functions between
the Board and the Management.

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the Board and
the Management are summarised as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:

1. determining/approving the overall strategy and annual
operating budget of the Group;

2. reviewing all significant policy matters of the Group;
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3.  monitoring the performance of the Management to ensure
that the business operations of the Group are properly
planned, authorised and undertaken; and

4. overseeing the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems on an ongoing basis, and reviewing
the effectiveness of such systems at least annually.

The duties of the Management mainly include the following
aspects:

1. is vested with all general powers of management and
control as are vested in the Directors, save and except for
those that may specifically be reserved by the Board and/
or the Board committees for decision and implementation;
or those that may only be exercised by the Board pursuant
to the Listing Rules, the Bye-laws and/or the terms of
reference of the Board Committees;

2. is authorised to perform all acts as may be performed by
the Directors, save and except for those that may only be
performed by the Board pursuant to the Companies Act of
Bermuda, the Bye-laws, the Listing Rules and/or the Hong
Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs;

3. is empowered to implement policies/measures for business
activities, internal control, risk management and corporate
governance of the Group; and

4. is empowered to implement any other matters as assigned
by the Board from time to time.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines on
a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the
needs of the Group.

The Board has assessed the independence of INEDs and
considers all of them to be independent having regard to (i)
their annual confirmations on independence as required under
the Listing Rules, (i) the absence of involvement in the daily
management of the Company; and (iii) the absence of any
relationships or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgment. Throughout the Year, the
number of INEDs on the Board meets the one-third requirement
under the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

All the non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three
years, subject to renewal and re-election as and when required
under the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. However, any Director
who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the next following general meeting of the Company,
or in the case of an additional appointment, until the next annual
general meeting of the Company, and shall be eligible for re-
election at the relevant general meeting. All the Directors are
subject to retirement from office and shall be eligible for re-
election at the annual general meetings at least once every three
years in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages
containing the duties and responsibilities of directors as
required under the Listing Rules and other applicable rules and
regulations.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year with
meeting dates scheduled prior to the beginning of the year.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the Group
provides to Directors, on a regular basis, monthly updates and
other information with respect to the performance, and business
activities and development of the Group. Throughout the year,
the Directors participated in the deliberation and approval
of routine and operational matters of the Company by way
of written resolutions with supporting explanatory materials,
supplemented by additional verbal and/or written information
from the Company Secretary or other executives as and when
required. Details of material transactions of subsidiaries are
provided to the Directors as appropriate. Whenever warranted,
additional Board meetings are held. In addition, the Directors
have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice at all times whenever deemed necessary
by the Directors and they are at liberty to propose appropriate
matters for inclusion in Board agendas.
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With respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors receive
written notice of the meeting generally about a month in advance
and an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three
days prior to the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are
given as much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances. Except for those circumstances permitted by the
Bye-laws and the Listing Rules, a Director who has a material
interest in any contract, transaction, arrangement or any other
kind of proposal put forward to the Board for consideration
abstains from voting on the relevant resolution and such Director
is not counted for quorum determination purposes.

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the
scheduled Board meetings during the year ended 31 December
2020:

EFREFENENEHR  SEF RO
—EAANESEENSZAEMN  UYNEZ
BEf AR =RERXEZHIEMNEH
EFEXM - EREMER  ARAKE
FER  EREMERAIITHNERTESR
MEBEEZE LB - RARAMA N EWARA
RFOERIN  ME2EEFSERNEM
BH - RP - RFHEAEMBIEREE
BREERFENES  ARARRERK
BRRE MREENTEAEESH
EABA -

TRINREZENEHE2020F12 A31 81t
FEHFTHEEZZENER

No. of the scheduled
Board meetings
attended/held

Name of Director HE S BTER
EEnE EEEERNRE
Executive Directors BITES

HAN Xiaosheng i e 4/4
LIU Hongwei g 4/4
LIU Bing 2 K 3/4
ZHANG Xifang wEF 3/4
LIU Guosheng 2B F 4/4
Non-executive Director FHITES

ZHAOQ Yingwei FHE(E 0/4
Independent non-executive Directors B EHITES

LIU Jipeng 24215 4/4
YAN Fashan BEE 4/4
LO Wa Kei Roy EEH 4/4

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman holds regular
meetings with the executive Directors and at least two meetings
with the non-executive Directors (including INEDs) annually
without the presence of the executive Directors. The non-
executive Directors (including INEDs) freely provide their
independent opinion to the Board.
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GENERAL MEETING

During the year, the Company held one general meeting. The
following table shows the attendance of the Directors and the
attendance record of each Director was as follows:

BRERE

FA - RARBEITT —RBRREARE - TK
JIREENHEBANEREETNHEL
8 -

No. of general meetings
attended/held

Name of Director HE BT EH
EENE HEBITHBRERRERE
Executive Directors HITES

HAN Xiaosheng BELE 0/1
LIU Hongwei e 11
LIU Bing 2 K 0/1
ZHANG Xifang REH 0/1
LIU Guosheng 2B FH 0/1
Non-executive Director FHITES

ZHAO Yingwei e 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors B EHITES

LIU Jipeng 242 15 1/1
YAN Fashan BEE 0/1
LO Wa Kei Roy EER 1/1

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Chairman has authorised the company secretary of the
Company to prepare agenda for each Board meeting and to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues to be
discussed at Board meetings and receive adequate and accurate
information in a timely manner.

Ms. LAM Wai Yee Sophie, the company secretary of the
Company, is a fellow member of The Institute of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators) in the United Kingdom. She is a full time
employee of the Company and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board complies with the applicable rules and regulations. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. LAM has complied with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Company arranges and provides continuous professional
development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading materials
to the Directors from time to time to help ensure that they
are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal
and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
businesses and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. In addition,
attendance at external forums or briefing sessions (including
delivery of speeches) on the relevant topics also counts toward
CPD training.

The Directors are required to provide the Company with details
of the CPD training undertaken by them from time to time.

The Directors have to disclose to the Company their interests
as director and other office in other public companies and
organisations in a timely manner and update the Company on
any subsequent changes.

During the Year, all the Directors have participated in the CPD
by attending internal CPD training/seminars/programmes and/or
reading materials relating to updates on corporate governance
and regulations.

REMUNERATION MANAGEMENT POLICY

The remuneration management policy of the Group is to ensure
that the Group’s pay levels are competitive in attracting and
retaining the Directors, senior management and employees as
well as motivating them in the continual pursuit of the Group’s
goal.

The remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management is performance-based and takes into account
factors such as the Group’s business performance and
prevailing market practices. The key components of the Group’s
remuneration package include basic salary, medical insurance,
discretionary cash bonus and retirement benefit scheme. No
individual Director or senior management will be involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman of the
Board in respect of their recommendations in determining the
remuneration of the executive Directors and senior management
of the Company. The details of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the section headed “Board Committees” below.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior staff
of the Group for their potential liabilities incurred by them in
discharging their respective duties. The Company reviews the
insurance coverage for the Directors and the Group’s senior staff
on an annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees including
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee (collectively the “Committees”) to oversee specific
aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Committees have been
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their respective
duties. Each of the Committees has adopted specific terms of
reference covering its duties, powers and functions which will be
reviewed by the Board from time to time. The terms of reference
of the Committees have been posted on website of the Company
at www.oceanwide.hk. The company secretary of the Company
also acts as secretary of the Committees. The Committees adopt
as far as practicable, the procedures and arrangement of the
Board meeting in relation to the conduct of meetings, notice of
meetings and recording of minutes. Further particulars of each of
the Committees are set out below:
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. LIU Jipeng, the INED,
with Mr. ZHAO Yingwei, the non-executive Director, and Mr. LO
Wa Kei Roy, the INED, as members. All of them possess the
relevant business and financial management experience and
skills to understand financial statements and contribute to the
financial governance, internal controls and risk management of
the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the
relationship between the Company and its external auditor,
review the preliminary results, interim and annual results, and
annual and interim financial statements of the Group, monitor
the corporate governance of the Group including compliance
with statutory and Listing Rules requirements, review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the activities of internal audit of
the Group, engage independent legal and other advisers and
conduct investigations as it determines to be necessary. All
members of the Audit Committee have unrestricted access to
the Group’s external auditors and management.

The Audit Committee meets with the chief financial officer,
internal auditor and other management of the Company from
time to time for the purposes of reviewing the interim and
annual results, the interim report and annual report, and other
financial, internal control, corporate governance and risk
management matters of the Group. It considers and discusses
the reports and presentations of the management, the internal
and external auditors of the Group, with a view to ensuring that
the consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. It also meets at least twice a year with the external
auditor of the Company, to consider, among other matters, the
report of the external auditor on the scope, strategy, progress
and outcome of its annual audit of the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Audit Committee holds regular
private meetings with the external auditor without the presence
of the management.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of internal
control and risk management. It reviews the process by which
the Group evaluates its control environment and risk assessment
process, and the way in which business and control risks are
managed. It receives and considers the presentations of the
management in relation to the reviews on the effectiveness of
the internal control systems of the Group and the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in the
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function of
the Group, as well as their training programmes and budget. In
addition, the Audit Committee reviews with the internal auditor
the work plans for its audits on the Group together with its
resource requirements and considers the internal audit reports
to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of internal controls
in the business operations of the Group. Further, it also receives
the reports from the company secretary of the Company on the
compliance status on regulatory requirements of the Group.
These reviews and reports are taken into consideration by the
Audit Committee when it makes its recommendation to the
Board for approval of the consolidated financial statements for
the year.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to
(1) review the management and accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group; (2) discuss financial reporting
matters including the review of 2019 annual results and
2020 interim results of the Group; (3) review the adequacy
of resources, accounting staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; (4) review the
corporate governance structure and practices within the Group;
and (5) review of the Group’s internal control procedures, risk
management, connected transactions and other related issues.
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditor. The Audit Committee also
meets with the external auditor at least twice a year without the
presence of the executive Directors.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Audit Committee at the Audit Committee meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2020:

EEeRELZ B LHMIMNEZARETN
& T BEELMERS  BEX
ZEENERUTESMESNER T E
SNEAZ BN E D FFREMIR ©

TRINRBEZZEGREREE20204F
12AMBLFRERLEERZZEEEEN

R

No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held

Name of Audit Committee member HEBTHEREES
ERZEEHEKS BB
LIU Jipeng 24218 4/4
ZHAO Yingwel e 0/4
LO Wa Kei Roy EIEE 4/4
Remuneration Committee TMEES

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members with FMZEem =R ARBANEREFMET

expertise in human resources and personnel emoluments.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. YAN Fashan,
the INED, with Mr. HAN Xiaosheng, chairman of the Board
and executive Director, and Mr. LO Wa Kei Roy, the INED, as
members. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once
a year to determine the remuneration package of executive
Directors and senior management of the Group. Remuneration
matters are also considered and approved by the Remuneration
Committee by way of written resolutions and additional meetings
where warranted.
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The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to assist
the Board in achieving its objective of attracting, retaining and
motivating employees of the highest calibre and experience
needed to shape and execute strategy of the Group. It assists
the Group in the administration of a fair and transparent
procedure for setting remuneration policies for all Directors and
senior executives of the Group. Whilst the Board retains its
power to determine the remuneration of non-executive Directors,
the responsibility for reviewing and determining the remuneration
package of individual executive Directors and senior management
of the Group is delegated to the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to (1) review the remuneration
policies of the Group; and (2) review the proposed 2021
directors’ fees for the INEDs.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Remuneration Committee at the Remuneration Committee
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2020:

FHEZEENTIERESMBESTEENK
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BEROANT - BAKBESETRNITRE
FHEZEeHHAEERITAFMAER
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EFRNTESFHIOES - R NEE
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HE2020F12 A31HILFE  FHEE
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BHEER - & (2) BB 2021 F R IEH
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R

No. of Remuneration Committee
meeting(s) attended/held

Name of Remuneration Committee member HE "BITHNENEZEES
FHZEEREHB =5 PN
YAN Fashan BUEE 1/1
HAN Xiaosheng BB A 1/1
LO Wa Kei Roy EER 1/1
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During the Year, the annual remuneration of the Company’s
senior management is within the following bands:

Remuneration band

FHENEE
HK$
ik

FR - ANRASHEEEABNFEFHINES
BT :

Number of senior management

SREEEAY

3,000,001-3,500,000
< 1,000,001

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. HAN Xiaosheng,
chairman of the Board and executive Director, with Mr. LIU
Jipeng and Mr. YAN Fashan, the INEDs, as members.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to (1)
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Group’s corporate strategy; (2) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (3) assess the
independence of INEDs; and (4) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of the Directors.

In the selection, appointment and re-appointment of the
Directors, the Nomination Committee will consider, revaluate and
select the candidate(s) based on meritocracy and with reference
to nomination criteria set out in the Nomination Policy, which
include:

1. reputation;

2. leaders as needed by the Company;

3.  the structure, size, composition and time requirements of
the Board;
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4, balance of talents, experience, independence and
knowledge possessed by the candidate, and whether he/
she is best suitable for coping with the challenges and
opportunities faced by the Group as well as fostering the
success of the Group;

B the Board Diversity Policy, among which, the background
of the candidate shall be considered;

6. balance of the number of the INEDs;

7.  term of services and continuity of the INEDs;

8. shareholders’ re-election of the Directors retiring by
rotation;

9. any conflict of interests between the Director and the
Group; and

10. any other relevant matters.

The nomination procedures for selection, appointment and
re-appointment of a Director are summarised as follows:

1. identifies or selects candidate(s) recommended to the
Nomination Committee, with or without assistance from
external agencies or the Company, pursuant to the
nomination criteria set out in the above paragraph;

2. may use any process it deems appropriate to evaluate
the candidate(s), which may include personal interviews,
background checks, presentations or written submissions
by the candidate(s) and third party references;

3. holds meeting(s) to consider and approve the matter or
make decisions by written resolutions;
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4.  provides to the Board with all the information required
including information set out in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules in relation to the candidate(s);

5. makes recommendation to the Board including the terms
and conditions of the appointment;

6. the Board deliberates and decides on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee;

7. appointment of Director should be confirmed by a letter
of appointment or director service agreement setting out
the key terms and conditions of the appointment of the
director; and

8. pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Listing Rules, where
shareholders are required to vote on electing or re-electing
a director or directors, the circular accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting should contain all the
information of the candidate(s) required under Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
perform the following duties:

— reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee and the Board Diversity Policy;

—  reviewed the size, structure and composition of the Board;

— assessed the independence of the INEDs; and

— recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
Directors.

92 CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

4 WEFERUFAFBEN  BF
EARAIE 13.51(2) AR R
AZER

5. REZSRLEEZZ(BRIHK
REHRME)

6. EFSREBRZZECNHEERZZ
MmERLREGBERE

7. EENZEREBZERAEER
Bz TAETE  LIBREBFRE
B EZ IR &

8. RIBEEWMMAIFE13.741& - FLIREE
BB EHER—NHSMNES
ETRR MERABARRERgRS
R P E R A LT AR RIS 13.51(2) 1§
MEZIRBEANAIBEER -

FRREZBEEHEITT - RERNET
THIBE :

— EHHIRATECREHENETY
Z AL IBUR

I

- EHNEFENHAE EBLKKEHA

AN -
=

—  FHEEMIFRITEEMELE K

- BMESNEBRESSRLEBRZ

N
=%
R ©



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Confinued)

TEERRE (E)

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Nomination Committee at the Nomination Committee meeting
during the Year:

TRITREAZBENERFALFRS
REgEENENR

No. of Nomination Committee
meeting(s) attended/held

Name of Nomination Committee member HE " BITHESEES
REZESEREHB =5 P
HAN Xiaosheng BB A 1/1
LIU Jipeng 214215 1/1
YAN Fashan BUEE 1/1

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published in a
timely manner, within three months and two months respectively
of the year end and the half-year period end.

The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the financial
statements is set out below. It should be read in conjunction
with, but distinguished from, the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 104 to 114 which acknowledges the reporting
responsibility of the auditor of the Group.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the annual report and financial statements of the Company,
ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair
presentation in accordance with Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.
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Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group has applied appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose the financial position of the
Group upon which the financial statements of the Group could
be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies of the
Group.

Safeguarding of Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are of the view
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate for the Group to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.
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External Auditor

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year a letter from the external auditor
confirming its independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the external auditor to consider the scope
of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness
of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit
Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditor.

The policy of the Group regarding the engagement of external
auditor for the various services listed below is as follows:

° Audit services — include audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by external
auditor.

° Audit-related services — include services that would
normally be provided by an external auditor but not
generally included in audit fees, for example, audits of the
pension plans of the Group, accounting advice related
to mergers and acquisitions, internal control reviews of
systems and/or processes, and issuance of special audit
reports for tax or other purposes. The external auditor is
to be invited to undertake those services that it must, or is
best placed, to undertake in its capacity as auditor.
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° Taxation — related services — include all tax compliance °
and tax planning services, except for those services which
are provided in connection with the audit. The Group uses
the services of the external auditor where it is best suited.
All other significant taxation related work is undertaken by
other parties as appropriate.

° Other services — include, for example, financial due .

diligence, review of actuarial reports and calculations,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and non-
financial systems consultations. The external auditor is
also permitted to assist Management and the internal
auditor with internal investigations and fact-finding into
alleged improprieties. These services are subject to specific
approval by the Audit Committee.

HEHRBEMORY — BEMBNS
EHRERBHRERE  ETEHEE
EZABORE - AEBZEIE
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e General consulting services — the external auditor is not o —REMRKE — INEZBETHE
eligible to provide services involving general consulting RE—REMREHER -
work.
Auditor’s Remuneration ZEETEH &
The Group engaged Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited as the external REBZEXIAEESMEBABRA
auditor of the Company for the Year. The fee in respect of audit AIAARRAIFARINEZEAD - KB
services and non-audit services provided by Yongtuo Fuson CPA S EBMERA T R EEEBARRE
Limited and its affiliates for the Year were as follows: ARMEZRELIEEEZRE BRI
T~
Amount
Nature of services R #12E |
HK$’000
BT T
Audit services EZRFE 2,635,000
Non-audit services IEZ R —
Total HEt 2,635,000

96 CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Confinued)

TEERRE (E)

EMPLOYEES’ CODE OF CONDUCT

The Group places utmost importance on employees’ ethical,
personal and professional standards. Every employee is required
to undertake to adhere to the code of conduct of the Group, and
is expected to achieve the highest standards set out in the code
of conduct including avoiding conflict of interest, discrimination
or harassment and bribery and corruption etc. Employees are
required to report any non-compliance with the code of conduct
to the management.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communication with the investment community during the year.
Through its chairman, the Group responds to requests for
information and queries from the investment community. A policy
on the shareholders’ communication, which is available on the
website of the Company, was adopted and is subject to regular
review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness and compliance
with the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
on the Group to the Shareholders through the publication of
notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports.
An up-to-date consolidated version of the Bye-laws is published
on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”). Moreover, additional information on
the Group is also available to the Shareholders and stakeholders
through the “Investor Relations” page on the website of the
Company.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on its efforts
to promote transparency and foster investor relations. Comments
and suggestions to the Board or the Company are welcome and
can be addressed to the chairman of the Board by mail to 64/F,
Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convening a special
general meeting

The Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings
of the Company. Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, the shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the issued share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights at general meetings of the Company have statutory rights
to call for special general meetings and put forward agenda items
for consideration by the Shareholders, by sending the company
secretary at the registered office address a written request
for such general meetings, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned together with the proposed agenda items.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

The Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders or of at least one
hundred shareholders in number, may put forward proposals for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company by sending
to the company secretary of the Company at the registered
office address a written request for such proposals according
to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act. All
substantive resolutions at general meetings are decided on a poll
which is conducted by the company secretary and scrutinised
by the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company. The
poll results are published on the websites of the Company and
HKEX. In addition, regular updated financial, business and other
information on the Group is made available on the website of the
Company for the Shareholders and stakeholders.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. This policy aims to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholder(s) whilst preserving
the Group’s liquidity for its business development. The Board has
complete discretion on whether to pay a dividend, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval, where applicable. The Company’s ability
to pay dividends will depend upon, among other things, the
Group’s operations, liquidity position and capital requirements,
and such other factors as the Board may deem relevant. The
payment of dividend is also subject to the Company’s applicable
rules and regulations as well as the bye-laws of the Company.
There is no assurance that in any given year a dividend will be
paid by the Company.

The Board will review this policy from time to time and may
adopt changes as appropriate.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The management of the Company manages risks effectively
through identifying every potential issue that may affect the
business of the Company, thus ensure providing reasonable
assurance in achieving the objectives of the Group within
a sustainable range. The Group adopts the Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) to implement the comprehensive risk management.
The management of the Company reviews and updates the
framework and procedures on risk management and internal
control annually under the structure of connecting the four
categories of entity’s objectives (strategy, operation, reporting
and compliance) with the eight interrelated components
(internal environment, objective setting, event identification, risk
assessment, risk response, control activities, information and
communication and monitoring), improves them with various
recommendations by identifying the corresponding risks and
internal control guidelines respectively in respect of the key
process of the Group. The management of the Company
organises a self-assessment annually, the key process owner of
the Group prioritise the risks under his/her respective business
and acknowledges the effectiveness of the corresponding
internal control procedures, and makes prompt remediation for
internal control weaknesses, if any.
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The management of the Company has established a key risk
register for significant risks, by identifying the root cause,
risk impact and risk response, and developing respective risk
index to monitor significant risks through periodic collection of
operational data on a monthly basis. Risk alert will be promptly
issued with recommended risk response in controlling risks when
the risk index exceed the predefined threshold value.

The management of the Company has established appropriate
internal control procedures against key risks, which mainly
include the followings:

1)  Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the
management of the Company and subject to review and
approval by both the executive management team and the
Board. Reforecasts for the current year are prepared on
a quarterly basis, compared for variances to the budget.
When setting budgets and reforecasts, the management
identifies, evaluates and reports on the likelihood and
potential financial impact of significant business risks.

2) The Board review monthly management reports on
the financial results and key operating statistics of the
business. In addition, the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company holds periodic
meetings with the executive management team and senior
management of business operations to review business
performance, significant business risk sensitivities and
strategies. The chief financial officer also holds monthly
meetings with financial controllers of business operations
to review the monthly performance against budget and
forecast, and to address accounting and finance related
matters.
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The Company maintains a centralised cash management
system for its subsidiaries’ operations and the finance
department of the Company oversees the investment
and lending activities of the Group. Treasury reports on
cash and liquid investments of the Group and movements
thereof are distributed dalily.

The chief financial officer of the Company has established
guidelines and procedures for the approval and control of
expenditures. Operating expenditures are subject to overall
budget control and are controlled within each business with
approval levels set by reference to the level of responsibility
of each executive and officer. Capital expenditures are
subject to overall control within the annual budget review
and approval process, and more specific control and
approval prior to commitment by the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company or the executive Directors are required for
unbudgeted expenditures and material capital expenditures
within the approved budget.

The Procedures for Reporting Possible Improprieties in
Matters of Financial Reporting, Internal Control or Other
Matters has already been published on the website of the
Company for encouraging the employees of the Company
and other stakeholders who are dealing with the Group
to report to the Company any suspected improprieties,
misconducts or malpractices within the Group. The Group
will assure that the whistle-blower is free from any unfair
dismissal or punishment for any authentic whistle-blowing
made according to the Procedures. The internal auditor of
the Company will promptly follow up the whistle blowing
incident through specific and secured whistle blowing email
and inform the executive Directors and the Audit Committee
on the investigation results and the recommendations
proposed will be carried out by respective department.
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6) The Company has already established the procedures and
internal control measures for the respective handling and
dissemination of inside information. After any price sensitive
inside information has or shall have been known to the
executives of the Group during the process of performing
their duties under reasonable conditions, such price sensitive
inside information shall be disclosed to the public as soon
as practicable, unless the “Safe Harbor Provisions” under
the SFO are applicable. Inside information will be announced
through the websites of the Company and the HKEX, or
announced by other means or methods as prescribed by
the Listing Rules from time to time, such announcement is
subject to the approval of the Board before announcement.
The inside information may only be announced through
other channels after being announced in the form of an
announcement through the websites of the Company and
the HKEX.

The system and procedures established are aimed at managing
risks and rather than eliminating all risks. Such system could only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance. Such system
cannot eliminate completely the consequences resulted from
unpredictable risks and uncontrollable events (such as natural
disaster, fraud and misjudgment).

The internal auditor of the Company shall report directly to the
Audit Committee, and provides independent assurance as to the
existence and effectiveness of the risk management activities and
controls in the business operations of the Group. Depending on
the nature of business and risk exposure of individual business
units, the scope of work performed by the internal auditor of
the Company includes financial and operations audit, regular
and surprise audits, fraud investigations and construction audit.
Using risk assessment methodology and taking into account the
dynamics of the activities of the Group, the internal auditor of the
Company derives its yearly audit plan which is approved by the
Audit Committee, and reassessed during the year as needed to
ensure that adequate resources are deployed and the objectives
of the plan are met. The internal auditor of the Company is
responsible for assessing the internal control system of the Group,
formulating an impartial opinion on the system, and reporting its
findings to the management of the Company, as well as following
up on all reports to ensure that all issues have been properly
remediated. The Audit Committee holds two meetings annually in
respect of the review results and opinions from the internal auditor
of the Company against the risk management and internal control
system, and reports the review results to the Board.
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In addition, a regular dialogue is maintained with the external
auditor of the Group so that both are aware of the significant
factors which may affect their respective scope of work, and
review the reports regarding the internal control and relevant
financial reports submitted by external auditor and take
appropriate actions.

The Board confirmed that it has the responsibility to maintain
an effective risk management and internal control system of the
Group to protect the interests of the Shareholders and preserve
the assets of the Group, and review the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group once
every year, including financial control, operational control and
compliance control. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which covered risk management
functions and all material financial, operational and compliance
controls, and is satisfied that such systems are effective and
adequate. In addition, it has also reviewed and is satisfied with
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
the staff of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function of the Group, and their training programmes and
budget.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 BETHRE

3L 3o

YONG TUO

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 115 to
300, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B B AR S (R

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss
attributable to shareholders of the Company of HK$926,596,000
and a net operating cash outflow of HK$311,009,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and, as of that date, the Group
had properties under development of HK$15,829,178,000 which
were classified as current assets while expected to be completed
and recovered after one year from the end of the reporting
period. Excluding these properties under development, which
are illiquid in nature, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$7,419,990,000 as at 31 December
2020. Further, the Group had bank and other borrowings
and other payables amounting to HK$5,575,632,000 and
HK$1,693,015,000, respectively which will fall due within twelve
months of the date of the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group’s businesses in real estate development in
the U.S. and energy sector in the Indonesia are capital intensive
in nature and funding the continuous development of these
businesses would require access to substantial capital in the
foreseeable future and as at 31 December 2020, the Group
had capital commitments contracted but not provided for
were HK$1,460,539,000. As stated in Note 3(b), these events
or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note
3(b), indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (Continued)
BY &R RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B B AR S (R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of investment properties under construction —
Los Angeles

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements

Included in the balances of investment properties are Group’s
investment properties in Los Angeles, the United States of
America (the “U.S.”) which are under development as at 31
December 2020 amounting to HK$4,211,213,000 and are
measured at cost less any impairment loss due to inability to
measure fair value less cost to complete reliably. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, no impairment loss was recognised
in consolidated income statement.

We identified the valuation of the Group’s investment properties
under construction in Los Angeles is significant to our audit
because the balance of these investment properties under
construction represented approximately 17% of the total assets
of the Group, and the determination of recoverable amount is
based on several key inputs that require significant management
judgments, assumptions, estimations and other inputs. The key
inputs of estimated recoverable amount of these investment
properties under construction are expected rental income,
growth rate and discount rate.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of the
valuation of investment properties under construction in Los
Angeles included:

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

— evaluating the reasonableness of the key inputs used
including market data and adjusting factors used by the
management; and

— evaluating the reasonableness of significant assumptions
including future revenue and margins.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B %A & (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment of construction in progress under
properties, plant and equipment

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

The construction in progress under properties, plant and
equipment located in the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”)
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$2,774,013,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no impairment was
recognised in consolidated income statement.

We identified the impairment assessment of construction in
progress under properties, plant and equipment is significant
to our audit because the balance of construction in progress
represented approximately 11% of the total assets of the Group,
and the impairment assessment requires significant management
judgments, assumptions and other inputs for the estimation of
future recoverable amount.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of the
impairment of construction in progress under properties, plant
and equipment included:

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

— evaluating the reasonableness of the key inputs used
including market data and adjusting factors used by the
management; and

— evaluating the reasonableness of significant assumption
including future revenue and margins.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B B AR S (R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group’s properties under development located in Los
Angeles, New York and Hawaii, the U.S. as at 31 December
2020 with an aggregate amount of HK$15,829,178,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss
of HK$617,779,000 was recognised in consolidated income
statement.

The Group and its subsidiary, Oceanwide Plaza LLC, are the
subject of certain disputes with third parties with respect of the
Group’s properties under development project located in Los
Angeles, the U.S. as outlined in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

We identified the net realisable value assessment of properties
under development which is under construction in the U.S. are
significant to our audit because the balance of the concerned
properties under development represented approximately
63% of the total assets of the Group, and the net realisable
value assessment require significant management judgments,
assumptions and other inputs for estimation of the expected
selling price and cost to completion.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the net realisable value of properties under development in Los
Angeles, New York and Hawaii, the U.S. included:

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

— evaluating the reasonableness of the key inputs used
including market data and adjusting factors used by the
management; and

— evaluating the reasonableness of significant assumption
including future revenue and margins.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (Continued)
BY &R RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Further, we also (i) challenged and assessed the estimates and
assumption made by the management regarding to disputes
with the third parties with respect to real estate development
project located in Los Angeles, the U.S.; (ii) discussed with
the management and their technical experts, internal legal
and external counsels regarding the progress of the disputes
and their view on the likely outcome of the disputes and the
magnitude of the potential exposures etc; and (i) assessed the
adequacy of the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements on 24 April 2020.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B B AR S (R

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the
Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors of the Company in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (Continued)
BY &R RS ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B B AR S (R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BY &R RS ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lee Yan Fai.

Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Yan Fai

Practising Certificate Number PO6078

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e s R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 2020 12 A 31 B ILFE

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B aE BT T BT T
Revenue WA 7 99,996 113,027
Cost of sales SHE AR (9,437) (9,258)
Gross profit EF 90,559 103,769
Other net (losses)/gains HhF(E8),/FE 8(a) (670,390) 16,437
Selling and distribution costs SHE M SRR (2,744) (5,268)
Administrative expenses THER (161,744) (162,804)
Operating loss EEER (744,319) (47,866)
Interest expense B 10 (188,496) (6,066)
Loss before tax RREBLAIES 18 8 (932,815) (53,932)
Income tax expense FrB®i sz i 9 (4,919) (17,962)
Loss for the year FREE (937,734) (71,894)
Loss attributable to: U (R EE -

— Shareholders of the Company — RN FIRRER (926,596) (58,044)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (11,138) (13,850)
(937,734) (71,894)

Basic and diluted loss per share EATBRREMO TR
attributable to shareholders of EXRBEHESR HK(5.74) cent  HK(0.36) cent
the Company 11 B (5.74) 1L B (0.36)1L

The notes on pages 126 to 300 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020 12 A 31 B ILFE

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT B F T
Loss for the year FREE (937,734) (71,894)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses): H#tZ2EKE (BX) :
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently ~— BE#EAJEFH 7 HEE
to profit or loss: BamfyEE -
Translating financial statements of foreign BMEBINETE IR
operations:
— Gains/(losses) taken to reserves — A ARENFE(EER) 8,497 (79,891)
Debt investments at fair value through other X AR BET AEME B
comprehensive income: HEBRE
— Net valuation gains taken to reserves — EFARENHREFNE - 1,357
— Net gains of financial assets at fair value — REERBAENRFERER
through other comprehensive income BIRA R BEFT A KA
previously recognised in reserves FHEWNENY B EEEN
reclassified to consolidated income DEREREWREKOTF
statement upon disposal M5 - (4,128)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 8 E#H P IEEEwaEH -
loss:
Equity investments at fair value through other & AR EEFAHEMEEUWZ
comprehensive income: IR AR E -
— Net valuation losses taken to reserves — FFARENGEFEE (97,092) (104,309)
Other comprehensive expenses for the FRARBEEMEEMAX’
year, net of tax (88,595) (186,971)
Total comprehensive expenses for the FRE2EMAZEE
year (1,026,329) (258,865)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

meEmElkER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &£ 2020 12 A 31 H I F[E

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BB FT
Total comprehensive expenses DNTEENEZEE A%
attributable to:
— Shareholders of the Company — AR ERRE (1,006,708) (239,415)
— Non-controlling interests — IR A (19,621) (19,450)
(1,026,329) (258,865)
# There was no tax effect on each component of the other # HE2020F & 2019F 12 B31 HILEE -

comprehensive income/(expenses) for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Hih2mdke (B 05 AR5 M
BRBEE -

The notes on pages 126 to 300 are an integral part of these 126 2 F 300 AWM st AEREGA BB
consolidated financial statements. WM —E o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

At 31 December 2020 7420204 12 A 31 H

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BB FoT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Properties, plant and equipment VI - R LG 16 2,857,400 2,846,078
Investment properties KEYE 17 5,508,739 5,127,122
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 18(a) 47,885 63,697
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFAEMEZE
other comprehensive income W= T5E E 19 2,409 96,647
Deposits, prepayments and other e BRREREM
receivables FEW R IE 20 610,241 786,201
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTEE 25 32,156 11,995
... 9058830 8,931,740
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BERPME 21 15,829,178 15,690,742
Trade receivables FEULBR 3R 22 5,247 50
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BNRIEREA
receivables Al E QL] 20 82,386 103,243
Restricted cash ZRHRE 23 118,354 117,889
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 23 35,235 70,401
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 16,070,400 15,982,325
Total assets BEERE 25,129,230 24,914,065
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to shareholders ZAAT]REEGRER
of the Company
Share capital & 26 1,614,265 1,614,265
Reserves fF 7,514,990 8,518,618
9,129,255 10,132,883
Non-controlling interests FEERER 399,801 419,422
Total equity AR 9,529,056 10,552,305
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

e M BARR R (&

At 31 December 2020 72020412 A 31 H

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
o5 BT T BB TFoT
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings BE 27 1,015,271 3,753,133
Lease liabilities HEBE 18(b) 41,464 44,706
Amount due to an intermediate e — B R AR
holding company NGIE S 33(g) 6,579,626 6,805,367
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFSHAE 25 302,601 275,534
e T988062 10,878,740
Current liabilities REEE
Deposits received, other payables BliRe - HAES
and accruals FIB R ERTTER 24 2,022,712 1,812,572
Borrowings BE 27 5,575,632 1,609,932
Lease liabilities HERE 18(b) 30,937 38,125
Current income tax liabilities MBS AaE 31,931 22,391
... 1661212 3,483,020
Total liabilities EE8E 15,600,174 14,361,760
Total equity and liabilities ERRABEHESE 25,129,230 24,914,065

The notes on pages 126 to 300 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 300 were

approved by the Board of Directors.

HAN Xiaosheng

EEL
Chairman
E4

£ 126 AE % 300 AW RAALGZE IS
e

HEREN—A

o

F115 BEEF 300 BW4A B HRER T
BEGHE -

LIU Guosheng

2= H
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 2020F 12 A 31 HILFE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B =E BT T BT T
Operating activities R
Cash used in operating activities KRt EKA ~ BEAHE
before finance costs, tax paid and LEBESEHNLE
changes in working capital XEBFARS 28(a) (94,130) (53,574)
Changes in working capital BEEESMED 28(b) (218,343) (409,912)
Cash used in operations LETARSE (312,473) (463,486)
Interest received BUF B 6,776 17,509
Dividend received B S 3,476 2,404
Tax paid ERHIE (8,788) (5,327)
Net cash used in operating REXBFAREFHE
activities (311,009) (448,900)
Investing activities REHE
Proceeds from disposal of REHEME - #eER
properties, plant and equipment FEH TS RIE 88 901
Purchases of properties, plant and BEEYHE  HBERF
equipment (14,013) (13,940)
Additions to investment properties NEREYE (77,565) (511,830)
Purchases of financial assets at fair BERABEFAELM
value through other comprehensive THBRNVEEE
income (2,854) -
Purchases of note receivables BEREKEE - (170,015)
Proceeds from early redemption of REBEREKEED
note receivables FTiS 308 168,075 —
Proceeds from disposal of financial RKALERAABERTA
assets at fair value through other Eofh 2 T W R B9 B T
comprehensive income BEMFTSRIE - 114,531
Proceeds from disposal of financial REREZRAREBEFTA
assets at fair value through profit BRI BEEENFTS
or loss SRIE - 67,364
Increase in other non-current assets EH M IERENE ELE N - (7,835)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted SR &R S (3G M) R
cash (24) 186,974
Net cash generated from/(used in) REXBHEE (FA)
investing activities HIRE FEE 73,707 (333,850)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

RERTRER(E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 20204 12 A 31 HIFFE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
hr=s BT BT
Financing activities REER
Proceeds from bank and other loans 2R B $E17 & E it & FEY
Fr8RIR 28(c) 1,699,879 3,453,277
Repayment of bank and other loans BERITREMER 28(c) (796,203) (4,251,955)
Repurchase and cancellation of FEAEPSEE R Il e
convertible note 28(c) (26,545) —
Proceeds from borrowings from an RE— R EZERA R
intermediate holding company BEMATSRIE 28(c) 1,662,362 3,888,627
Repayment of borrowings to an [\ — A AR A REE
intermediate holding company BE 28(c) (1,927,261) (2,562,987)
Proceeds from loans from fellow RERZREHBRRERD
subsidiaries FriS k18 28(c) 184,000 8,000
Interest paid ERHER (576,921) (400,660)
Repayment of principal and interest EEHEEBENTESM
elements of lease liabilities MEES S 28(c) (22,138) (22,134)
Decrease in restricted cash R BRI 4,298 105,304
Net cash generated from financing BEXBEAELHRSFE
activities 201,471 217,472
Net decrease in cash and cash RERASEBEYRLFEHE
equivalents (35,831) (565,278)
Cash and cash equivalents at M1A1HNRERES
1 January SEW 70,401 677,983
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash HeRESEEPELRAE
and cash equivalents /(E18) 665 (42,304)
Cash and cash equivalents at MR12A31BENERER
31 December ReZEEY 35,235 70,401
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

mEBEERER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 2020 F 12 A 31 HIEFE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T JBEEF T
Analysis of unsecured and BEARTZRGIRE
unrestricted cash, liquid funds REEER EHREDT
and listed investments
Cash at banks and on hand IRITERNFEERS 35,235 70,401
Cash and cash equivalents BeFReEEY 35,235 70,401
Unsecured and unrestricted publicly MKW ATRS FHES
traded listed equity securities LETRERS 2,409 —
Total unsecured and unrestricted BEFERTZIREES
cash, liquid funds and listed FBESR LHREHE
investments 37,644 70,401

The notes on pages 126 to 300 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 20204 12 A 31 H ILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Non-
controlling Total
inferests equity

FATHRRE FiRER  EaiE
Fair value Retained
through other ~ Converible Other profts/
Share Share Exchange ~ comprehensive ot equity reserves  (accumulated
capital premium resenve  income resnve resene (Note) losses) ~ Sub-total
RAAEERL  TAREE HheE  RadE/
k& kiR iR ZH2TNRE Eodk (W2 (E6E) It
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000.
o HBa B B Ba B B Hu Bh B
At1 January 2020 HUNETE1R 1,614,265 8,161,541 146,33 (173,009) B (35,222) 305068 10,132,880 {942 10,552,306
Other comprehensieincome/ ~~~ ER2ENE/ (B)
(expenses)
Transing rencil saemensof oy RESNERERRE
Operations:
- Ganslosses ten o esenes — ARG /| BR) - - 16,090 - - 8 - 16980 6483 8407
Fqutyinvestments ot valie hrowgh -~ (A4 BIEFA ST NE
ot compehensie ncome; HRERE:
-~ Net valationosestken fo - HABENEERER
TBENVES - - - (07,09 - - - (o709 - (or0%)
Netincomeexpense] recogised ety B ERR B
in equty: (Bx): - - 16,090 (97,099) - 80 - (80,119 (648)) (66,5%)
Lossfor ey £ - - - - - - R
Total comprehensive ncome/ G/ (FR 48
fpensey - - - B0 6 (ORDY (9 (s
Witenback o wnlimed diicends ~ BEARERIRE - - - - - - 5 5% - 5
Tesy bebigen propetes plnt~~ 0% BERRE 1
adeouipment endserigtisand  ERENRRENEHER
nvesiment propertes - - - - - 45 - 450 - 450
Repurcaseand canclton of comverie B RHET AREE
et 276) (Fzkamg) - - - - (1500 - - (1500 - (1500)
Tota other ransactions with ERNRERINENE
sharcholders recognised directlyin ~ BRHE5EE
equity - - - - (1,300) 450 5% 3,080 - 3,080
At 31 December 2020 RONERASA 1,614,265 8,161,541 162,424 (2ro.401) 21,601 (40810) (330,665) 9,129,265 399,801 9,520,056
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

mERERSBR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &£ 2020 12 A 31 HILF[E

Non-
confroling Tofel
Atributabl to shareholders of the Company Inerests quly
BDAREES FoREE  ERuE
Falr velug
froughoter ~ Converile Other
Share Share Eichenge ~ comprehiensie — note equiy TESenes Retaned
captal premium TeSene  ncome resene fesene (Note) rofts Sub-otel
FOREET. ARG EbfE
RE RERE  ERBE RMADMERE BB ) ReHE Pt
HES 000 Hks 00 HS 000 He§ 00 HES 000 HS000 HS 000 HeS 000 HeS 000 HS 000
i Hg B Bh Ba Ba B B #a B
At danuary 2019, peviousl repored 120191 A1 B (I 23R) 1614265 8,161 541 004m (65929 B (36,007 w10 10373568 1882 1081240
Recogion on acopon f HHERS 16 B RB S EE 10%
K - - i - - - (150 127 - L
At 1 January 2019, as restated HUM0E1E 1A (B85 1614265 8,161 541 2040 (65929 AN (36,007 0380 103121 1882 10811,163
Other comprehensive expenses) B 2E(BR) /U
income
Trnseing franc seements of ol 2571 RE AR5
Operafons:
— Losses taen fo esenes - \BRNEE - - (14119 - - 1) - (14291 B0 M8
Debtivestments o vl hough A4 BEFASHATNE
ot compehensie ncome; HERRE:
-~ Netviluafon gas taen o - TABENBESTE
1ESEIVES - - - 1367 - - - 1357 - 137
- Netgainsof enclasslsat fr -~ — R ER BN ERS
vile though ot compehensie A4 BE KR
ioome preiusly reognised ThatihaRED
rosones edessed o consoideed BESANERAEHR
income statement upon disposel - - - (t128 - - - (t128 - (129
Fqutyimestments at avalie trough 02 BB A2 TS
othr comprehensie ncome HRE%E:
— Net valaton lossestken fo — i BENRERER
s - . S (M - . S S (wy
Net eupenses ecogiseddiectlyn equiy. R EERINFER - - T 0] - i) - (181379 B0 (186971
Loss for theyear i - - - - - - P80 B804 (13650 11894
Total comprehensive expenses ~ 2EERAE - - T 0] - i) GO 04 (19450 (258565
iten beckof unclamed didends.~~ BBREERE - - - - - - 7 7 - 7
Total other transactons with ERNERRINEHERR
sharcholders recognised directlyin 1548
iy - - - - - - 1 1 - 1
At31 December 2019 HOOE12A31 1614.260 8,181,541 146,334 (173,009 812 [3%.20) 83 10132683 0942 10952305
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

REERRBR(E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &£ 2020 12 A 31 H I F[E

Note:

Other reserves comprise other properties revaluation reserve, merger

reserve, capital redemption reserve and other reserve.

B aE

HiFEREREMOXEGHERE - A 0HE

B N8 O] (i B AL i

Other
properties Capital
revaluation Merger redemption Other

reserve reserve reserve reserve Total

HAbyp EAREE
BEfhfEE GO ] Hitb & mEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT BT T BT T
At 1 January 2019 201941 A1H 7,998 (913) 3,558 (65,690) (55,047)

At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H

and 1 January 2020 % 2020%1H1H 7,823 (913) 3,558 (65,690) (55,222)
At 31 December 2020 742020612831 H 13,235 (913) 3,558 (65,690) (49,810)

The notes on pages 126 to 300 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in property investments in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), real estate development in the United States of
America (the “United States” or “U.S.”), development in the
energy sector in the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”) and
finance investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and the shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”). The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s parent is Oceanwide Holdings International
Company Limited, a private limited company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). ;2 /8B MD ER A
A) (Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd., “Oceanwide Holdings”,
a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange) is an indirect controlling shareholder of
the Company. The directors of the Company consider
its ultimate parent is Tohigh Holding Company Limited
(a private limited company incorporated in the PRC) and
the ultimate controlling party of the Company is Mr. Lu
Zhigiang.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39

and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

In addition, the Group has early applied the
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions.

The nature and the impact of the application of
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year are described below:

(a)

REFEBREERNEBYK
BEENNBE]

RAFE  NEBTRYUERE
S HRANE EARLE B
BaEEABSERNERT R
LNTHEASFTMASEHXE
MBS BREENE
] BEAEET 20201 A 1
A =k LA 1& [ 4R &9 4F J2 HA R 58 )
HR

BAGRERE
REBGE
E8MIEFT

AR TSR LR
FE 3R]

BAVBRSEED  FIREE
Fo% - BEE HE
B2 39 5% K2

158 BERNEZR
Al

FHEHTER

BB BHRE LD
ENEHCH|

o AEBERFRAES
ISR ELERNFE16RIETHTE
REREEERR

RAFERBRAEEYBR
SRR DERERT REBAM
BmEENETHNHEERTE
wr
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(@) Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on the application of Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRSs

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters
on measurement and reporting financial performance,
new guidance on the derecognition of assets and
liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the
roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the
concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard.

The Conceptual Framework did not have any

significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.” The
amendments also clarify that materiality depends
on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information,
in the context of the financial statements taken as a
whole.

The application of the amendments in the current
year had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments clarify that
while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not
required for an integrated set of activities and assets
to qualify as a business. To be considered a business,
an acquired set of activities and assets must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs.

2 EREAVEBERSE

(a)

L

(TEBMBREZER D) (&)
RAEERH RN E B
|ERA M ()

BREBETERFEIRRE
BEHERAESREANESE
1EET Ry &

AEEERAFEERERE
BEEE 1R LT ESE
EAF8H/MIEF - KIER] B
EXR-—FRHEHFEE HH
(B - SRR R E
HARAEEHETE —RF
BB HRROETEEAEER
ZEREERFEREERA
B TS E R RO B 5 R AF H YR
R BZERBEAK] - %IER]
NEFHERRBMERERNEE
W BAEBURREHOIEE
FIEE(BEFRREMERGEE
®/A) -

RAFERAZIET HERA R

BREEMBEHREEREIN
REBEHEZETHIZE

AEBRAFEERERZE
Rl RIEFTRE  BEXBRE
BEAAEL BE-ELESD
RELEEERELTTAE
RBRER - FTRER — &
PREEZEVABE-ARA
k—EBEERREYHRBRER
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1R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Continued)

The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs. The amendments also introduce
additional guidance that helps to determine whether a
substantive process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
The election on whether to apply the optional
concentration test is available on transaction-by-
transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group but may impact
future periods should the Group make any acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments modify
specific hedge accounting requirements to allow
hedge accounting to continue for affected hedges
during the period of uncertainty before the hedged
items or hedging instruments affected by the current
interest rate benchmarks are amended as a result
of the on-going interest rate benchmark reform. The
amendments are relevant to the Group given that it
applies hedge accounting to its benchmark interest
rate exposures.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as the Group’s does
not have designated hedged items.

Impacts on early application of Amendment to
HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first
time in the current year. The amendment introduces
a new practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession
is a lease modification. The practical expedient only
applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 that meets all of the
following conditions:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(@) Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(Continued)

— the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

— any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

— there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes
were not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver
of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to
the opening retained profits at 1 January 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG 2 [
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (r
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but (b)

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new

and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts'

Reference to the Conceptual Framework’
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Classffication of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021.

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to
extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Statement of compliance and basis of
measurement

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRS”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the revaluation of investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, which are carried at fair value at subsequent
reporting date.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the directors
of the Company to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 6.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

3 mREE

(a)

BHBRHARITEEE

RRBWERA BB IRKTIRR
BB ASRMHAEE
REBMBHREER BEE
AAEATER G EL DR
RE(TXRE BEMBRE
R D AR EE R BHEDI(FH
6B )MBEREMREMRE - It
Sh - IR BTSRRI EAEE
BMEXZHMBRABESF LD
MARERERRESTH - £
B BRRTIIRE L RAERE
B EREER M RS BB
NABEIIRNKREMEER
MBERAABEFAEMEER
s B ERROD ©

RBRTAB M B HRE LR
MBHRRARAE TRARSE
e REMAREE G EE
BREPITAARBESELH
i o BRASLES S MBS HH 2k
REMIHEGAVBHREREAE
FENBRLMAFHOHER
P aE 6 P EE -

JBE S2 AR AR — AR 3% M am R
BN REN 2R EEFE -

FZERAERAT 2020 Fi

135



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Going concern

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
incurred a net loss attributable to the shareholders
of the Company of HK$926,596,000 (2019:
HK$58,044,000) and a net operating cash outflow
of HK$311,009,000 (2019: HK$448,900,000)
and as of that date, the Group had properties
under development of HK$15,829,178,000 (2019:
HK$15,690,742,000) which were classified as current
assets while expected to be completed and recovered
after one year from the end of reporting period.
Excluding these properties under development, which
are illiquid in nature, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$7,419,990,000
(2019: HK$3,191,437,000) as at 31 December 2020.
Further, the Group had bank and other borrowings
and other payables (comprising deposits received,
other payables and accruals) of HK$5,575,632,000
(2019: HK$1,609,932,000) and HK$1,693,015,000
(2019: HK$1,367,623,000), respectively which will
fall due within twelve months of the date of the
consolidated financial statements and details of
which are respectively described in Notes 27 and
24. In addition, the Group’s businesses in real estate
development in the U.S. and energy sector in the
Indonesia are capital intensive in nature and funding
the continuous development of these businesses
would require access to substantial capital in the
foreseeable future and as at 31 December 2020,
the Group had capital commitments contracted but
not provided for were HK$1,460,539,000 (2019:
HK$3,664,310,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Going concern (Continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. In view of these circumstances, the directors
of the Company have taken careful consideration
to the future liquidity, the Group’s committed
commitments and construction progress of the
projects in the U.S. and Indonesia, the performance
of the Group and its available sources of financing in
assessing whether the Group has sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern for the
next twelve months from the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

In order to improve the Group’s financial position and
the liquidity pressure, the directors of the Company
have taken the following measures and actions:

()  On 2 September 2020, the Group has entered
into a loan financing term sheet together with
subsequent amendments to the term sheet
with a third party for a loan of approximately
US$900.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,977.3 million) for financing the completion
of the Group’s real estate development project
in Los Angeles, the U.S. and paying off all
current debts to the creditors for the project
(“Project Financing Plan”) and details of which
are set out in Note 17;

(i)  On 22 March 2021, the Group obtained a letter
of undertaking for provision of financial support
to the Company from Oceanwide Holdings,
whereby Oceanwide Holdings agrees to provide
sufficient funds to the Group so that the Group
will be able to meet all financial obligations as
they fall due in the coming twelve months from
the date of the consolidated financial statements
(the “Financing Support”); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Going concern (Continued)

(iiiy  On 29 March 2021, the Group entered into a
memorandum of understanding with a third party
to dispose of the Group’s three Hawaii property
projects (“Projects Disposal”) and details of
which are set out in Note 21.

Furthermore, the directors of the Company have also
implemented or are in the process of implementing
a number of other measures and plans to mitigate
the liquidity pressure, including but not limited to, the
following:

(i) For the loans which will be matured within twelve
months after the end of the reporting period,
the Group has been in active convincing lenders
for a debt restructuring of the Group’s existing
outstanding borrowings including interest to
revise certain key terms and conditions of
the original facility agreements, such as the
extension of the principals and interest payment
schedules for the Group’s existing borrowings
(the “Debt Restructuring Plan”); and

(i)  Together with the Financing Support and Project
Financing Plan, the Group is ongoing to seek
additional bank and other borrowings from the
banks, independent financial institutions and
other counterparties to finance the settlement of
its existing financial obligations, commitments
and future operating and capital expenditures,
as well as to maintain sufficient cash flows
for the Group’s operations (collectively, the
“Financing Plan”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Going concern (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s cash flow projections prepared by the
management of the Company. The cash flow
projections cover a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2020. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that, taking into account
the abovementioned actions, plans and measures, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations
and commitments as and when they fall due within
twelve months from 31 December 2020. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the management of the Company
will be able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group’s ability to generate adequate financing and
operating cash flow through the following:

()  Successful finalisation and execution of the
Projects Disposal;

(i) Successful execution of the Debt Restructuring
Plan and Financing Plan in refinancing and
renewing existing borrowings and in obtaining
of new and additional sources of funding as and
when needed; and

(i)  Successful generation of operating cash flows
and obtaining additional sources of financing by
the Group, other than those mentioned above,
to finance the settlement of its existing financial
obligations, commitments and future operating
and capital expenditures, as well as to maintain
sufficient cash flows for the Group’s operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Going concern (Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned
plans and measures, it might not be able to continue
operate as a going concern, and adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying values
of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This following note provides a list of the significant
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the group
consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(@) Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquire, the equity interests
issued by the Group, the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing
equity interest in the subsidiary. |dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquire on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquirer’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquire
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the date when the control is
transferred to the Group to the date when control
ceases.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between () the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors and the chief financial officer that

make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

Changes in the fair value of debt and equity
securities denominated in foreign currency and
classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are analysed
between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security
and/or other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in the income statement while other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equity instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported in the income
statement as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
are included in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group’s entities

The results and financial position of all the
Group’s entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in the foreign exchange reserve.

Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss
of group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group’s net investment in the
foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group’s entities (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised
in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment comprise mainly
freehold land, construction in progress, buildings,
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and
equipment, and motor vehicles. Properties, plant
and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes its purchase price and expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Properties, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value less accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the term of the
relevant leases, whichever is

shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 3to 7 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 510 8 years

Freehold land is stated at historical cost and not
depreciated less any recognised impairment loss.

Gain or loss on disposal of a property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

The assets’ useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each date of statement of financial
position.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents properties, plant
and equipment under construction and pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings, the cost of plant and
machinery, employee benefit expenses, professional
fees and interest charges arising from borrowings
used to finance these assets during the period of
construction or installation and testing, if any. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and are available for intended
use. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of properties, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is estimated taking into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

The costs of properties under development comprise
costs of land use rights, construction costs,
employee benefit expenses, borrowing costs and loan
arrangement fee capitalised for qualifying assets and
professional fees incurred during the development
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, that are not occupied
by the Group, are held for long-term rental yields,
capital appreciation or both. Properties that are being
constructed or developed for future long-term rental
yields, capital appreciation or both are also classified
as investment properties. Investment properties
are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and fair value cannot be reliably measured at that
time, and therefore are stated at cost. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

U]

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in
the statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise
(i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected (i) to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12
months but (i) not to recognise right-of-use assets for
low-value assets. The lease payments associated with
those leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Leasing (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the
Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term. For right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of an investment property,
they are carried at fair value and for right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of a leasehold land and
buildings held for own use, they are carried at fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

U]

Leasing (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. The
Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which are held for own use under HKAS 16 and are
carried at fair value. Other than the above right-of-
use assets, the Group also has leased a number
of properties under tenancy agreements which the
Group exercises it judgement and determines that it
is a separate class of asset apart from the leasehold
land and buildings which is held for own use. As
a result, the right-of-use asset arising from the
properties under tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property or inventory
as a separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position. Right-of-use assets that meet
the definition of investment property and inventory
are presented within “investment properties” and
“properties under development” respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Leasing (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (i)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change
in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability, less any lease incentives receivable, based on
the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

Leasing (Continued)

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property to
a number of tenants. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on
the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

(i)  Financial Assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

— financial assets at fair value (through other
comprehensive income), and

— financial assets at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial Assets (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in other comprehensive
income. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading and not contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer to
which HKFRS 3 applies, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial application of
HKFRS 9/ initial recognition of the assets to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments

depends on the Group’s business model

for managing the asset and the cash flow

characteristics of the asset. There are three

measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost:

Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in net
other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

Fair value through other comprehensive
income

For equity investment which is not held
for trading purposes and not contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer
to which HKFRS 3 applies and on initial
application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition
of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at
fair value through other comprehensive
income, they are subsequently measured
at fair value and changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained profits. It is
not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividend income is recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investments. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. Equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses (“ECLs”) associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost (including trade receivables, other
receivables and cash and bank balances) and
investment in debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised, see Note 22 for further details.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses which are measured at the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive)
over the expected life of the financial instrument.
The maximum period to consider when
measuring ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the entity is exposed to credit

risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are measured at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in the debt
instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the amount of ECLs is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. Loss allowances for debt instruments
measured at amortised cost are deducted from
the gross carrying amount of the assets. For
debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in fair value reserve (recycling),
instead of reducing the carrying amount of the
financial assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group applies
a simplified approach to measure the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on trade receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date. For other debt
financial assets, the Group measures the loss
allowance either based on 12-month ECLs or
lifetime ECLs, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as

realising security (if any is held).

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of

directly attributable costs incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
other payables, amount due to an intermediate
holding company, bank and other borrowings
and the debt component of convertible notes
issued by the Group are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in Note
4(0).

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

For other payables
Other payables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

4 EAEFBEHMEHE)

1)

ERMITE(E)

(iii) BB EE(E)

KB HK A BB R
]

HEHR AT EMR %A
18 (B 15 A 8 5 3R 0R

& 5 — ] i PR F2 B 2 DK
B RITREMEBEAR
AEBFRBEITAHRRRR
M EBEKED ) TIH 1R
ARBEANE - XTHEKE
EERNBERBEKA - H
BRI AERN SRS
ARG E - HERANE X
HIRBRHI 5 4(0) PREVEI &
AHERERARK -

ERER IR RN
HBIET - MSHEES

\:l
==
Tﬁfﬁﬁﬁ

F&&“ﬁ}ﬂu}

RAR HoAth & 15 300R

H it N FIBNBIE AR
BERR  HEMNBER
SRR BN AT E -

FZERAERAT 2020 Fi

165



166

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Continued)

For borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-
payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company
that contain the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into
their respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled other than by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is a conversion option derivative.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
For conversion option classified as an equity
instrument, the difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible loan notes and
the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder
to convert the loan notes into equity, is included
in equity (convertible notes equity reserve). For
conversion option classified as derivative, it is
recognised at fair value. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the
derivative component is recognised as liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible loan notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component, represented by the option
to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible
notes equity reserve until the embedded option
is exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible loan equity reserve will be transferred
to share capital. Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance
stated in convertible loan notes equity reserve
will be released to the retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised upon conversion or
expiration of the option. The conversion option
derivative is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible loan notes are allocated to the
liability and conversion option components in
proportion to the allocation of the proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity
and relating to conversion option derivative
is recognised to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when,
and only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

U]
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Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its properties, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of properties, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

U]

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

U]
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Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingencies (Continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i) Current income tax

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income
tax purposes and is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected

to be paid to the tax authorities.

(ij) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill and the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of statement of financial
position and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or

the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

(q) Employee benefits

(i)

Salaries, bonus, paid annual leave and the cost
of other benefits to the Group are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii

The Group operates two defined contribution
schemes for Hong Kong employees, the assets
of which are held in separate administered
funds. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution schemes are expensed as incurred
and are not reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the schemes
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

The Group also contributes on a monthly basis
to various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC.
The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future
retired employees for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administered
funds managed by the government of the PRC.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.

The Group has participated in a defined
contribution plan, the 401(k) scheme covering all
of its eligible employees in the U.S.. Employees
who participate in the plan may contribute a
portion of their compensation on a pre-income
tax basis up to a limit specified by law. The
Group’s contribution to the plan is based on
the percentage of employee contribution from
the individual employee’s monthly basic salary.
The Group also provides an employee benefit
plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 125,
offering to pay for its eligible employees for
medical premium and dependent care expenses
on a pre-tax basis. Contributions to this scheme
are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)  Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits;
and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become
vested. At every period end, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the income statement and
a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Share-based compensation (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in profit
or loss over the remaining vesting period.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

Rental income receivable under operating leases
where the Group is a lessor is recognised in the
income statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the year in which they are
earned.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments including financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss or other
comprehensive income are recognised when the
shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefit will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

®

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Revenue recognition (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the income
statement on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, as appropriate.
Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

4 EAEFBEHMEHE)

(u)

(v)

(w)

EER DB RS -

BT BEREERELER
IEERAE ST BN AR
IR B T 1S SRR R ©

2R E

[7) 7% 5% 8 A 3R 0 Ik #9 AR B AR

RABRRAIEE(RERBRM

FE ) HEMERL B B HARI I AR SR B B

BRRERSAE -

BT

(@ FEALHEZATRLERN
BLATAL  BIEAEH
BRAE

() HAKEEHFZSH
RSk HL R I

i) HAEBAEAY
25 o

(i) AAREEFARF

BRAAMEEERE
BAS -

FZERAERAT 2020 Fi

183



184

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

(vii)

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group

of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(i

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or

domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Risk management is carried out by senior
management of the Group under policies approved by
the board of directors of the Company.

(i)  Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the United States dollar
(“US$”), HK$ and Renminbi (“RMB”) as the
Group’s revenue and the operating costs are
denominated in these currencies. The Group
is also exposed to other currency movements,
primarily in terms of investments in the U.S.
and Indonesia, bank deposits, loan, note and
interest receivables, certain other loans and
amount due to an intermediate holding company
denominated in US$. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group
has not entered into any derivative instruments
to hedge its foreign exchange exposures.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

5

BRREER
(a) HIBEABEZ

AKRENEHEAREEY S
BUMHER: mERRERE
S EE [ B - (B AR R B Je B X
B EERR KSR
- AREEHAKENSR
EREAEBRBEARREZS
BUERIBRBTT -

(i) FEER
S B %

AEEEHZEIRER
EEMINERR T2
WhET  BERAR
% RRA/AEENKRA
K ERAAZEEE 5T
B - ARE TS EME
BEBMER 0 EBZEMN
ETLEHEMNREBE MEE
MRE RITER &
R BERERME &
TEMERMEN—REF
EIERR R RIFIA - SMER
SREMERERS B
ERNEENBEARR
SNEEERFIE - A%
B BT AEROTAET A
EmEIMNERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if the HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 0.5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
loss for the year and equity would have been
HK$13,371,000 higher/lower (2019: loss for
the year would be HK$12,948,000 higher/
lower) and HK$13,371,000 lower/higher (2019:
HK$12,948,000 lower/higher) respectively,
mainly as a result of net foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of US$ denominated
cash and bank deposits, loan, note and interest
receivables, other loans and amount due to an
intermediate holding company. The Group’s
management manages this risk by closely
monitoring the exchange rate movement and
changes in market conditions that may have a
significant impact on the operations and financial
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Price risk

The Group’s main market price risk exposures
relate to its financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, which mainly
comprise equity securities. At 31 December
2020, if the market price of the financial assets
had increased/decreased by 5%, loss for the
year and equity of the Group would have nil
impact (2019: loss for the year would have nil
impact) and HK$120,000 (2019: HK$4,832,000)
higher/lower respectively, mainly as a result
of the gains/losses on financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The
Group closely monitors the price movement and
changes in market conditions that may have an
impact on the value of these financial assets.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities except for cash and bank
deposits, loan receivables, note receivables,
lease liabilities, bank and other borrowings,
amount due to an intermediate holding
company, amount due to a fellow subsidiary and
convertible notes. The interest rates for the loan
receivables, note receivables, amount due to an
intermediate holding company, amount due to a
fellow subsidiary, certain bank and other loans
and convertible notes are fixed while the interest
expense of certain other loans which bear
interests at variable rates are capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates on
cash and bank deposits had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, loss for the year would have been
HK$812,000 (2019: HK$1,055,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of interest income on
the bank deposits.

Credit risk

There is no significant credit risk in relation to
the Group’s cash and bank deposits as cash
and bank deposits are placed with banks and
financial institutions with good credit ratings.
Approximately 46% (2019: 61%) of the Group’s
bank deposits were placed in international
financial institutions with minimum credit ratings
of A3/A- as rated by Moody’s and Standard &
Poor’s as at 31 December 2020.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for the
Group and the Company at the reporting date
is the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The aggregate revenue from the five largest
customers represents 53.0% (2019: 42.7%)
of total revenue excluding interest income and
dividend income, of which, two customers
(2019: one customer) individually exceed 10%
of the total revenue (excluding interest income
and dividend income) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

At 31 December 2020, the balance of trade
and other receivables mainly represents rental
receivables and interest receivables. Rental
deposits are required from tenants prior to the
commencement of leases. The Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of these debtors to
manage the risk.

As at 31 December 2020, except for debtors
with significant outstanding balances, which
are assessed for impairment individually
and HK$1,301,000 ECL was provided, the
management of the Group has assessed the
ECL of all trade receivables as insignificant
and therefore it did not result in an impairment
allowance for the both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5 MBERER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBEAMEZEE)
(i)  Market risk (Continued) (i) FEEREE)
Credit risk (Continued) EEER (&)
Other receivables H b eI GRIR
The Group determines the following ECL rate for REBRAEENEHE
its loan receivables based on Group’s expected NEEEH REERKE
loan repayment date and adjusted by forward HETEATEREREBL
looking factors. The details of the loan and o WIRATEARETHA
interest receivables are disclosed in Note 20(b) B RIWEREFEFE
and (c). BT 3 20(0) 0 (0) #27%
The loss allowances as at 31 December 2020 AEEIERBNEUWE R
and 31 December 2019 determined for non- Ko F) B A0 E W R IR EE F R
current loan and interest receivables and note 20204 12 A 31 H %2019
receivables are set out as follows, respectively: F12 A1 HHEEE K
DRIEFIAT
Loan and interest receivables ERERERE 2020 2019
2020 20194
ECL rate (%) TEHR{E FRIBR R (%) 5.7 2.3
Gross carrying amount of non- IEMEBEREFR K
current loan and interest I ERMABE
receivables (HK$’000) (GE#For) 290,929 292,250
Loss allowances (HK$’000) EEERCEETor) 16,657 6,818
Note and interest receivables EWEBERIE 2020 2019
2020 20194
ECL rate (%) TEEAE B R (%) - 0.3
Gross carrying amount of note and & U = K F &
interest receivables (HK$’000) SREBECEE T o) - 169,505
Loss allowances (HK$'000) EEHEEETFor) - 431
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

In respect of loan and notes receivables, the loss
allowances recognised during the year ended 31
December 2019 was limited to 12 months ECLs.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
whole amount of note receivables was early
redeemed and the interest receivables were fully
settled.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, senior management of the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5 HMERKREE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBEAMEZEE)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) FEMEE(E)

Contractual payment

B
Less than
1 year and
repayable Between Between
on 1 and 2 and Over
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
1EUTR

REREE 1Z2628 2Z552H 5N
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EBFT EBF T T EMFT

At 31 December 2020 22020 12 A31 H
Deposits received, other BUizs - EfbfER

payables and accruals AR FERIER 1,007,627 205,415 467,779 12,194
Borrowings HE 4,236,495 3,659,238 1,061,031 -
Lease liabilities MEEE 11,390 9,239 28,628 39,370
Amount due to an JEF— P R AR

intermediate holding NSO

company 328,981 6,908,608 - -

5,584,493 10,782,500 1,557,438 51,564

At 31 December 2019 720196 12 431 H
Deposits received, other WIS « HA e

payables and accruals FUR K ERTIA B 871,928 472,306 5,167 10,803
Borrowings BE 2,006,610 1,276,001 2,911,379 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 43,180 9,642 22,887 23,895
Amount due to an JEA —fE P R AR

intermediate holding UNSIE @

company 340,268 7,145,635 - —

3,261,986 8,903,584 2,939,433 34,698
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(b)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total
capital. Total debt is calculated as “total borrowings”.
Total capital is calculated as “total equity”, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5 BERKREE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Capital risk management (Continued)

(b)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a healthy gearing

ratio. The gearing ratios, as calculated by total

borrowings over total shareholders’ equity, are as

follows:

EXEBEE (M)

A5 A B i T MR
ARBMALE - AARMEILE
(REROBRARREERE
SHEDMT -

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BB F T
Total borrowings (excluding amount EERE (T eEEMN—M
due to an intermediate holding R A RIRIE)
company) 6,590,903 5,363,065
Amount due to an intermediate holding  JE — [ F 42 A% A &)
company KIE 6,579,626 6,805,367
Total borrowings (including amount BEBE(PEES—MH
due to an intermediate holding FR R A B RTE)
company) 13,170,529 12,168,432
Total equity ERER 9,529,056 10,552,305

Gearing ratio (excluding amount due to

BERBELR(TBERN

an intermediate holding company) —EFEERATIFRIA) 69.2% 50.8%
Gearing ratio (including amount due to &R & &L R (B IEERS
an intermediate holding company) — P B A B E) 138.2% 115.3%

In order to fund the daily operation and the expansion

of the business of the Group, significant amounts

of capital in the form of borrowing or equity, or a

combination of both, is considered to be necessary

in the future. The directors of the Company consider

such funding for the future operation and expansion

will be available as and when required.

REBNAEENREEENRE
BER  A5ERRAREN
EEH BB ARMEHEE R
BREET - ARAEER
B RBERAESEHEES
BB REERBRAD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments that were measured at fair value at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

(i) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

(i) Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

(i)  Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5 BKEBRER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AAEBEME(E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14 F24 FE3INK F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BB TFT
At 31 December 2020 M 202012831 H
Financial assets at BRAAREESTA
fair value through Hih2HEUE
other comprehensive MgEE
income
— Non-publicly traded - kLEHER
listed equity ETTREFES
securities — — — —
— Publicly traded - tHEEL®
listed equity BEXHES
securities 2,409 — — 2,409
Total financial assets K EEHAE 2,409 - - 2,409
At 31 December 2019 #2019 12 4318
Financial assets at fair BRAREERA
value through other Hih2EKz=ER
comprehensive income M EE
— Non-publicly traded —FLEMEEL
listed equity mREFH
securities — — 96,647 96,647
Total financial assets s EERE — — 96,647 96,647
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, REZE 2020 F K 2019F 12 A

there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

S1HIEFEE E1H - B2l
N E 3 2 B EER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company’s equity investments in China Huiyuan Juice
Group Limited (“Huiyuan Juice”) of HK$200,956,000
has become non-publicly traded as trading of
shares of Huiyuan Juice has been suspended since
April 2018. Hence, these equity investments were
transferred from Level 1 to Level 3 for the estimation
of fair value during the year ended 31 December
2018. Subsequently in January 2021, shares of
Huiyuan Juice have been delisted.

(i)  Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the date of the statement of financial position.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.

(ii) Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
technigues maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

5 MHEAERERGE)

(c)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iiij) Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the

instrument is included in Level 3.

The following table presents the changes in
Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31

December 2020 and 2019.

() 2AREEMATGE

(iii) F3RALHT A

M —IHNZTHE KA
B IEER A BRAMEH
MiH8E - Bl TASIA
ERcK

TREJNFEIRTENE
E 20204 20194 12 A
S1RILLFEHES -

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BB FT

Opening balance 96,647 200,956

Fair value loss on revaluation of HHEAABHEA

financial assets at fair value Hoh 2 T W S B B T
through other comprehensive BEENRRBEEE

income (96,647) (104,309)

Closing balance FIREER - 96,647

HFIZEREBRAT 2020 Fif
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iiij) Financial instruments in Level 3 (Continued)

The following table summarises the quantitative

M EREE(HE)

() 2AEEMSSE)

(iii) F3RAZHT A (&)

TERBRBREEIRAA

information about the significant unobservable BEFEMANERTA
inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements. BEmENRASEBNE
[S-v=
Significant Relationship of
unobservable Range of significant  unobservable
Description Fair value at inputs unobservable inputs  inputs to fair value
EXTUERMEN EXFUBEABN TUBRRFENEA
g RTFIEENAAEE BARE BABBEHE BEANABENER
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 F 2019%F 2020F 2019%F
HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BT
Non-publicly traded - 96,647  Discount for the lack of N/A 26% The higher the
listed equity marketability TER marketability
securities at fair discount, the lower
value (Note) the fair value
BRARBENELD R RAtOTE ikl TN
BEMRERES BEEE
(Fitst)
Company specific N/A 59%  The higher the company
discount attributable THER specific discount, the

to trade halt due to

corporate govemance

issues

REFERZEMEE
FLEEMSIENAT

WEi®

lower the fair value

RERERER O
REEBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iiij) Financial instruments in Level 3 (Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company’s equity investments in Huiyuan Juice of
HK$200,956,000 has become non-publicly traded
as trading of shares of Huiyuan Juice has been
suspended since April 2018. Hence, these equity
investments were transferred from Level 1 to Level 3
for the estimation of fair value during the year ended
31 December 2018. Market approach was adopted for
the valuation of Huiyuan Juice for the year ended 31
December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, asset
approach was adopted for the valuation of Huiyuan
Juice. The fair value was based on the estimated fair
value of the assets and liabilities of Huiyuan Juice.
As there is no significant assumption adopted in
the valuation, no sensitivity analysis is presented.
Subsequently in January 2021, shares of Huiyuan
Juice have been delisted and the fair value as at 31
December 2020 was concluded as nil.

5

MEEREE (&)
(c) DAEEME (&)
(iii) F3RAEHT A (&)
B3 -

MREZE20185F12 A31 B 1k
FE - ARERETERM A
2018 F 4 AEEFEE - &
AR BFSEREA 8RR A
& 7 # 200,956,000 7T 2 X
BIELrMEE ALt H
Z20185 12 A31H Ik F
B BB AAEE ZE
BARLEEHE1LEEE
B3 - N E E2019F 12
A1 AILLEFEE  EHERRE
STHBERBHIESL -

H E 202012 31 H IFF
B BRERRAMGER
REEZE X  AnBEDIER
ERRTHEERB BN
AR EBE ARETH
ERTEFAITMNERR
5% B2 BRRE AT
2 ERETHEROHER
2021 F 1 BRI - M 2020
FI2A3EHMNAAREESR

= o
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5 MBERER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AREEME(E)
(iii) Financial instruments in Level 3 (Continued) (i) ZE3RAWEFHMIT A (E)
The fair value of the following financial assets UNTHBREERBERNAR
and liabilities approximate their carrying amount: AEEERmSEAES
()  Loan receivables; () FEWEFK:
(i) Trade receivables; (i) FEURBRFK
(i)  Other receivables; (i)  HALEWGRIE ;
(iv) Cash and bank deposits; (iv) RERBITER:
(v) Deposits received, other payables and v Blliks - EME
accruals; NFIEREETIER
(vi)  Borrowings; and vy BE:
(vii)  Amount due to an intermediate holding (vii)  FES —E R BT
company NEIFRIA °
The disclosures of the investment properties that BARBEAENREY
are measured at fair value are set out in Note XM RENE AN
17. 17 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

N

BRI (&)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements include
a summary of the significant accounting policies used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
The preparation of consolidated financial statements often
requires the use of judgments to select specific accounting
methods and policies from several acceptable alternatives.
Furthermore, significant estimates and assumptions
concerning the future may be required in selecting and
applying those methods and policies in the consolidated
financial statements. The Group bases its estimates
and judgments on historical experience and various
assumptions that are reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates and
judgments under different assumptions or conditions.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(@) Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, apart from those involving estimations,
management has prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the assumption that the Group will
be able to operate as a going concern in the coming
year, which is a critical judgement that has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The assessment
of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, at a particular point of
time, about the future outcome of events or conditions
which are inherently uncertain. The directors consider
that the Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually
or collectively may cast significant doubt upon the
going concern assumption are set out in Note 3(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

6 ERSHEERME

RAVBRRWNETL4ERREES
MEBREMAEEZEGABRRAOM
Z - EREFSVBHRRNBIESD
EEAFELHE  URZEAIER
ATERPEEFEGADEAREE -
BE GEEBEREREAHEM
BERARBESEMBRERNBRE
oRREFEEHRKIFLEAMGE
KR - REBOEE R HE T2
ERNBELR  UREBBEILT
EAﬁ%yEF“ ETRERE

BFERT - BRERAEBNNILE
G &ﬂ%
P& PR & 5t BRI Y B8 42 2 B

B 3% R fh 5T (R N 3X) 19 B8 82 #) i
S THIRARBEETNEAASE
BETRROBRETAIEL MY
RIFEMBRRERNSEAER
REENRRGEHE -

(a) BHEKEZE

RERAREE S HRNBE
o B e fh R RO B R A B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 6

AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the

future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the end of the reporting period that may have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

(a)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s financial statements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

e |level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

e |evel 2. Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

e |level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

B Sl & & K i ()

P REENEERR

T RBARENEZREALR
BEMRGFT TEEENEMEE
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ARERTEYBRFERNEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement
of the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

° Investment properties in Shanghai, the PRC
(Note 17); and

° Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Note 19).

For more detailed information in relation to the fair
value measurement of the items above, please refer
to the applicable notes.

Estimated impairment of loan and interest
receivables and notes receivables

The Group recognised 12 months ECLs for the loan
and interest receivables due from non-controlling
parties and note receivables due from an independent
third party. The Group assessed receivables by
individual basis, based on management’s best
estimate of losses incurred at the reporting date. The
amount of the impairment loss based on ECL model
is measured as the difference between all contractual
cash flow that are due to the Group and all the cash
flows that the Group expected to receive, discounted
at effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected or being revised downward due to changes
in fact circumstances, a material impairment loss may
arise.

6 BARSTHLERIE(E)

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the date of statement of financial position, the
Group undertakes a review to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment of non-financial
assets.

Properties, plant and equipment, investment
properties under construction, right-of-use assets
and other non-financial assets are reviewed for
impairment losses whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which an asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows. The Group has considered recoverability
of the assets as impairment indication. Reversal of
an impairment provision is recorded as income in
the period when the reversal occurs. Reversal on
impairment loss would be recognised if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
test was carried out. Please refer to Notes 16, 17, 18
and 20 for the impairment assessment of properties,
plant and equipment, investment properties under
construction, right-of-use assets and other financial
assets respectively.

6 BARSTHEERE(E)

(c)

FMBEERE

REMBRRREEH - KEBEHE
TERANBERSEEATR

BRFMEEELTRE °
BEAEMHHENEBERA

REEERE YR R RR
- ERREME EREE
EAREMIET B EERNKRE
TRE - AREeHEHERE
B AREEREERAS
MEBAA KD SR EEE
RBEEE - BLEF AR E M
5 BENRABILENRS
MEMNKEERFR A&H
ZREAEN WO EERBE
R o BB B B
[al 2 & Ky HAfE S FE MR - fid A
REEEER WO BEA MG
BT ERORERIRR IR
B AeEANEBRENE
m - BRAYIR - Has LR
EREEME EREEEN
Ko B Mo 75 & EE B E AT 5
B woR2HME16 17
18 220



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d)

Depreciation and useful lives of power plant

Estimation of the useful lives of the Group’s power
plant facilities is based on the Group’s assessment
of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
experience with similar assets. Management estimates
the useful lives of the power plant facilities, which are
under construction, to be around 30 years. Changes
in the expected level of usage and technological
development could have an impact on the economic
useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
and therefore future depreciation charges.

The estimated useful lives are reviewed at least each
financial year-end and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear
and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and
legal or other limitations on the use of the assets. It
is possible, however, that future results of operations
could be materially affected by changes in the factors
mentioned above.

6 BARSTHLERIE(E)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Estimates for net realisable value of properties
under development

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of
properties under development according to their
net realisable values based on the realisability of
these properties. Net realisable value for properties
under development is determined by reference to
management’s estimates of the selling price based
on prevailing market conditions, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion (including land costs). Based on
management’s best estimates, an accumulated
provision of impairment losses of HK$695,361,000
(2019: HK$77,582,000) (Note 21) was made on
properties under development as at 31 December
2020.

Classification of construction cost of the project
in the Los Angeles, the United States (the “U.S.”)

The Group currently classifies the construction costs
of the project in the Los Angeles, United States as
properties under development (condominiums for
sale) and investment properties (hotel and shopping
mall for rent out). For the investment properties, the
Group considers to hold the properties for earning
fixed rental income after completion of construction
and commencement of operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(9)

Provisions and accruals of the real estate
development project in Los Angeles, the U.S.

As explained in Notes 24 and 32, the Group had
claims in respect of the disputes between the Group
and certain contractors in relation to the Group’s
real estate development project in Los Angeles,
the U.S. These disputes are under examination by
management of the Company. Based on the available
information, the management of the Company
estimates the outcome of the expenditures and
liens, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the expenditures and liens and
recognises payables and accruals for variation orders
and damages according to contractual terms entered
with the contractors, if appropriate. Provisions
represent the management’s best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the obligations, after
consultation with the technical experts, internal and
external legal counsels on the possible outcome and
liability of the Group would then be recognised, if
appropriate.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
claims made by the counterparties are over-assessed
and, as at 31 December 2020, based on the best
estimate, an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,239,014,000 (2019: HK$1,059,154,000) (see
Note 24) has been accrued for the expenditures and
liens matters in respect of the Group’s real estate
development project in Los Angeles, the U.S.. The
determination of the provisions involved significant
management estimation. The Group could incur
judgements or enter into settlements of the disputes
with counterparties that could adversely affect its
operating results or cash flows in a particular period.

6 BARSTHLERIE(E)
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EEEERABSENKEERES
X HREEENRR R T®E
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BRGREREEERRESE
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(MEA) - BEEEEEYHE
BECMAREELORERS
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WERRFTHABE - BR2020
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1,239,014,0007C(2019 4F : &
#1,059,154,0007C ) (7 & B
Mao4) BEEBERYREX
EIREME - AEE e EE
o I sk B 5 5 E A 4 AN
- H gy riRmg s
EESR S REBEKTHE -

FZERAERAT 2020 Fi

209



210

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in Note 34.

Revenue represents rental income, interest income and
dividend income. The amounts of revenue recognised
during the year are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

WA K 7 &R E #

RAARNFEEEBRREZER - K
NGl NGRS 789U
34 o

WABFEEE W - M B WE MR
Bz - FABANPWAZRNT

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Rental income from investment WEMENRS W=
properties 93,686 88,459
Interest income ) B = 6,139 22,164
Dividend income received from financial K EZR AR BETAEBT R
assets at fair value through profit or HEmeEmEW eI EEE
loss and other comprehensive income 7 B = 171 2,404
99,996 113,027

The senior management comprising executive directors and
the chief financial officer are the Group’s chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”). Management has determined
operating segments for the purposes of allocating
resources and assessing performance.

Segments are managed separately as each business
segment has different business objectives and is subject to
risks and returns that are different from one another.

Earnings/(losses) before interest expense and tax (“EBIT/
(LBIT)”) is regarded as segment results in respect of the
Group’s reportable segments as the CODM considers that
this can better reflect the performance of each segment.
EBIT/(LBIT) is used in the Group’s internal financial and
management reporting to monitor business performances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IR (&)

7 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment information:

7 BARZHERGE)

TEHER :

Year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020512A31 BLLEE
Real Finance
Property estate investment
investment  development Energy  and others Total
e , HBER ;
NERE REHERE #REN K @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segment revenue from external customers AR EHA EIA 93,686 - - 6,310 99,996
Segment results before other netlosses ~ EftFEEA A HEE 74,263 (88,507) (32,565) (27,120) (73,929)
Other net losses (Note 8(a)) At FBE(NEs() (1,301) (617,779) (9,839) (41,471) (670,390)
EBIT/LBIT) MEREART/
(FIB RHRIEE) 72,962 (706,286) (42,404) (68,591) (744,319)
Interest expense MEZH - (186,601) (1,413) (482) (188,496)
Loss before tax BRHAIER 72,962 (892,887) (43,817) (69,073) (932,815)
Income tax expense FEBI (4,919)
Loss for the year FREE (937,734)
Segment assets PEE 1,453,337 20,161,726 3,455,969 26,042 25,097,074
Deferred income tax assets EUﬁH%R BE - 32,156 - - 32,156
Total assets EERE 25,129,230
Segment liabilities AHEE 99,287 1,733,812 204,203 57,811 2,095,113
Borrowings e 1,146,239 3,440,444 712,920 1,291,300 6,590,903
Amount due to an intermediate holding FEH F'?EPW N
company | 383,241 5,022,249 - 1,174,136 6,579,626
Current income tax liabilities FHNERAR 25,995 5,936 - - 31,931
Deferred income tax liabilities ERMEHER 301,314 1,287 - - 302,601
Total liabilities BERE 15,600,174
Depreciation of properties, plant and hE BERREONE
equipment 2,845 1,922 971 208 5,946
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 2,167 6,382 5,917 8,009 22,475
Additions to non-current segment assets  REFFBH PEE
(Note) (fzr) 14,605 324,778 10,349 153 349,885
Note: s -

The additions to non-current segment assets include additions
to properties, plant and equipment, investment properties,
prepayments for construction of power plants and prepayments for
property development projects.

RERBOAEERREAEYE - 1#
RREE KREME BRLEEHMNE
ﬁ%ﬂﬁl«%&%%%@lﬁﬁ BB FRIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

7 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 7
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment information: (Continued)

WAR D ERER (K)
DEER ()

Year ended 31 December 2019

BZ2019F12 A1 ALLEE
Real Finance
Property estate investment
investment  development Energy and others Total
o \ HERE A
NERE  BHERE BREN REM @t
HKSOO  HKSO00  AKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSO0D
BEFT BEFT BEFT BETT BETT
Segment revenue from extemal customers R EINIREH D HRA 88,459 - - 24,568 113,027
Segment results before other net gains ~ E G A HEE 66,952 (74,650) (34,757) (21,848) (64,303)
Other net gains (Note 8(a)) At FRE (M 8(e) - - - 16,437 16,437
EBIT/(LBIT) HEREART/
(MERMAEE) 66,952 (74,650) (34,757) (5,411) (47,866)
Interest expense MEXH - (2,360) (1,834) (1,872) (6,066)
Loss before tax BRHAIERE 66,952 (77,010) (36,591) (7,289) (53,932)
Income tax expense FEBI (17,962)
Loss for the year FREE (71,894)
Segment assets NHEE 1,344,331 19,747,580 3,477,187 332,972 24,902,070
Deferred income tax assets ERFMEHEE - 11,995 - - 11,995
Total assets BERE 24,914,065
Segment liabilities N8R 89,654 1,576,684 187,026 42,039 1,895,403
Borrowings FE 1,080,153 3,413,051 - 869,861 5,368,065
Amount due to an intermediate holding FEH FW IR AR
company R 375,615 4,820,453 - 1,609,299 6,805,367
Current income tax liabilities FHNERAR 22,391 - - - 22,391
Deferred income tax liabilities EREFMEHAR 271,722 3,812 - - 275,534
Total liabilities RS 14,361,760
Depreciation of properties, plant and 0E BERRENNE
equipment 584 2,634 1,055 264 4,537
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 839 6,190 6,064 8,010 21,108
Additions to non-current segment assets  REFFBH BEE
(Note) (fzr) 10,808 746,523 17,145 120 774,596
Note: Bt 5T

The additions to non-current segment assets include additions
to properties, plant and equipment, investment properties,
prepayments for construction of power plants and prepayments for
property development projects.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment information: (Continued)
Geographical information:

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong, the PRC, the
U.S. and Indonesia. The geographical segment revenue is
presented based on the geographical location of the rental,
interest and dividend income.

Revenue and assets by geographical location are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

WAR 7 HBER (&)

DERER - (B
AEBEENESE T XBER
EIEEEE - i BUKRA AR
& MERBRERENHMENES
EWE5 -

BB DWW AREENT :

U.S. Indonesia PRC Hong Kong Total
E3E B H Bi# st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
BETFT  BETT BT BETT BRI

Revenue A

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 45 17 94,108 5,826 99,996
31 December 2019 2019F 12 A31H 1,311 11,117 88,756 11,843 113,027
Total assets EEHAE

31 December 2020 2020124311 20,193,882 3,452,648 1,453,159 29,541 25,129,230

31 December 2019 2019612 H31 1 19,769,675 3,476,464 1,315,726 362,300 24,914,065

Information about major customers:

Revenue of approximately HK$34.3 million (2019:
approximately HK$19.3 million) is derived from two
external customers (2019: HK$19.3 million from one
external customer), which individually amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue (excluding interest income
and dividend income). This revenue is attributable to the
property investment segment and derived from the PRC.

FRTEEFHEN :

W AR 97 3,430 & T (2019 4F
RE1,9308T) REMBINEE
F (20194 « & #1,0308 L 2k A
—HINEEF)  ZERFPERMEAR
EERACTRIERN B M LR B
) 10% A £ - ZIMATBRYZE
WEDELREPE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

8 LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax is stated after crediting and charging the

8 KRBAIER

BEAIEIEE st AR TIEE

following:
2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Crediting A
Fair value gains on revaluation of non- EfFLEMEREESREADT
publicly traded fund investments RIRARBEABRY
classified as financial assets at fair value MBEENDABENG
through profit or loss (Note (a)) (Fi7E (a)) - 3,270
Net realised gains on disposal of listed HESHEAAEMEE
debt securities classified as financial WM EER
asset through other comprehensive BEREHFNFERFNGE
income (Note (a)) GEAE)) - 4,128
Net gains on repurchase and cancellation & [0] & 5 85 7] # I Z 15 49
of convertible notes (Note (a)) FEFE (M (a) 775 -
Reversal of ECLs on notes receivable B b RN EEEAEAEX
(Note (a) and 20(c)) (P 5% (@) & 20(c)) 431 —
Net foreign exchange gains (Note (a)) SNEEFE FI15 (P 5E () - 10,197
Rental income from investment properties &M EM £ U 93,686 88,459
Charging k&
Impairment losses on properties under BERERPYENRERE
development (Note (a)) (BesE (a)) 617,779 -
ECLs on trade receivables FEUBR SRR TEHA{E A8k
(Note (a) and 22) (P 5E (@) 2 22) 1,301 —
ECLs on notes receivable e R IEHEREX
(Note (a) and 20(c)) (BﬁE( ) K 20(c)) - 431
ECLs on loan and interest receivables FEWE T & E B TEHA (= A
(Note (a)) 1B (M5t (@) 9,839 —
Net realised losses on disposal of non- HEFEMEEESRENE
publicly traded fund investments RIBEAREEBEF ABRN
classified as financial assets at fair value B 7% & R R IR E 1S
through profit or loss (Note (a)) (F3E (@) - 727
Staff costs (including directors’ EERN(BIEESHE)
emoluments) (Note (b) and 13) (B3E (b) % 13) 63,315 66,327
Depreciation of properties, plant and ME - BEREENITE
equipment (Note (c) and 16) (FizE (c) K2 16) 5,946 4,537
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAREENE
(Note (d) and 18) (Fi7E (d) &2 18) 22,475 21,103
Operating lease charges in respect T AREB BT ENME
of properties not included in the KEHEEER (M (e)
measurement of lease liabilities (Note (e)) 2,541 2,273
Auditor’s remuneration 1 &R B &
Audit and audit related services Bz EIZAEE RS 3,504 4,284
Non-audit services IEE AL ARTS 920 76
Net foreign exchange losses (Note (a)) SN F BT I8 (P 7 (a)) 42,677 —
Direct operating expenses arising from Ei%ﬂﬁﬂﬂlﬁnﬂﬂx\é{%%
investment properties that generated EENEELET N
rental income 7,476 9,258
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

8 LOSS BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Other net losses of HK$670,390,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 represented (i) the impairment losses
on properties under development of HK$617,779,000; (i)
ECLs on loan and interest receivables of HK$9,839,000;
(i) ECLs on trade receivables of HK$1,301,000; (iv) the net
foreign exchange losses of HK$42,677,000; net of (v) net
gains on repurchase and cancellation of convertible notes of
HK$775,000; and (vi) reversal of ECLs on notes receivable of
HK$431,000.

Other net gains of HK$16,437,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 represented (i) the net foreign exchange
gains of HK$10,197,000; (ii) the net fair value gains on
revaluation of non-publicly traded fund investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$3,270,000; (iii) the net realised losses on disposal of
non-publicly traded fund investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$727,000; (iv)
the net realised gains on disposal of listed debt securities
classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income of HK$4,128,000; and (iv) the ECLs
on notes receivable of HK$431,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, staff costs
amounting to HK$3,486,000 (2019: HK$15,503,000) and
HK$2,006,000 (2019: HK$8,657,000) were capitalised into
properties under development and investment properties
respectively. Government subsidies of HK$1,404,000
granted from the Employment Support Scheme and Subsidy
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Hong Kong
Government was directly offset with the staff costs during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, depreciation
charges amounting to HK$287,000 (2019: HK$618,000)
and HK$165,000 (2019: HK$352,000) were capitalised into
properties under development and investment properties
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, depreciation of
right-of-use assets amounting to HK$2,416,000 (2019:
HK$2,672,000) and HK$1,376,000 (2019: HK$1,523,000)
were capitalised into properties under development and
investment properties respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, operating lease
charges amounting to HK$423,000 (2019: HK$3,631,000)
and HK$243,000 (2019: HK$2,069,000) were capitalised
into properties under development and investment properties
respectively.

8 MKRBAIERE(E)

GEE

(@)

H E2020F12831HIEFEHW
H b % &5 18 7 % 670,390,000 7T
BOEERPVENREBBAE
617,779,000 7T + (ii) & U & 3 K2 7
B E’J%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ésé;%ﬁgg 839,000
(i) B R R TEHE AE X

Aﬁﬁ%iﬁn:aomoooﬁ (iv) F1NEE 5 &5
186 842,677,000 7T ¢ F1 (v) BB
0] & T 85 TR AR IR AR R BB
775,0007C ¢ K (vi) B [B] fE U = i
HTEHA(E IR B 5 431,000 7T ©

HZE2019F12 831 H ILF &
HEaFHBHE %1643700075
A (i) 70 & F FI 13 78 % 10,197,000
JC () EfH JE E ma;%é&
é\*ﬁz%iz@mﬁ@ﬁ)\%% SHY
FBEEEMNARBEFNEEE
3,270,000 JC u)tH%élELmi%iE
%’f&é”* BIEALEEFAE

Eﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁm@“ﬁ&ﬂa%%
727,000 7T : (iv) HEDEAIZ AR
Ffﬁ?r/\ﬁ@z@ﬂ&mmﬁﬂ%éé
B b T (E TS B 5 1R B IR R 15 S K
4,128,0007T : K& (v) EWEERTE
HfE AR ABH 431,000 7T °

H ZE2020F12831HIEFEX
18 B Bk 7N 78 # 3,486,000 7T (2019
& B #15,508,0007T ) & B
2,006,000 7C(20194F : & ¥
8,657,0007T ) B 7 Bl & AN {b 7 2%
BRAMERIEEYE - HE 2020
F12A31HIEFE  BBEEEK
A ERERES TR E G
%U&éfﬁbﬁ%ﬁ%%“aﬁﬂzﬁéﬁm,%m
%;04,0007%5;511@%5221&@%%

HZE2020%F 12 A31 HIEFERT
E & 8 287,000 7T (20194 :
7 #618,000 7T ) & 7 # 165,000
JC(20194F @ /& #352,0007T ) 2
i%ﬂﬁ%tﬁé%ﬁf%ﬂtﬂ%%&&ﬁ%

H Z2020F12A31B It FE W
FREEEITE BB 2,416,000
JC(20194F : 7 #2,672,0007T )
N 7 #1,376,000 7L (2019 4F : &
#1,523,0007C ) E 9 B & AL A
BRAMENIGEYE -

H E2020%F12A31H It F &
M E 4T E B A B 423,000
(20194 : # #3,631,0007T ) &
7 243,000 (20194 & ¥
2,069,0007T ) B 7 Bl & AN {b 7 2%
BAEDEREEDE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9 MBHXH
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BB FT
Current income tax BNHAFT1S Bt

— Charge for the year — FARX 16,393 6,583

Deferred income tax charge (Note 25) REFTS B X (M5 25)
— (Credit)/charge for the year — FRHER) FAX (11,474) 7,055
— Write-off of deferred income tax assets — HidEIEEASHEE - 4,324
4,919 17,962

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at a standard rate of 25% for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 25%).

The Group’s subsidiaries in the Hungary are subject to
Corporate Income Tax at a standard rate of 9% for the year
ended 31 December 2020. No Hungary Corporate Income
Tax was provided for the year ended 31 December 2019 as
the Group has no estimated assessable profits.

No U.S. Federal or State Income Tax was provided for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the Group
had no estimated assessable profits.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the Group had no
estimated assessable profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The differences between the Group’s expected tax charges
calculated at the domestic rates and the Group’s tax

9 FMBHHE)

FA AEEREMWHEAENTR
HITR A ST AR B Y B IR R S

charge for the years are as follows: ZRMAT
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Loss before tax BAH AR 1B (932,815) (53,932)
Tax calculated at the domestic rates HEAREERRFIEN
applicable to the profits in the countries BB EAERNTIE
concerned (224,380) (14,334)
Income not subject to tax BB (6,398) (10,218)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A~ A]YERL % B 18 34 Y B 2 217,642 9,626
Tax losses not recognised AEROTIEEE 18,055 28,664
Write-off of deferred income tax assets WEEELEFT SR EE - 4,324
Total tax charge TIAR X 4258 4,919 17,962

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 24.1% (2019:
26.6%). The tax rate changes from year to year due to
changes in the mix of the taxable results of the individual

Group companies.

FRAMRENEFHELR24.1% (2019

F 1 26.6%) ° MERIZF

FHFR

AEBEETERQRNERTER

BAED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN
i E B R R AR B R (AR

TS (Continued)

10 INTEREST EXPENSE 10 FIERIX
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BB FT
Interest expense on borrowings BEZFERX 881,899 852,551
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABZABERY 5,232 6,461
Total interest expense FEFR @58 887,131 859,012
Less: capitalised on qualifying assets i REEREERERE (698,635) (852,946)
188,496 6,066

Interest expense has been capitalised at a rate of 1.8%-
12.0% (2019: 1.8%-12.0%) per annum on qualifying assets.

11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 11

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

MEHRHIEST F1.8%E212.0%
(20194 : 1.8% = 12.0%) Z L &R
BEREBEREARL -

BREXAREEER
IR A 18 TR 5 R N 7 AR R

HEERAFACDEITEERM
BPHEGETE -

2020 2019
2020 F 20194

Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITEERENE

in issue F98
Loss attributable to shareholders of the RRAFIRREGEE
Company (HK$'000) (EBFr)

Basic loss per share attributable to shareholders 72 FIIRER (L & I E A 18
of the Company (HK cent per share) (BB BEA))

16,142,653,060 16,142,653,060

(926,596) (58,044)

(5.74) (0.36)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 11 BEREXREBEEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the FREBEEENSARKIIAE AR
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to rTE#ErEnLTRike®ER  &m
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. R BT R O B AR D0 15 BT
The Company’s dilutive potential ordinary shares are only B ARRABEEEYENEB
derived from the convertible notes. In calculating the dilutive [RREE AR ERE - ReTEER
loss per share, the convertible notes are assumed to have HEEER BRRAIEREECDE
been converted into ordinary shares, and the net loss is BATER  WHARFEBEIUSG
adjusted to eliminate the interest expense, exchange gains FEXH - EFARIBDOELF
on debt component and the fair value gains on embedded BREBRAXNTHEITETENRAAE
financial derivatives less the tax effect, if applicable. BERE  WHBRREZE(ER) -
2020 2019
2020 2019 F
Loss attributable to shareholders of RARIRE EGEE
the Company (HK$000) (EBTFr) (926,596) (58,044)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITE B E
in issue T8 16,142,653,060 16,142,653,060
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares — ABEEEZENTRRNTE
convertible notes — AR 836,912,183 845,070,422
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for AR EFSREEHED
diluted loss per share BB T 16,979,565,243  16,987,723,482

No adjustment has been made to basic loss per share
presented for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 in respect of a dilution as the impact of convertible
notes outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share.

ARHRITENTRRERSER
EREBEARBELE W mp
B8 A E £ 2020%F 2019612
A1 BIEFEMZ27MEREANE

18 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

12 DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: nil).

13 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

Staff costs recognised during the year is as follows:

12

13

RE
KAREEITEZEZE2020
F12A81 B L FEIRMAREBRKRE
(20194 : £) -

BERAST (BREEEHE)

REREROREREKALT

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Wages and salaries TITENHS 60,828 80,115
Pension costs RIRE A 2,458 3,479
Other allowances and benefits H A2 B0 M F 5,521 6,893
Total staff costs (including directors’ EEXA LB (BEESHE
emoluments (Note 15)) (K$3E15)) 68,807 90,487
Less: amount capitalised into properties B BRI BERFYERE
under development and investment = &7ES:0fnk:
properties (5,492) (24,160)
63,315 66,327
Note: MIsE -

Government subsidies of HK$1,404,000 granted from the
Employment Support Scheme and Subsidy Scheme under the
Anti-epidemic Fund of the Hong Kong Government was directly
offset with the staff costs during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

14 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group provides retirement benefits mainly to

employees in Hong Kong, the PRC and the U.S.

The Group has two defined contribution schemes for all
qualified employees in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong employees who commenced employment
before 1 September 2000 are members of the first
defined contribution scheme. The assets of the first
defined contribution scheme are held separately
under a provident fund managed by an independent
trustee. Pursuant to the rules of the scheme, the
employers and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme calculated at 5%
of the employees’ basic salaries on a monthly basis.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employers’
contributions and accrued interest after 10 years of
service, or at an increasing scale ranging from 20% to
90% after completion of 2 to 9 years of service.

All qualified Hong Kong employees who commenced
employment on or after 1 September 2000 are
members of the second defined contribution scheme
which has been set up in accordance with the
guidelines of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Both the employers and employees
contribute 5% of relevant income to the scheme each
month. For non-management staff, the contribution
of each party is limited to HK$1,500. The assets of
the second defined contribution scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

14 RIKEFRFE

AEBETERTE TERXEN
BB RHERKER o

AEERERAEREABRERL
PR 57 7E KA 8

a. M2000F9A1HACEREN
BEEEEREEREHREE
B8 - EEATEH-RREEA
BERBIETATENARE
SO HFE o RIBEZTEIRE
Al BEExEREEED T AM
ZETEER SN E B EARF
5% HAK - EE TR M
105F1% - B RS 100% &) (&
FHAERESAE - KRR
BW2FEIF AN H20%E
90% KYIEIZIRZ ENS R -

b. 20009 H 1B AERLR
RENEZECERESEER
E AR TEHFKEE (BECE
FlME A IE S 5T BERDE HE 5] BK
S)WKE - BEREE D
BARZAEELEBEERNEH
WA R - BLIEEEE
EEME  €FMERERA
1,500 o B = AR EH
HEtBMEERAEBNEE
SF - AEEAENNESHE
ﬁ °
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14 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(CONTINUED)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

The Group has participated in the 401(k) scheme covering
all of its eligible employees in the U.S. Employees who
participate in the plan may defer a portion of their
compensation on a pre-income tax basis up to a limit
specified by law. The Group’s only contribution to the plan
is based on each eligible employee matching 100% of
deferral up to the first 4% of compensation.
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14 RARBRIGE ()

AEETENBARNES ST E
TR & 3 1O B K 3R AR K AR A A 3
R R B o Mt B 2 B 78 [ R K 1@ A
B NRFEXRA—ERER D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B H AR MY ()

15 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments comprised the payments to
directors of the Company by the Group in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Group. The

15 EERSREEAESHE

(a)

EsMe

EEMEBERAKREEEAR
SEEBMAARRESEIMN
MR - AARIESHME 0

emoluments of the directors of the Company are as e
follows:
Basic
salaries,
allowances Provident Inducement or
Director's  and benefits-  Discretionary fund  compensation Total
Name of director fees in-kind bonuses  contributions fees  emoluments
EXEe . 28
] Ezhe  REMLE BEEL  AMEeHR  REORE Hesg
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Executive Directors HTES
Han Xiaosheng " B - 2,304 198 115 - 2,617
Liu Bing 2k - - - - - -
Liu Hongwei gt - - - - - -
Zhang Xifang RER - - - - - -
Liu Guosheng YA - - - - - -
Non-executive Director FunES
Zhao Yingwei © BEE" - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTES
Directors
Liu Jipeng ¥ A 213 - - - - 213
Yan Fashan " g™ 213 - - - - 213
Lo Wa Kei Roy®® EEEPY 213 - - - - 213
2020 total 2020 45 639 2,304 198 115 - 3,256
Notes: B
M Chief Executive Officer 0 mE
@ Member of the Remuneration Committee @ FMEBEKE
@ Member of the Audit Committee @ EiZZBEKE
@ Member of the Nomination Committee @ REZEBEKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

15 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 156 EERSREEAEHE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EE=M<(E)
Basic salaries,
allowances Inducement or
Director's  and benefits-  Discretionary ~ Provident fund  compensation Total
Name of director fees in-kind bonuses  contributions fees  emoluments
9.8 A=
EE & g2 REMMG MErL  MERER RBIEE Hefs

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Executive Directors HiTEs

Han Yaosheng "% s (1019 _ 790 B 0 ~ -
Liu Bing s _ _ _ _ _ _
Liu Hongwei 2t - - _ _ _ _
Zhang Xifang REF - - _ _ _ _
Liu Guosheng &7 - - _ _ _ _

Non-executive Directors FinEE
Zhao Yingwei HEEY - - - _ _ _
ZHANG Fubiao ® R - - - - _ _

Independent Non-executive ~ B k78S

Directors
Liu Jipeng Bl 200 - - - - 200
Cai Hongping® i 82 - - - - 82
Yan Fashan " B 200 - - - - 200
Lo Wa Kei Roy @ EEE™ 200 - - - - 200
2019 total 019585t 682 792 - 40 - 1514
Notes: MIsE -
o Chief Executive Officer o wmE
@ Member of the Remuneration Committee @ FMEBEKE
@ Member of the Audit Committee @ BEREBENE
@ Member of the Nomination Committee @ REZEBENKE
© 6

G

Resigned with effect from 31 May 2019 E 201945 A 31 B BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

15 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Any performance related incentive payments are
determined with reference to the Group’s operating
results and individual performances.

The emoluments of the Chief Executive Officer and
executive directors listed above were primarily for
their services in connection with the management of
the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no directors of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments.

156 EEREREEAENE

(%)

(a)

E=M=(#)

R R R R A B2 R SRR T 48
DERSENREEBEREAA
REMETE -

PR RAITESOME )
TERWERARR RAEH
R EIRIFH R RIS S A -

RIS B BT
FENBE N EEARE(ES
A R B A R T 2
fit o

REE 2020 F K 2019F 12 A

BIBELEFE  UEARAES
W R B R WM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

15 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include one (2019:
no) director. The emoluments payable to the four
(2019: five) non-director individuals for the year are as
follows:

156 EEREREEAENE
(%)

(b)

TuREMEAL

EAFEAEEMe &SN R
L ALtHBE (20195 :
B)ES RAFERNTHZM
f7(20194F : AfL)IFEF AL
RS T

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BB FT

Basic salaries, allowances and EAXFe  RMLEY
benefits-in-kind W zs 10,377 13,056
Discretionary bonuses B IFIEAL 798 488
Provident fund contributions IN R 363 445
11,538 13,989

The emoluments of the four (2019: five) individuals
with the highest emoluments for the year fall within
the following bands:

REEMA (20195 © TfI)F&
SHEALTHEIEER T 5
[E e

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument bands 2020 2019
e sE 2020 20194
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 7 3,500,001 TLE /A 4,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 713,000,001 T2 & # 3,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 75 2 500,001 70 2 5 # 3,000,000 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 = HK$2,500,000 5% 2,000,001 L2 E# 2,500,000 7T 2 2
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, REZE2020F & 2019612 A

no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e B R R AR B R (AR

16 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - WBRRE

Furniture,
Freehold  Construction Leasehold fixtures and Motor
[and in progress Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
KA g BRBER
ER1h BRIE gr 5% RERRE hE 3t

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Voidd Va2 ¥in i VLo V-ia V-id

Cost it

At 1 January 2020 RONE1F1E 41,648 2,179,493 21,489 11,943 13,685 3,262 2,871,540
Addiions FE - 6,737 3 13807 19 - 20,174
Transfer in (Note 17[3) ENh171) - - 12,569 - - - 12,569
Transfer out (Note 17(2) EE171) - - (6,219) - - - (6,279)
Disposals and write-of tE R - - - (498) - () (125)
Exchange translaton differences ErzE (188) (12217) 880 842 142 3 (10,504)
At 31 December 2020 Ra0nE12A31E 41,460 2,174,013 28,603 26,004 14,023 3,092 2,887,375

Accumulated depreciationand ~ E3tHERHE

impairment

At 1 January 2020 RONE1A1B - - 3,781 9,267 10,068 2,346 25,462
Charge for he year (Note 8 FEAE(MES) - - 1,345 3,036 1,637 360 6,308
Transfer out (Note 17(2) Bl 171) - - (1,786) - - - (1,786)
Disposals and wrie-off HERE - - - 1) - (196) (on1)
Exchange ranslaton differences  ERZE - - (38) 1Y) 9% | 1
MO Deembp 20 ROOFRAME SUR S We . o s W B5
Net book value BEFE

At 31 December 2020 RONE12A31E 41,460 2,714,013 25,301 13,794 2,20 522 2,857,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

16 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - WBBRRE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
Freehold  Construction Leaseold  fixtures and Motor
land in progress Buidings  improvements equipment venicles Total
KA B8 KR OHE
RELH RRIR BT nERE KRGk i o)
HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$:000 HKS:000
Vi ERTT Vi o Vi g Vv Vi Vi
Cost A

At 1 January 2019, previously 1020191 A 1R

reported (%) 41,889 2,781,293 21,667 12,004 12,682 515 2874880
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RREASBREENF 165 - (225) - - - - (225)
A1 January 2019, as restated 720191 £ 1B (HE5) 41889 2,781,068 21,667 12,004 12,682 515 2874655
Additions FE - 14,431 5 504 1,161 - 16,149
Disposals and wrie-off ik - - - (749) (217) (1812 g
Exchange translation differences  ERZE (241) (16,006) (281) (] 5 (31) (16,493)
At 31 December 2019 RA010E12A318 4548 2779493 21,489 11,043 13,685 3280 2871540

Accumulated depreciation and ~ E3fFEREE

impairment

At 1 January 2019 01951 A1H - - 2,163 8,245 7,907 3,240 22,145
Charge for the year (Note 8) EERE(HS) - - 1,083 1,383 2,38 655 5,507
Disposals and wrte-off HE R - - - (359) (194) (1,527) (2,074
Exchange tranglation differences  EJZE - - (55) @) (31) 22) (116)
At 31 December 2019 019128318 - - 3,781 9,267 10,068 2,346 25,462
Net book value RERE

At 31 December 2019 R019F12 4318 41,648 2,179,493 17,708 2,076 3,617 936 2,846,078
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

16 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - HERRE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessments on the Group’s construction
in progress

The carrying amounts of construction in progress consists
of an amount of relating to the Group’s power plant located
in Indonesia, which are currently under construction that
which will be depreciated once the construction of the
power plants are complete and available for use.

With reference to a valuation conducted by an independent
professional valuer, the management performed impairment
assessments on the Group’s construction in progress at the
end of the reporting period. Based on the valuation, as at
31 December 2020, in view of the recoverable amounts of
the Group’s construction in progress are higher than their
carrying amounts, no impairment losses were recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Details of the impairment assessments are set out
below:

As at 31 December 2020

The recoverable amounts of construction in progress are
determined from value in use calculation of the power
plant located in Indonesia using the cash flow projection,
based on multiple scenario financial budgets approved by
management, followed by management’s estimation on future
business and expected completion of construction. Each of
the scenarios are probability weighted. The multiple scenario
financial budgets assumption and probability weighting in
its discounted cash flow projections to reflect the level of
uncertainty from the impact of COVID-19 as follows:

FEBAER TRNBETMG

ERETITEMNEASEEEARA
EEMNRHNENERZESHO S
BoBHEMIE LRI Ra#tF
B BastEime -

K2ZFTEXHEMETHR
B EEESRMEHARERNEE
ERIRETRENMG  ERMG
B M2020F12A31H  ERAK
SETEIRNTKEcERRNE
BRE$&%  HZE2020F12A31H
IEFE N E AR EE B (2019 F -
/).

EFFIG A EF RS2 -

R2020F 12 531 H

FRIBNTKRESENFERER
EEEANSBESMRESE
H &I & R TE R R B AL R BN fE Ay B
EMNEHAEE RAEBHEEE
B A REBRERTINBERER
Br-5BEHTUBMERMEST
HoMRMEREAMANZER
A58 B R R Tt R 0 LA R Ak
FERSYEMBRNTHABPEE
KFLT
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16 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessments on the Group’s construction
in progress (continued)

Details of the impairment assessments are set out
below: (continued)

As at 31 December 2020 (continued)

Scenario Assumption

BR CE

Bad Revenue is expected to be generated since 2025
REE TEHANE B 2025 FREEE KA

Normal Revenue is expected to be generated since 2024
A TBHAHS B 2024 FREEE WA

Good Revenue is expected to be generated since 2023
R TEHAN B 2023 FREEE KA

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,
while holding all other assumptions constant.

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the recoverable amount of construction in progress
is the pre-tax discount rate of 11.04%. If the pre-tax
discount rate is 0.5% higher or lower, the recoverable
amount would decrease by HK$186,000,000 or increase
by HK$201,000,000. The increase in pre-tax discount rate
of 0.5% would result in recognition of impairment loss of
HK$135,000,000 while the decrease in pre-tax discount
rate of 0.5% would not result in any recognition or reversal
of impairment loss.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the recoverable
amount of the construction in progress as it is unlikely that
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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16 W13 - MR N RiE ()

REE TR TRARER ()

REFFIERIF RS T - ()

R2020%E 12 H31 H(#&)

Probability
Weighting
B i

50%

50%

0%

AT 8URE 2 AT TH IR M8 FE R0 3R
SHIRHRA B RES(FAAEEM
RN TE) RELEMET -

ETTEIRBAIKRESENEAR
HHBREATAEIRE11.04% © WH
ATARIA R F A3 TP 0.5% + Al Yzal
SRR 7 186,000,000 JT k1%
hnA#E 201,000,000 7T ° FiATELIE =
FFH0.5% 15 BRI E BB
135,000,000 7T - ¢ A 8538 & T %
0.5% #& 1 & B 5 I 52 5 78 11 (T AT
BEEE -

ERXERRAICEERHE TR
BERAAAEAENZEMBEBRERT
TR WEX2INHERED
TA—ERRERZIRAINE S

MERED -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

16 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 1% - B[ RZHE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Impairment assessments on the Group’s construction AEBEZEIEBWEEE(E)

in progress (continued)

Details of the impairment assessments are set out EFFERFEEEST - (&)
below: (continued)

As at 31 December 2019 R20194F 12 31 H

The recoverable amounts of construction in progress are ARIEMTWESEEFERAER
determined from value in use calculation of the power EEEAENTREEELINRS
plants located in Indonesia using the cash flow projection, MIBBETEM R ENER 2 E R A
based on financial budgets approved by management, REE AEZBHREEEMBTRR
followed by management’s estimation on future business ¥ NBEHTINEREET °

and expected completion of construction.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined VAT SRS 95 4T T 4% 48 JE R 5% 0 )
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective HEHRNIR G IR AT ae B (FTA Hith
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, BB M2 ) AEEMET -

while holding all other assumptions constant.

The significant actuarial assumption for the determination BrEFEEIRJWNOSEMEKRE
of the recoverable amount of construction in progress HEREAHABEIEE11.11% ° {#F:
is the pre-tax discount rate of 11.11%. If the pre-tax ATBRIR E FF sl R[5 0.5% » AT UK [El
discount rate is 0.5% higher or lower, the recoverable & AR A B 5 196,000,000 JTEk i
amount would decrease by HK$196,000,000 or increase hn78 % 211,000,000 7T © BAIR R &
by HK$211,000,000. The change in discount rate of 0.5% 0.5% N & & 1 72 ok 7 O (£ {A] Rk (B
would not result in any recognition or reversal of impairment 18 -

loss.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be ERFELEBRRAEEREE 18
representative of the actual change in the recoverable BRETIAAEAETZEMEBRF
amount of the construction in progress as it is unlikely that BT W EXRINNERED
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one TA—ERFTEZIRAKE SR
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated NERES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 BEWH
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties  construction Total
BER rE
REME REWME @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
Valuation/cost &8/ A
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 1,224,302 3,902,820 5,127,122
Additions B 721 324,778 325,499
Transfer in (Note () B (M7 () 11,109 - 11,109
Transfer out (Note (a)) &1 (3 (a) (17,753) - (17,753)
Exchange translation differences IE R 79,147 (16,385) 62,762
At 31 December 2020 R 2020F 12 A 31 H 1,297,526 4,211,213 5,508,739
At 1 January 2019, previously reported #2019 1 A1 H(WAIEH) 1,241,449 3,171,622 4,413,071
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RABBNBHRELRZE 165 - 251 251
At 1 January 2019, as restated R2019F1 A1 H(LET)) 1,241,449 3,171,873 4,413,322
Additions NE
— Acquisitions - Wi 10,234 - 10,234
— Subsequent expenditure - HEBYH - 751,929 751,929
Exchange translation differences R AR (27,381) (20,982) (48,363)
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 1,224,302 3,902,820 5,127,122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17 BREWME(E)

(CONTINUED)
The Group’s investment properties comprise: REBERZEMEBIE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Shanghai, the PRC - Office units RS — HATENM
(Note (b)) (P 5E (b)) 1,297,526 1,224,302
Los Angeles, the U.S. — Commercial ERELH — BEERPEHE
properties under development (Note (c)) Y1 (M5E () 4,211,213 3,902,820
5,508,739 5,127,122
Notes: BIEE -
(@)  Certain premises held by the Group previously classified as (@ BERAEEFMFEENETMER

investment properties of HK$17,753,000 were reclassified to
properties, plant and equipment of HK$12,569,000 (Note 16)
and right-of-use assets of HK$5,184,000 (Note 18) as there
was a change in use from held to earn rentals to held for
the Group’s own use during the year ended 31 December
2020. Meanwhile, certain premises held by the Group
previously classified as properties, plant and equipment
of HK$4,493,000 (Note 16) and right-of-use assets of
HK$2,094,000 (Note 18) were reclassified to investment
properties of HK$11,109,000 as there was a change in use
from held for the Group’s own use to held to earn rentals
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of these
premises (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer amounted to
HK$4,522,000 and is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve.

BNE E2020F 128318 IEF
ERmAHKBRESMBENRE A
rEEBERMmMBEAE WZS
¥CANELBEAREMELK
17,753,000 TEHM D B AWM= -
22 & 3R 5 8 12,569,000 7T
(MF1e) A REREEEBE
5,184,000 7 (Ff 5£18) - & — A
B ARAEEMBAENE TWE
BB RNE £2020F12 318 1t
FEANBRAEEAAmMBTENE A
ARDASMEE  WZENED
A E RS BB REE
75 # 4,493,000 T (M 7£16) A &
16 B #E & & 8 2,004,000 7T (Fff
FIBEF O EAREMESE
11,109,000 7T * 2 EWE(BIED
HAREAREENEBEEE 1)
REZEYNEDSBEE AR EE
K =5 A 4,522,000 7T © WH
Hip 2 AR AR KR EGBEE
AEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements
for investment properties. These fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.

17 REW=E (&)

BIeE - (&)

(o) TRINFEHEREMENEEMLER
RBEFENT - WERAAEER
BREMHERMAMER AR
BMRARBESRTOBEESH

FEII
Quoted
prices
in active Significant
markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Fair value hierarchy Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
X
HREE HitEX FHEE
EERMSLE ABRERSH FBMEA
HRE BAYE i
DMABEZER F1 2 EI} et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B FoT EEFoT EEFor JEEFor
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H
Office units - PRC WAEEBAL — - - 1,297,526 1,297,526
At 31 December 2019 MH2019%F12 A31H
Office units - PRC MAZEMN — PH — - 1,224,302 1,224,302

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers into/out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer.

As at 31 December 2020, the office units in the PRC have
been valued by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, professional
valuers. The fair value of the investment properties was
determined based on, amongst other factors, comparable
market transactions, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the
light of current market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e B R R AR B R (AR

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

(Continued)

The valuations are derived using the income capitalisation
method. This method is based on the capitalisation of net
income with due allowance for outgoings and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation
rates, which are derived from analysis of sale transactions
and valuers’ interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in
the valuation are referenced to valuers’ view of recent
lettings, within the subject properties and other comparable
properties.

17 BREWME(E)

BIeE : (&)

(0)

(&)

EEARSEERNMETDEERE © b7
EDRMERFRENMEREE - R
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K2 EHHEXHH DT R EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWXE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued) W« (&)
(b)  (Continued) b &)
Information about fair value measurements on completed ﬁEWEEW%ﬁ%%*ETE%3
investment properties in the PRC based on Level 3 fair value f&ﬂﬁﬁ@%%&ﬁiﬁﬁ BENE
hierarchy: o
Range of  Relationship of
Significant significant unobservable
Valuation unobservable unobservable inputs to
Description Fair value at technique inputs inputs fair value  Total
EXATHBE  FUERMASH
EXTTRE gL BARBRAR
b RTSIEENRAEE HERH TN 4 HEGE EENEE A
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020% 19F 2020% 195
HKS'000 HK8'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000  HK8'000
BEFr BETr EETr EEFT EEFr BEFT EETT
Harbour Ring Plaza 1,007,225 961,813 Income capitalisation ~ Capitalisation rate 7.0% 7.0%  The higher the
AEES method (e capitalisation rate,
WaERE the lower the fair
ovale
Feleiry
MhEEME
Rental rate RMB171-251/ RMB170-240/  The higher the rental
fg= month/sq.m. month/sqm.  rate, te figher the
§YFKEA S¥HXER far value
AREAT 7L ARBOT Ee¥EE:
EBIT 2207 MEEHS
Harbour Ring Huangpu Centre 290,301 272,489 Income capitalisation  Capitalisation Rate 7.0% 7.0%  The higher the
BEERTL method Bk capitalisation rate,
WHERLE the lower the fair
~valeg
B EgR -
RREEEE
Rental rate RMB110-240/ RMB95-220/  The higher the rental
HEx month/sq.m. month/sgm. rate, the higher the
§¥RRER 5ERREA far value
ARB110T ARROST MEEdm:
07 Eoon  DrBEER
Total 1,297,526 1,204,302
@it

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment properties in the PRC was the adjusted market
rental per square metre. 5% increase and decrease in
the adjusted price per sg.m. used would result in an
increase and decrease in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties of HK$49,000,000
(2019: HK$45,000,000), and HK$48,000,000 (2019:
HK$45,000,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)

For the investment properties under construction in Los
Angeles, the U.S., they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period and
fair value cannot be reliably measurable at that time, and
therefore are stated at cost of HK$4,211,213,000 (2019:
HK$3,902,820,000). The fair value is expected to become
reliably measureable when the construction is completed
which is expected to take place in 2023. The management
performed impairment assessment at the end of reporting
period and estimated the value by value in use based on
cash flow projection, followed by estimation of management
on future business and expected completion of construction.
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, no impairment losses
were recognised for the investment properties in Los
Angeles, the U.S..

The significant assumption for the determination of the
value in use of investment properties under construction in
Los Angeles, the U.S., is the pre-tax discount rate of 7.5%
(2019: 7.3%). If the pre-tax discount rate is 0.1% higher or
lower, the value in use would decrease by HK$126,000,000
or increase by HK$131,000,000 (2019: decrease by
HK$135,000,000 or increase by HK$141,000,000). The
decrease and increase in pre-tax discount rate of 0.1%
would not result in any recognition or reversal of impairment
loss for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

On 2 September 2020, the Group has entered into a loan
financing term sheet together with subsequent amendments
to the term sheet with a third party for a loan of
approximately US$900.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,977.3 million) for financing the completion of the
Group’s real estate development project in Los Angeles, the
U.S., comprising investment properties under construction
and properties under development (see Note 21) and paying
off all current debts to the creditors for the project.

On 16 September 2020, Oceanwide Plaza LLC, a subsidiary
of the Company, received a notice issued by the Lendlease
(US) Construction Inc. in relation to the termination of the
construction contract of the construction of a large scale
mixed-use urban commercial complex project (“Los Angeles
Project”), which comprises the investment properties in
U.S. and properties under development in Los Angeles,
the U.S.. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
construction of the Los Angeles Project was suspended
until the Group appoints a new contractor. Further details
of the circumstances are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 September 2020 and 16 October
2020 respectively.

17 REWZE (&)

BeE - (&)

©

NREBREEONERREMERE
WMEBKRDERIKERERP  E8X
ASEMAEERNRIAEE
I B LA BR AN 5 #4,211,213,000
JL(20194F : 78 % 3,902,820,000
TSR - AR EBEEBHITRER
TR (FEEN 2023 E X B ) o] 5
T2 o BRENREHRETR
BT WIRRESRIBAMERE
BEFTEHEER  ARBHERE
hEt R RERRIBHT ITNERE
EF o 120204 N2019F 12 A
318 YERUAEBISZHEEN
WEYEEDREESE -

EBEUREEREENERLED
¥MFEAEENERBRATA
IR 7.5% (20194 : 7.3%) &
AIERIRE FFA S TFR01% - FHE
1 #5 58 2 7 126,000,000 7T =k, 18
Hn 7 #131,000,000 7T(20194F = 3
> % 135,000,000 7T 8% 3E 1N i
141,000,0007T ) ° P&, 2= 2020 F &
2019F 12 A31 BIEFE  FHAIELR
RH A RIEIN0A% BT EEHZE
FEATRERSBRERSER -

M2020F 9820 R&EEE @
—EZE AN ERBEEREER
FGEREERET RAEHEE
HHE9.000BETT(HHER N B
69.773187L) UM AEEHER
BEBEWEREEE(REERE
BEMERTERYEG2HMH
21))BTREMEEEBEEREAN
FIBRABELR -

R2020F9A16H 2 8EHE
RAR*(ARQAZ— K BRAF)
I 2 Lendlease (US) Construction
Inc.ZEHMABM  ARBBKRILE
H—EARERS ARH M EELSE
ZRER(DREHER HNERE
4 HPRRBEERMNREYMELE
BRI TEZ Y - BlZE20204F
12A31BILEFE BEHERE T
BEFET  BEASEZRTHAER
BALE - BB REOE—SFHBEH
RANA T HEID B A 202049 A 25
AKX 202010 A 16 BEY Q% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

18 LEASES 18 #HE
The Group leases a number of properties in the REBREKSELHERN AR
jurisdictions from which it operates. No lease contracts in EZBEYE - NEMBEER - B
any jurisdictions require lease payments to increase each EHEANERBEENRTFERE
year by inflation or and in others to be reset periodically BEREmMEN  MRE M F] xR
to market rental rates that would cause variability. In all BAITHEFEEZMHHES K
jurisdictions property leases the periodic rent is () either o BRI ERAIEMN o RATE A
fixed over the lease term; or (ii) variable that does not R MEHENTEFHESAG
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the RIEBABETE 5 (i) FBEIL
index or rate as at commencement date. FEBUAREH XA E - mMEFEAR

Fsh A HIR IR B A R BRATE -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FEAEEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBEFT B FoT

— Properties leased for own use, carried — H{EERANEAE

at depreciated cost ¥ - IR ER AT R 42,458 61,547
— Ownership interests in leasehold land — FAE +# RIEFHEE

and buildings, carried at depreciated R IRITER AT

cost with remaining lease term of 50 iR & THEAS0F

years or more A F 5,427 2,150

47,885 63,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

18 LEASES (CONTINUED)

18 HE(E)

(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) FRHEZEEGE)

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
JBMT T BB TFT
At 1 January, previously reported ®1A1B(EI2®) 63,697 —

Adoption of HKFRS 16 RRAEBY B mEEL
FE169% - 81,969

At 1 January 2020/1 January 2019, M2020F 1818,/

as restated 2019F 1 A1 A(KET)) 63,697 81,969
Additions B 6,184 8,391
Transfer in (Note 17(a)) A (M13E17(a) 5,184 —
Transfer out (Note 17(a)) #H (FIFE17(a)) (2,094) —
Modification 1B - (1,108)
Depreciation expense for the year FRFERAS (26,267) (25,298)
Exchange differences PE N ZE5R 1,181 (257)
At 31 December ®w12A31H 47,885 63,697

The management assessed the recoverability of

right-of-use assets. The management performed

impairment assessment at the end of reporting period

and estimated recoverable amounts of right-of-use

assets from value in use calculation of respective
cash generating units (“CGUs”) based on cash flow
projection, followed by estimation of management

on future business and expected completion of
construction. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, no

impairment losses were recognised.

ERESTEFRAEEERNT
EiEE - RIEHAR - BEEE
HORERT - et EAREE
BRI [El & RE IR IR & 7 TR ORI AT
BHRERSEREM([REEK
B DHEAEBE  AEEHE
BEEFT AR RS KT T
EREBETE - BR20204F K% 2019
F12A31 8 WEEDREE
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

18 LEASES (CONTINUED) 18 #HE (&)

(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEER
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B F T
At 1 January, previously reported W1 A1B(R2) 82,831 —
Adoption of HKFRS 16 KRB BY SR
E169% - 92,063
At 1 January 2020/1 January 2019, R2020F1A18/
as restated 201941 A1 B(KEH) 82,831 92,063
Additions NE 6,184 8,391
Modification 1B - (1,444)
Interest expense for the year FRFEBFHX 5,232 6,461
Payment for the year FRNRFK (22,138) (22,134)
Exchange differences MEHZER 292 (506)
At 31 December w12 A31H 72,401 82,831
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BB F T
The present value of future lease RRBEERNFTHREL WA
payments are analysed as:
— Current portion — REED 30,937 38,125
— Non-current portion — IEREEH D 41,464 44,706
At 31 December »12 A31H 72,401 82,831
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

18 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

18 HE(E)

(b) HESEE)

2020 2019
2020 2019 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
— Short term lease expense — RHEERX 447 559
— Expense relating to variable lease — TRt A EBETEN
payments not included in the FEIHENRAX
measurement of lease liabilities 2,760 7,414
Total operating lease charges in respect Tt AFHE GBI EH
of properties not included in the YR EHEBRBE
measurement of lease liabilities 3,207 7,973
Future lease payments are due as follows: RRMEN R B RN
™
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
BEEEMAR FE FERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETFT BT
At 31 December 2020 R20205128 318
Not later than one year NER—F 33,852 (2,915) 30,937
Later than one year and not later than ~ BER—FETERNRE
five years 33,175 (7,774) 25,401
Later than five years ERRF 28,123 (12,060) 16,063
95,150 (22,749) 72,401
At 31 December 2019 RK2019F12831H
Not later than one year TER—F 43,180 (5,055) 38,125
Later than one year and not later than BN —FETERTF
five years 32,529 (8,947) 23,582
Later than five years ERDF 23,895 (2,771) 21,124
99,604 (16,773) 82,831
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

19 BRAAEEFAHMET
WENMBEE

INCOME
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Non-publicly traded listed equity securities 3EFTE® FHREZ A
— Hong Kong (Note (a)) — &Mk @) - 96,647
Publicly traded listed equity securities ITHEELTRESRS
— Hong Kong (Note (b)) — BB (M5 (b)) 2,409 —
2,409 96,647

Notes:

(@)

The Group’s non-publicly traded listed equity securities
represents the Group’s equity investment in Huiyuan Juice
(former stock code: 1886). The Group held 7.49% of
the total equity interest of Huiyuan Juice (2019: 7.49%).
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company’s
equity investments in Huiyuan Juice has become non-
publicly traded as trading of shares of Huiyuan Juice has
been suspended since April 2018. Hence, these equity
investments were transferred from listed equity securities to
non-publicly traded listed equity securities during the year 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2020, with reference to a valuation
conducted by an independent valuer, in view of the above
circumstance, the directors of the Company considered that
the recoverable amount of the Group’s investment in Huiyuan
Juice might be minimal and therefore, a full impairment loss
of HK$96,647,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
income during the year (2019: nil).

With effect from 18 January 2021, the listing of Huiyuan
Juice’s shares was cancelled.

The Group’s publicly traded listed equity securities
represents the Group’s equity investments in ordinary shares
of entities listed on the Stock Exchange. As at 31 December
2020, the fair value of the publicly trade listed equity
securities is based on the bid price quoted in the Stock
Exchange at the end of the reporting period.

The financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income are denominated in HKS.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 & - ARARERAEME

RECEIVABLES WK IE
2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETFT
Non-current portion FREIT D
Prepayments for construction of power REEBRATEN BRI
plants (Notes (a) and 33(e)) (P17 (a) X2 33(e)) 331,313 332,957
Loan and interest receivables from FEUR —FEIFT B A AR R M B R
shareholders of a subsidiary K8 (M (b) % 33(q))
(Notes (b) and 33(g))
— Shanghai Electric Power Construction  — EBBEHERERET
Co., Ltd. (“SEPC”) AFI([SEPC]) 3,998 4,115
— PT. Garda Sayap Garuda (“GSG”) — PT. Garda Sayap
Garuda ([GSG) 260,077 271,074
Prepaid insurance AR E 5,256 -
Note receivables (Note (c)) FEM =R (5T (c) - 168,437
Others HAh 9,597 9,618
Total non-current portion FERENIB 2 4B ET 610,241 786,201
Current portion TRENE
Prepaid insurance FERNRE 8,511 28,775
Prepaid loan interest TR ERF B 32,916 32,916
Other interest receivables (Note (c)) H At I B (BT (c) - 637
Amounts due from related parties FE U BA 7T ROR
(Note 33(g)) (M13E33(9)) 12,265 12,502
Others At 28,694 28,413
Total current portion BN ER D HEET 82,386 103,243
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The balance included HK$310,932,000 (2019:
HK$312,345,000) progress payments made to SEPC,
a non-controlling shareholder of certain subsidiaries of
the Company, and its subsidiary, PT. Shanghai Electric
Power Construction (“PT.SEPC”), for the procurement and
installation of equipment and machineries for the Group’s
power plant projects in Indonesia.

The management performed future utilisability assessment
of prepayments for construction of power plants. It is
determined from (1) confirmation of constructor and contract
terms and; (2) value in use calculation of the power plant
located in Indonesia based on cash flow projection, followed
by estimation of management on future business, expected
completion of construction. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, no impairment losses were recognised.

The loan and interest receivables are due from SEPC and
GSG, non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and are denominated in US$.

As at 31 December 2020, the principal amount of the loan to
SEPC was fully repaid and the gross carrying amount of the
loan to GSG was HK$219,810,000 (2019: HK$220,808,000).
The loan to GSG is interest bearing at 7% per annum and
is repayable through its share of the future dividend of the
subsidiaries. Up to the date of this report, no interest was
paid according to the terms of loan agreement.

The gross interest receivables from SEPC and GSG were
HK$4,113,000 (2019: HK$4,132,000) and HK$67,006,000
(2019: HK$67,310,000), respectively. The interest
receivables are interest free and repayable through their
shares of the future dividend of the subsidiaries. Up to the
date of this report, no interest was paid according to the
terms of loan agreement.

As at 31 December 2020, an ECL provision of
HK$16,657,000 (2019: HK$6,818,000) (Note 6(b)) was made
on the loan and interest receivables from shareholders of a
subsidiary, respectively.

The note and interest receivables are due from an
independent third party, unsecured, with fixed interest rate
of 3.65% per annum and payable semi-annually, mature on
23 May 2021, and denominated in US$.

As at 31 December 2019, an ECL provision of HK$431,000
(Note 6(b)) was made on the note receivables. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the whole amount of note
receivables were early redeemed and the interest receivables
were fully settled. Thus, the ECL provision made in 2019
were reversed in full during the year ended 31 December
2020.

20 B - ANREREME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21 BEHDPYE

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

At 1 January, previously reported ®1A1B(EI23®k) 15,690,742 14,798,884

Adoption of HKFRS 16 KABAEYBHRELAE 165 - 1,777
At 1 January 2020/1 January 2019, R2020F1 818,/

as restated 201941 A1 H(&KE75) 15,690,742 14,800,661

Additions NE 827,257 981,148

Impairment provision (Note 6(e)) TEEE (WHE6E) (617,779) —

Exchange differences fEHZ%E (71,042) (91,067)

At 31 December m12 A31H 15,829,178 15,690,742

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the properties
under development were expected to be completed and
recovered after one year from the end of the reporting
period. The construction of properties under development
in Los Angeles, the U.S. was suspended during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and details of which are
disclosed in Note 17.

On 29 March 2021, the Group entered into a memorandum
of understanding with a third party to dispose of the
Group’s three Hawaii property projects.

R 20204F & 2019412 431 H » %
BRAYEBHRERREBARET —
F®R T kU EIFHIE - ZBISAZH
ERYENZERENEZ2020F 12
B31BULEFERET  AREFBEHE
HIEE7 ©

MR2021F3H29H » AEEE—F
F-FEURBEREE  LHEX
EE=-AERRYWHEIER -
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(CONTINUED)

21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the

Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under

development according to their net realisable values based

on the realisability of these properties. Net realisable value

for properties under development is determined with

reference to management’s estimates of the selling price

based on prevailing market conditions, less applicable

variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to

completion (including land costs). Based on management’s

best estimates, provisions of impairment losses are as

follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

21 HEPUEGR)

REASENSEE  AKEE
RERTYMENERENILZF
XA SR FETHERESHE -
ERTYUENAERFEDLSRE
EBERRITHRMGNER - M
HER A EHER LA R TR
AERLHURR)EE EREE
Br&REMBT  ARERRERSE
B

2020 2019

2020% 19%
Gross  Provision for Carrying Gross  Provision for Carrying
amount  impairment value amount impairment value
L AERE BEE % WEERE REE
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HKS'000
BRTT BRTr BRTT BETT BETT BETT
Los Angeles, the U.S. EENS 7,334,614 (280,470) 7,054,144 6,824,353 - 6,824,353
Ko Olina No. 2 Land, Hawail, the U.S. XEERZERBA %1 1,693,956 - 1,693,956 1,685,155 - 1,685,155
Ko Olina No. 1 Land, Hawail, the U.S. £RE szt 3,044,517 (337,309) 2,707,208 2,798,191 - 2,798,191
Kapolei West, Hawail, the U.S. ZHERZFHERR 1,006,372 - 1,006,372 1,006,145 - 1,006,145
New York, the U.S. XERs 3,445,080 (77,582) 3,367,498 3,454,480 (77,582) 3,376,898
16,524,539 (695,361) 15,829,178 15,768,324 (77,582) 15,690,742
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21 BEADYE(E)

(CONTINUED)

With reference to a valuation conducted by an independent
professional valuer, the management performed impairment
assessments on the Group’s properties under development
at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, impairment
losses of HK$617.8 million (2019: nil) was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and details are set out
below:

Impairment loss on the condominium portion of Los
Angeles, the U.S. project (the “LA Impairment”)

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development according to their net realisable values
based on the realisability of these properties. Income
approach is used for the valuation to determine the net
realizable value of the condominium portion of Los Angeles
Project. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Though the construction of the Group’s real estate
development project in Los Angeles, the U.S. (the “Los
Angeles Project”) commenced in the second half of 2014.
In 2018, construction works of the project for all main
structures were completed. However, the construction
progress of the Los Angeles Project was affected as the
macro-economic performance of the U.S. was affected
by the COVID-19 last year, coupled with the arbitration
and disputes between the general contractor and the
Group and its decision to terminate the construction
contract. As a result, the project development was also
fully suspended temporarily from September 2020. Due
to these reasons, the expected completion date of the
Los Angeles Project in the cash flow model was delayed
and there were adverse impacts on the fair value of the
project. In addition, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic
on the property market in Los Angeles, the expected

2EB LI EGBERMETHG
B ERERABREHREAEEH
MEBEBRMEETRETG - B
gt © B £2020F12H31H It F
EwROMAEBBELKG178E T
(20195 : |)RBHEFBAOT :

XERTYHEEABEHONEES
BOBREZHEE]D

AEEERERTYVRNERE
BaESMENA ERFEFGHER
HLH NEERCHERATM
7R A R FERER KA - A
EBIRFEDN B EEBBIEROMG
AHEEMRMA T IRARKETH
EMMFHIfE AR

NEBHEBSEHREEREE
BB HIAEE |)R20145F T
FET 2018FE EKFATHE £
BEIREE - A BREFE
EHRBEERRIZIHEMARE
BEOEE MEEABREERNEER
Z MR RS A RERE &I
BRAH BEHMEENEREE
B2 o Bt - 8B 7% B 2020
FOAMMBEEE® - AR L2
B RTHREERESRERPTE
AR TREBAMER  WEAED
R BEEKTFEE - o AR
HEmARBEEEHMET SIS
RITE - TEHI AT eI & EH 2019
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21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(CONTINUED)

initial condo selling price decreased from US$1,485
sqg. ft. — US$1,750 sqg. ft in 2019 to US$1,480 sq. ft. to
US$1,660 sqg. ft. in 2020. Moreover, the pre-tax discount
rate adopted in the valuation was increased from 9.75%
as at 31 December 2019 to 10.41% as at 31 December
2020 after considering the changes in the macro-economic
environment. The abovementioned changes in assumptions
resulted in a decrease in the net realisable value of the
Los Angeles condominium portion. There is a difference
between the recoverable amount of condominium portion of
the project as at 31 December 2020, at HK$7,054.1 million
and the book value before impairment of HK$7,334.6
million and hence LA Impairment of approximately
HK$280.5 million was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The significant key inputs and assumptions relating to the
LA Impairment for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, respectively, were as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

21 BRETYEE)

FHNEFEHFR1,485EFETEFFEH
IR 1,750 3 7T % 4 &= 2020 F 8 & F
FR1,480FE T EEF R 1,6603%
Too AN EERRBLCERED
b HEMKAMTATRLIER KR
2019 12 A31 HA9.75% 1 1 &
2020412 A 31 HAY10.41% o £l
BREDEPEELRAEHLDHA
DRFERL cBEERATHS N
2020F 12 A31 B M Al Bl & 2878
W 70541 BT ER BRI BREE B
73.346 B TME 2 HH Z 5 (BB
BOREHELE 2805 T)EREE
2020 12 A 31 Bt FEHER »

HE2020F % 2019F 12 A31 B 1k
FEEBERCHBAENBERERD A
BRBERS AT

Key assumptions and inputs

BRERREARE
Name/Location Type 2020 2019
298 1] BE 2020 20194
1101 South Flower Street, Residential Pre-tax discount rate  Pre-tax discount rate of
Los Angeles, the U.S. x= of 10.41% 9.75%
(condominium portion) BATARIR 2 10.41% BATALER % 9.75%

RS IEA 110158
(REEBD)

Expected completion
date of construction in
2023

EBERFEAN2023F T

Initial selling price
of US$1,480 sq. ft. to
US$1,660 sq. ft.
BHREBESTFAIR
1,480 X TEZFAHR
1,660 £ T
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Expected completion
date of construction in
2022

ERTEAIN 2022 F 5T T

Initial selling price of
US$1,485 sq. ft. to
US$1,750 sq. ft.
BBREBETHIR
1,485 X LEGTHR
1,750 7T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21 BEADYE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Impairment loss on Ko Olina 1 Land, Hawaii, the U.S.
project (the “Hawaii Impairment”)

Since the project is currently in the schematic design stage
and the expected future cash flow on the land cannot be
determined by the Company. The net realisable value of
the project was determined by its fair value less cost of
disposal. The market approach is used for determining the
fair value of the project.

In the year 2020, both the number of visitors and the
amount of visitor spending recorded a decrease of
approximately 70% vyear-on-year, and the retail industry
shrank while unemployment rate increased in Hawaii.
Given that the Hawaii economy which relies on the tourism
industry can hardly recover in the short term after the
outbreak of COVID-19, the time appreciation rate based on
the market trend from the land acquisition date to valuation
date adopted in the valuation of Hawaii projects, especially
the Hawaii Ko Olina No. 1 land, being the Group’s land
mainly for hotel use located at popular tourist areas on
Oahu Island in Hawaii, was significantly dropped from
28.100% in 2019 to 14.144% in 2020. It resulted in a
significant decrease in the net realisable value of Hawaii Ko
Olina No. 1 land, valuated at HK$2,707.2 million as at 31
December 2020, when compared with its book value before
impairment of HK$3,044.5 million, Hawaii Impairment of
HK$337.3 million was recognised for the year.

ZEERRPHE— 57 IE B K
EER(ERRREE]

MRIERBAER T RRE
B ARREAETE L HAEBEHR
KEER - BEMA SR FEEZHE
AABEINFHERKETE - REE
BEOARBERERATSE -

20204 + EEIERM IR &® = M K
EHEHBLHHMIEF RN T0% T
EXEERE MEAERLF - EK
RBIRIE B B R BT &
BEEHNATEHNERE  REE
BRIEE(LEZERER MM —
i DAEBFEREBREN LT
Hhy - {37 5 2P B 3% b [ B R 3R BL AR
5 )17 E R AT IR A A R FHE X
(ALl ASEHERSHNTS
B A AN ) H2019 4 #28.100%
AIE NEEE 2020 F M 14.144% © i&
BYEHRENP —F A &R
FE KR D K20204% 12 A 31
B G EABE27.02(87T - MRE
AIBRAE BB 304458 L ERN
FAEREBHRREEEI373E

ﬁo
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21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The significant key inputs and assumptions adopted in the
valuation relating to the Hawaii Impairment (related to Ko
Olina No. 1 land) for the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, respectively, were as follows:

Name/Location

B 1R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

21 HEPUEGR)

HE2020F K 2019F 12 A31 A 1k
FENBERFRE(EBR BT —
R ) ETTHER TR AR E A

BERBRDBIAT

Key assumptions and inputs

FRERRREAZE
2020 2019
2020 20194

Ko Olina No. 1 land (including
the parcels of land 20/21
(lot 4608), 25/26 (lot 4609)

and 19B (lot 5346-B))
R — 5% b (B FE b

20/21 (55 4608 iR )
25/26 (5 4609 5E ) K

19B (5 5346-B gt )

There were no changes to the valuation techniques and
methods on LA Impairment and Hawaii Impairment during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Commercial/

Average unit price per
sq. ft. of US$244.81

FHBEAEREFTAR
244.81% T

Time appreciation rate
of 14.144% based on
the market trend from
the land acquisition
date to valuation date
REAEE14.144% (XL
TR EAERH
WhmiZBERER)

Average unit price per
sq. ft. of US$244.81
FHEMBREFAR
244.813%7T

Time appreciation rate of
28.100% based on the
market trend from the
land acquisition date to
valuation date

R FHE % 28.100% (LA
T U HE B AR {E B HA
WIS BERER)

BEBBEMEREREREZ
2020 N 201912 A31 B It FE

A E R R AL EE 2R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21 BEADYE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Key assumptions adopted by management in the
assessment of net realisable values and the sensitivity
analyses below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
the net realisable value of properties under development
in New York are the average unit price per sq.ft. and
the time appreciation rate. If the average unit price per
sq.ft., as adjusted by the time appreciation rate, is 1%
higher or lower, the net realisable value would increase or
decrease by HK$34,000,000 (2019: increase or decrease
by HK$34,000,000). The increase in average unit price
per sq.ft. of 1% would result in reversal of impairment
loss recognised of HK$72,000,000, and the decrease in
average unit price per sq.ft. of 1% would not result in any
recognition or reversal of impairment loss (2019: reversal
of/additional impairment loss of HK$34,000,000).

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
the net realisable value of properties under development
in Hawaii are the average unit price per sqg.ft. and the
time appreciation rate. If the average unit price per
sq.ft.,, as adjusted by the time appreciation rate, is 1%
higher or lower, the net realisable value would increase
by HK$58,000,000 or decrease by HK$57,000,000
(2019: increase by HK$63,000,000 or decrease by
HK$66,000,000). The increase and decrease in average
unit price per sqg.ft. of 1% would result in reversal of
impairment loss of HK$27,000,000 or additional impairment
loss of HK$27,000,000 (2019: no reversal or recognition
impairment loss) respectively.

R B 0 i ) £ B R A
DA B2 3% R SRS 5 47 T3 R 4R
BN S BRI A A g
AR BRARSETE) BE

ETEE -

EEMRBLNNERPENZ
BEENEABERRATEAR
FHEMBRMEBEEAER - FiR
REABERAZRENEFEHREY
BB L TR 1% - Al &35
B = 1 0 skoR 478 5 34,000,000
JL(20194F 3% 0 =k 2 B K
34,000,0007T) © FFRFHER
B L 1% KBS BRERBERES
1B 72,000,0007T * MBFHR
BB 1% T2 EET
AR EEBBERLEE (20194F - &
[ 3% 0 6% B &5 18 7% & 34,000,000
JT) °

ETURERENERAPMENT
PRFENEARERKRAETH
RFEHYENBRFEBAER - &
REBAABEBXAZREHEFE S RE
HEMER EALTE1% A&
IR A= 1 07 % 58,000,000 7T =X
B, > 7 #57,000,000 7T (2019 £F ¢
# H0 7 # 63,000,000 7T 8k 6 4 7
66,000,000 7T) « ¥ RFEHER
EREARTERI% B BBHRED
R (& &5 18 75 & 27,000,000 JT 2k B8 S
B (B /&5 48 78 27,000,000 7T (2019
F o EBOSERBEREE)
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21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Significant assumptions for the determination of the net
realisable value of properties under development in Los
Angeles, the U.S. consist of the pre-tax discount rate and
initial selling price.

If the pre-tax discount rate is 0.5% higher or lower, the
net realisable value would decrease by HK$86,000,000
or increase by HK$88,000,000 (2019: decrease by
HK$109,000,000 or increase by HK$112,000,000). The
decrease in pre-tax discount rate of 0.5% would result in
reversal of impairment loss of HK$88,000,000 (2019: no
recognition or reversal of impairment loss). The increase
in pre-tax discount rate of 0.5% would result in additional
impairment loss of HK$86,000,000 (2019: impairment loss
of HK$99,000,000).

If the initial selling price is 1% higher or lower, the net
realisable value would increase by HK$89,000,000
or decrease by HK$89,000,000 (2019: increase by
HK$89,000,000 or decrease by HK$89,000,000). The
decrease in initial selling price of 1% would result in
additional impairment loss of HK$89,000,000 (2019:
HK$68,000,000).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the net realisable
value of the properties under development as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation
of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES 22 EWERFR
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
B F T BT T
Trade receivables JE W BR 3K 6,548 50
Less: provision for ECLs JR - TEEME B R (1,301) —
5,247 50

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, trade receivables
represent rental receivables for which no credit terms have
been granted. The aging analysis of trade receivables,
net of provision and based on the date of invoices at 31
December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

R 20204F & 2019412 5318 + &
W BR X A I 9% (= B B A9 e IR
& o 20204 K 20194F 12 A31 H
LEERHAENINGEBEEAE
IR SRER R AT QAT

2020 2019
2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

0-30 days 0-30 8 2,231 50
31-60 days 31-60 B 2,216 —
61-90 days 61-90 B 467 —
Over 90 days B 90 H 333 —
5,247 50

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits attributed to customers
and credit term granted to customers are reviewed
regularly. The majority of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have no history of defaulting
on repayments.

EMEMHELA  AKREEFM
BEEPHERERYIRERFE
EERRE - BEREFPHNERR
BEhkAEPEONEEHRSEEH
EITIRE - KEBD KRB B RIRE
) 8 LT AR R B KR RO TR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

23

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables and measures the lifetime ECL on each debtor
individually.

As at 31 December 2020, except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances, which are assessed for
impairment individually and HK$1,301,000 ECL (2019:
nil) was provided, the management of the Group have
assessed the ECL of the remaining trade receivables as
insignificant and therefore it did not result in an impairment
allowance for the remaining trade receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the fair value of the trade receivables.

The Group does not hold any collateral securities.

CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

22 FEWIRR (&)

AEEEATBYHERE LD E IR
BT ERREREL B
HMERKERERFEREDRE
ARL UBYAESEBANT
BRMEREREBX -

2020512 A31H > BRIBIL AT
RMENEERNNKREELEHNER
ARBFIREHERBABESE
1,301,000 7C(2019 4F : 4 ) 4h - K
SENETEEDKESBERERY
TEHERBAFHAIEER  FAlt
I R FhE SR FE R SRR R E K -

RABZEBRNEAEERARAE
WERRE A BIE -

AR B ESF A TS o

23 BEREBITER

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BB FT

Cash at banks and on hand RITERNFERS 35,235 70,401
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 35,235 70,401
Restricted cash (Notes (a) and (b)) Z PR HIER < (M7 (a) & (b)) 118,354 117,889
Cash and bank deposits B& KIBITER 153,589 188,290




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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23 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had the following restricted
bank deposits:

(@)

As at 31 December 2020, a bank deposit of HK$82,000
(2019: HK$59,000) was held in escrow in a licensed bank for
the settlement of any construction obligation of a subsidiary
of the Company to a general constructor of the property
development project in Los Angeles, the U.S.. The escrow
arrangement is required pursuant to an escrow agreement
entered into between the licensed bank, the general
constructor and the subsidiary until the Group obtained
construction financing or committed to have fund and equity
sufficient to pay the remaining payment obligation to work.

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of HK$118,272,000
(2019: HK$117,830,000) were secured for guarantees
provided by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries in
favour of the licensed banks for certain banking facilities
granted to the Group (Note 31).

Bank balances of HK$48,406,000 (2019: HK$24,909,000)
are denominated in RMB and are placed with banks in
the PRC. The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is
subject to exchange control restrictions imposed by the
PRC government. The remaining bank balances are mainly
denominated in HK$ or US$.

23 BERBITER(E)

i

MR20206F12 8310 A&EEAH NI F
PREIERITIF IR ¢

@)

M2020412 A31 H - 7 #:82,000
JL(20194F : 7 #59,0007T ) K iR
TEFATESNAFRETH
B ABEARAT BB QT Y
EBIS Y £ R IR N EEGE
BEEMEAREAE - TELH
TR B RIS AR T © AR AR
PEAENGIH SRR 10k
e AEAEERSEERE
RETEBSES RBRAR AL

TIRNZREBAL -
N2020F12A31H > & &
118,272,000 7L (20194 : /& ¥

117,830,000 7T ) K #8177 ;X E. 5t
AARREEFHE QR RS
TTIREMERIEIEE - LLERET
BPAREENIRITRYE (HIsE31) o

7 5 48,406,000 7T (20194 « /& #&
24,909,000 7T ) KSR TTAE SR LA A R B

FHEREFERRNFBEARTT -

# 5% &

& [ o B 50k B B E
HIMIRIE o BT RITEBREBINE
TR E -
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24 DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2020, details of the Group’s deposits
received, other payables and accruals are set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

24 EliRE - Ht BN RKIE
K FEETIEE

MR2020F12 A31H REEHD
Wiz - EMENFIEREIEE
FBEIWT

2020 2019
2020 2019 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Rental deposits received BlHEERS 32,160 29,070
Amounts due to related parties FE{S RA S 75 3R
(Note 33(g)) (Pff 5 33(g)) 22,386 21,279
Interest payable to a fellow subsidiary R —ERREMBAER
(Note 33(g)) #18.(FI5F 33(g)) 4,678 1,113
Other taxes payable H b R IE 217,881 341,797
Provisions, payables and accruals in TN ER B BB AT S Hh EE B
respect of the Group’s real estate RIEB MBS - EAHIE
development project in Los Angeles, the MERTIE B (M5 32)
U.S. (Note 32) 1,239,014 1,059,154
Payables and accruals for construction ENJE 2 ERRIE B #a&
costs of power plants projects in S B JE A< 3R 08 K AT
Indonesia HHE 153,893 154,591
Other interest payable for borrowings from B85 =T HE & E M jE
third parties RFLE 150,689 34,931
Accrued loan fee EAHERER 55,581 50,932
Others Hth 146,430 119,705
2,022,712 1,812,572

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable within 12 months from the end of the

reporting period.
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (ASSETS)/
LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority.

(@ The net movement in the deferred income tax (assets)/

25 EEMEH(EE) AafE

B A A AR LR BI TR
HRBMEHREELERDABH A
& - BIRIEFRSHS N R — B B e
B REMSHEENMAESEAY
B

@ ELAEHCAR) BEFE

liabilities is as follows:

AT -

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

At 1 January »1A1H 263,539 258,754

Exchange translation differences PE 5 =% 18,380 (6,594)

Charge to income statement (Note 9) AU SRR (FIFE9)

— (Credit)/charge for the year — FRER), X H (11,474) 7,055
— Write-off of deferred income tax — WHEBELEFBREE

assets — 4,324

At 31 December ®w12A31H 270,445 263,539

(o) Deferred income tax comprises: (o) ELEFFSMEE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BB FoT

Deferred income tax assets EESMEE (32,156) (11,995)

Deferred income tax liabilities SR EaE 302,601 275,534

At 31 December »12 A31H 270,445 263,539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (ASSETS)/
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

() The movement in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

25 iﬁé%ﬁﬁ?%ﬁ(ﬁé)/ﬁﬁ

()

BEFSREERABRER
R B (Rt RSN R B

BEERAMMERR) AT

Changes in

Accelerated  fair value of Other

Tax tax  investment  temporary
losses depreciation  properties differences Total

MEHE MER HthER
HERE & 28 5 gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT AR BEFT BET BRI
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A 1H (17,399) 148,601 113,343 18,994 263,539
Exchange translation differences ERER 94 8,855 4,516 4,915 18,380

(Credit)/charge to Income statement (I AM&ER)/ WhsERIR
— Charge for the year — R (21,674) 7,950 - 2,050 (11,474)
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12A31H (38,979) 165,406 117,859 26,159 270,445
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H (17,357) 142,738 115,921 17,452 258,754
Exchange translation differences EXEE 100 (2,153) (2,578) (1,963) (6,594)
(Creditl/charge to income statement (AR / MhaEk

— Charge for the year — R (4,466) 8,016 - 3505 7,085
— Write-off of deferred income tax assets ~ — M EERHEHEE 4,324 - - - 4,324
At 31 December 2019 R2019E12 4316 (17,399) 148,601 113,343 18,994 263,639
(d) The investment properties are held within a business d BEDEUEERLES M

model with the objective to substantially realise all
of the economic benefits embodied in the properties
over time, rather than through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (ASSETS)/
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(e

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses carried forward to the extent it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on
all available evidence. The Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative unused
tax losses of approximately HK$549,729,000 (2019:
HK$461,072,000). The tax losses can be carried
forward indefinitely, except for Indonesian tax
losses of approximately HK$134,568,000 (2019:
HK$107,602,000) which can be carried forward for 25
years and will expire in the following years:

25 @%Fﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁé)/ﬁﬁ
&

)

ERFBRAIBER  MERK
B e BS R FE M oA
RS REAMRIERSE - 8l
HEERPATEBEERE
EFSTHEE - NEBWHESE
RHARBABEEBOLEE
549,729,000 7T (20194 « A
461,072,000 7T ) fE 52 IE & ¢
BEE - -HEEETERRALS
& HE 497 #1384,568,000 7T
(20194 : ¥ 107,602,0007T )
WENEFIBEEIBET&EHES
F o WERATFEE G

2020 2019
2020 & 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

2039 2039 F 597 597
2041 20414 352 352
2042 2042 & 5,382 5,382
2043 2043 68,248 68,248
2044 2044 F 33,023 33,023
2045 2045 26,966 —
134,568 107,602
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 A
Number of
shares Amount
RAEHE ¢
HK$’000
BT
Authorised ordinary shares of SBREEEL01TH
HK$0.1 each: EEE B
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, 201951818 20195
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 12H31H 20201818
% 2020%F12H831H 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREC
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R2019F1 810 20195
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 12H31H 202061 81H
% 202012831 H 16,142,653,060 1,614,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B H AR MY ()

27 BORROWINGS 27 BE
The analysis of borrowings is as follows: BEITWET :
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Bank loans, secured (Note (a)) RITER - BEM(ME (@) 963,096 —
Other loans from third parties, REF=ZFMEMER -
secured (Note (b)) AR (HIEE (o)) 4,586,683 4,493,204
Other loans from a fellow subsidiary, ke —ERRMB AR
unsecured (Note (c)) HEER - EIER (I (c) 479,807 294,454
Convertible notes (Note (d)) AT AR R (I () 561,317 575,407
Total borrowings EEEBE 6,590,903 5,363,065
Current portion RENER D (5,575,632) (1,609,932)
Non-current portion IEREEE D 1,015,271 3,753,133
Carrying amounts repayable: AEERE R
— On demand and within one year — BRERE—FK
(Note (e)) (PB5E(e)) 5,575,632 1,609,932
— Within a period of more than one year — ZR—FE T BBMEL
but not exceeding two years HARA 302,351 1,851,367
— Within a period of more than two years — ZRMEETBBREN
but not exceeding five years HAF A 712,920 1,901,766
6,590,903 5,363,065
Less: Amounts due within one year shown & - —E R E| Bzt ARE B E
under current liabilities oot (5,575,632) (1,609,932)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities Et AERBI B B 1,015,271 3,753,133

FZERAERAT 2020 £k



262

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

27 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank loans were
secured by assets amounting to HK$3,315,000 (2019: nil),
a guarantee (equivalent to the outstanding loan amount and
interests) to a bank provided by an intermediate holding
company of the Company and certain savings and respective
interests (equivalent to the outstanding loan amount or more)
in banks procured by an intermediate holding company of
the Company.

The bank loans are denominated in US$ or RMB and bear
interest at fixed rates or London Interbank Offering Rate plus
a specific margin.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s other loans
from third parties were secured by assets amounting
to HK$21,472,750,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$20,944,512,000), issued capital of certain subsidiaries
of the Company and guarantees provided by the Company,
certain of its subsidiaries and an intermediate holding
company of the Company.

A keepwell agreement was entered into among an
intermediate holding company of the Company, the
lender and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as borrower in respect of a loan with carrying
amount of HK$1,146,239,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$1,080,153,000), pursuant to which, the facility
agreement will be cancelled and all outstanding amounts
(including principal and interest) due and owing by the
borrowing subsidiary to the lender under the facility
agreement shall become immediately due and payable
upon the controlling shareholders of the Company ceasing
to control at least 51% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

The other loans are denominated in US$ and bear interest at
fixed rates or London Interbank Offering Rate plus a specific
margin.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s loans from
a fellow subsidiary were unsecured.

A keepwell agreement was executed by an intermediate
holding company of the Company to provide comfort to the
lending fellow subsidiary in respect of a loan from the fellow
subsidiary with carrying amount of HK$279,864,000 that the
Company shall be in sound financial condition to meet all
liabilities and perform all obligations.

The loans are denominated in HK$ and bear interest at fixed
rates.
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27 BE(#H)

P& -

MR20205E12 A318 & &
7 §R 17 B 3 /B /8 # 3,315,000 7
(2019F : EB)MEE - AR5l —
R P RIE R A Bl AR TIR (LA B (R
(EBEENHRERESBERTE)
LA B2 AR A &) — 8] P S 2 R A A R
FRRITRNE TERRMEBEFE
(SBBENSEREREREH)
YEIE I -

FZEIRITEFURTTRAREHE
2 B TE ) & S BURTT R 37 8
MERERES -

M2020F 12 A31H & &
REEZHFWEMETRAEE
21,472,750,000 7t (2019 4F 12 A
31 H : &% 20,944,512,000 7T ) £
BE - ARARETHEBARME S
TRAARARART - EAETHEBEA
Al R AR A —FE R AR A R PR
A BRI -

AREl—EHRBEZERAR - BR
ARAKANG]—H2ENB AR E
BEFANIE—LERESHEABE
1,146,239,000 7t (20194 12 A
31H : 7 #1,080,153,0007T ) &)
BRI T HE - Bt B4R
AERR IR R NI A QR BT
BAZEL51% BEHEBSE
BE -+ e fE AT B A BRI Al
ERpEEN RERERANAE X
BEFBE(REARS LA B) G
BIE KRBT AT o

HoAth B R IA S TT AT B X 4% [ 7 1) 3
KB FRITREFEN L ESE

FTR e

P 20204F ] 20194 12 431 H - &
SEKE —RRRMEARHER
AR o

AAE—FEREERARE S LM
i REBBEREDERNE
AWB AR ERRK B AR
—SEHESE B 279,864,000
MEFIREADRAABR T
BN BT EET RS
TEHERL o

BB HE X IR (B E F R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

27 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)  The Company issued 5-year 6% convertible notes with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$600,000,000 at the face
value on 27 December 2018 and convertible notes were
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

on 28 December 2018.

The convertible notes are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Each bond will at the option of the holder be convertible
(unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled) into fully paid ordinary shares with a par value
of HK$0.01 each in the issued and paid up capital of the
Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.71 per
share subject to adjustment for, amongst other things,
consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares,
capitalization of profits or reserve, distribution, right issues,
issues at less than current market price, modification of
rights of conversion, other offers to shareholders and other
events which have a dilutive effect on the issued share

capital of the Company.

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled, the convertible notes will be redeemed on
the maturity date at 100% of the principal amount. The
Company has an early redemption option on 27 December
2021 to redeem in whole, but not in part, the convertible
notes for the time being outstanding at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the convertible
notes together with interest accrued to (but excluding) the
date fixed for redemption. The holders also have an early
redemption option to require the Company to redeem all
or some convertible notes on 27 December 2021 at 100%
of the principal amount in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the subscription agreement. Therefore, in
determining the fair value of the liability host of the debt at
initial recognition of the convertible notes, the maturity date
is considered to be 27 December 2021 since contractual
cash flow for the principal is unavoidable if the note holders
choose to exercise the option to require the Company to
redeem the convertible notes. The interest is payable semi-

annually 27 June and 27 December.

The convertible notes are separated into two components,
equity conversion component and liability component. The
liability component is carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method until distinguished on conversion.
The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial

recognition is 8.2% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, HK$26,500,000

of the face value was repurchased and cancelled.

27 & ()

MisE - (4)

(d)

MR2018F 12 A 27 B » AR AIRME
B 817 R & #8587 15 600,000,000
TTHSFE 6% Al =ik - ok
A Z 45 R 20184 12 A 28 BAEFTHN
WEHFRGMBRAR LT °

AR EEAEERTE - ZEREFE
ANBERBERVNSBBRESRKRS
071 BT —HEEBRIEER
gD - S iEmWiEE)E
BBAN R B BT AR BRI
FEREEEEIOI THNEHR
R R E AL - MR E A B (E
REE)RGE M RESXEFTD
BORFSKEHERE - 2K - #
B RIER B RIS ERET - &
PRERE - MR EREEMEL R
HARARBERHITRAES#HETE
I E b BIEEITHE -

BIEERICHER - sk BE 3 i
e BRAIATREZEBNESA
BARSELEN100%EE - AQ A
AR 2021412 A27H L AE R
AEBEEEREARS S EI100% (8
RAEZ({BTEE)FTEER B &
A E)MEREREED 2
B0 FEEL D E R Mk A A iR
BEE - FBHEANGRERAA
A R2021F12 A27H IR ER B
BENGERLEHERSSEN
100% §2 5 & [2] 2 26 3k 26 9 m] 2 A%
ZE AN NETEKAETE
RAAER AT A IR AR EE
B ZIEFEWAR A 2021 12 A 27
H - RAAMEERSEANREETE
BN ESRAQREE A RRE
B BIAREMALNIRE Ry ER R
%o FBEAFGEFR6A2TAR
12 527 B ft -

AR S R EAEKER S - B
W A ARy M B (E A BB
5o BEAKRBORAERNSE
REHERATIER - EENEREH
WAL - BEAKED NYITHER
RHERENES8.2% °

REZE2020F12 A31 BILFE

T {1 7% # 26,500,000 7% E. F %
AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

27 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

27 BE(#H)

MisE - (&)

(Continued) (@ (&)

As at 31 December 2020, the equity conversion and liability R2020F 12 A31 B AR E
components of the convertible notes are presented in the BREDERE A EEKIT SR’

statement of financial position as follows: RREZFFRAT -

Equity

Liability conversion
component component Total
EFEERBD fEmEn AR At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B F T B F T B F T
At 1 January 2020 7R 2020F1 A1 H 575,407 23,121 598,528
Repurchase and cancellation EEARIDS e (25,820) (1,500) (27,320)
Interest charged FBEFFA 11,730 - 11,730
At 31 December 2020 R 2020%F12 A31H 561,317 21,621 582,938
At 1 January 2019 ®20194%1 81H 564,379 23,121 587,500
Interest charged FEFA 11,028 — 11,028
At 31 December 2019 M2019412 A31H 575,407 23,121 598,528
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowed a loan (e) M2020F12A31H AEEE

from a third party financial institution with carrying amount
of HK$1,085,489,000 which has been matured in November
2020 and the corresponding accrued interests amounted to
HK$109,270,000 as at 31 December 2020. Subsequent to
end of the reporting period, the management of the Group
has successfully entered into an amendment agreement
with the lender and pursuant to which the original maturity
date of the loan and its accrued interests has successfully
been extended and amended to November 2021 (“Extended
Loan”). Although the Group had certain borrowings that
had technical non-compliance with covenants as stipulated
in the respective facility agreements before the successful
extension of the Extended Loan, no lenders have requested
immediate repayments of any amounts including interest.
The directors of the Company are confident that the
lenders will not demand immediate repayment of those
borrowings prior to their original maturity dates based on the
successful extension of the Extended Loan. Notwithstanding
this, a non-current borrowing with carrying amount of
HK$1,146,239,000 has been reclassified as current liabilities.

BE—RZEZFSREEEBA—2
BR 1 4 %8 /&75 % 1,085,489,000 7T
FE R HEBE R2020%F11 A 5
85 - M R 2020F 12 A31 B B
FE FE 5T F) B A& 7B ¥ 109,270,000
TL e RIEERE  AEEEREE
ERINEERAT L —HDIETH
B BERRIHAREE
R B BRI R EE] A 2021
FHAERER] - BEASE
EEETHRENERETRRIER
AR M S B E e P PR Ry
R BEERAZRIAMEET
MeBE(REMNE) - ARRESRS
L EREREZFANEE - &
RATERZEEENREIEE A
DR AVEERSEE - A
T4 %8 A7 1,146,239,000 TTHY
FAHEECET D EARDA

f&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 28
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Reconciliation of operating loss to cash used in
operating activities before interest expense, tax paid

(@) KEHRERAMNERAX B
NHREAREEESEGHHES

and changes in working capital: EBAANRS R
2020 2019
2020 % 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT B FT
Operating loss before income tax BRETEB S L BTAE Z 18
expense (932,815) (63,932)
Adjustments for: HE
Interest income R (6,139) (22,164)
Dividend income & 8z (171) (2,404)
Depreciation of properties, plant and M - BEBRRERED
equipment mE 5,946 4,537
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENTE 22,475 21,103
Interest expense MERX 188,496 6,066
Losses/(gains) on disposal of HEWE  BERDED
properties, plant and equipment BB/ (FE 365 (204)
Gain on modification of lease liabilities ZEHERENNE - (336)
Net gains on repurchase and cancellation of — B&[@l & #F 4 Al I Z iR
convertible notes FRF (775) -
Net realised losses on disposal of HESEAREARBERA
non-publicly traded fund investments BRENBEENIELD
classified as financial assets at fair value BEESKRENTER
through profit or loss B8 - 27
Fair value gains on revaluation of financial BRAR BEFABRZD
assets at fair value through profit or loss MBEENDABENSG - (3,270)
Net realised gains on disposal of listed debt HENE AT AHMEE
securities classified as financial assets WEMEBEERN ™
through other comprehensive income BEBBELHNFERNE - (4,128)
Impairment losses on properties under BRPYENRESE
development 617,779 —
ECLs on trade receivables YR TREE RIEX 1,301 -
ECLs on loan and interest receivables [EWE R RF S HTEEE R
PN 9,839 —
(Reversal of ECLs)/ECLs on notes receivable JEUSZ 1% & (B OB HIER
BX)/EHiEREX (431) 431
(94,130) (63,574)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

28 GEREREBRWE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in working capital: (b) HEBESHWE
2020 2019
2020 2019 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Increase in trade and other receivables,  F&UER FUA M B A & Uo7k
deposits and prepayments 18 -~ ke RIERRIEE N 1,582 (8,165)
Increase in properties under BEREAYELN
development (177,105) (399,550)
Decrease in deposits received, BlES - HtbEAFIER
other payables and accruals FEFTTE B R (42,820) (2,197)
(218,343) (409,912)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

(©

Net debt reconciliation:

28 HmEREREBRMEE)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and
the movements in net debt for each of the years

presented.

(©)

Liabilities from financing activities

ERF R AR -

AEHEIE 2N FENER
FROIT RETFRES -

REERMELNEE
Amount
due to an
intermediate Loans  Borrowings  Borrowings
holding ~ fromfellow  repayable repayable Lease
company  subsidiaries within 1year  after 1 year liabilities Total
BEHE AR AR
Eff-B08  AERMN -FhEEN -FREER
BRARNE Ex g &g HERE st
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  BEFT BEFT EEFT BEFrT BRI
Net debt as at 1 January 2020 12020151 RNERFE 6,805,367 294,454 1,315,478 3,758,133 82,831 12,251,263
Cash inflows BERA 1,662,362 184,000 1,024,219 675,660 - 3,546,241
Cash outflows Rt (2,161,297) - (821,248) - (22,138)  (3,004,683)
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JhNEZE (25,465) - (15,350) (468) 292 (40,991)
Other non-cash movements EEReE 208,659 1,353 2446487  (2,266,815) 11,416 491,100
Net debt as at R2020512831 8K
31 December 2020 ExFE 6,579,626 479,807 3,949,586 2,161,510 72401 13,242,930
Net debtas at 1 January 2019, 120191 A 1 BEIERZE
previously reported (M3 2H) 5,194,773 288000 4225893 1,633,570 - 11342,23
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RETEUHRTENZ 6% - - - - 92,083 92,083
Net debt as at 1 January 2019, 1201951 A1 BEIERZE
as restated (mE7) 5,194,773 288,000 4,025,893 1,633,570 92,063 11,434,299
Cash inflows BEMA 3,888,627 8,000 1,085,110 2,388,167 - 7,349,004
Cash outflows Rt (2,562,987) (26291)  (4,543,429) (82,895) (22,134)  (7,287,736)
Foreign exchange adjusiments ~ 4MET% (27,046) (379) (50,889) 4,290) (506) (83,110)
Other non-cash movements EOEEES &) 312,000 25,124 618,793 (181,419) 13,408 787,906
Net debt as at R2019% 12 431 BE)
31 December 2019 Bk E 6,805,367 204450 1315478 3,753,133 82831 12,251,263
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

29 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, capital commitments
contracted but not provided for were as follows:

29

BAESE

R20205F K 2019612 A31H - 2
ATABREERNE A RENT ¢

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
B FT BT T
Properties, plant and equipment WE - s R 1,067,826 1,071,229
Properties under development and BREPMER
investment properties WEME 392,713 2,593,081
Total R 1,460,539 3,664,310
e -
30 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 30 REHELH
The Group as lessor REBEEREEA
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s investment M 20204 K 2019 12 H31H * &
properties are leased to a number of tenants for varying SENEENXDEIRHEALHE
terms. The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease TZ2EMEF - ARERKREMER
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases in BRI EHERN R REL D
respect of investment properties are as follows: SEESRBOT -
2020 2019
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBETFT B FoT
Not later than one year TER—F 118,479 90,081
Later than one year and not later than five ER—EETNENRTESF
years 297,593 261,641
Later than five years BRRF 94,336 111,524
510,408 463,246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fnE B 3 R AR B R (AR

31 PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31 EEEH

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain assets of the R 2020 F & 2019F 12 A81H * &
Group were pledged to secure borrowings of the Group as EBETEECEHEARTAE

follows: EMEENERRDOT :
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Pledged bank deposits (Note 23(b)) B RRITIE R (M 5E23(b)) 118,272 117,830
Properties under development BREPYE 15,829,178 15,690,742
Properties, plant and equipment L YL 14,449 6,668
Right-of-use assets HREEE 5,427 2,150
Investment properties WEYHE 5,508,739 5,127,122

21,476,065 20,944,512

Save as the pledged assets disclosed above, the issued BREXHBENEEREEN B
shares of 20 (2019: 20) subsidiaries (Note 34) of the 202012 A381H + & A "A20fH
Company were also pledged to secure borrowings of the (20194 : 20f@) M~ & (FI5E34)
Group as at 31 December 2020. MEZEHTRHOITELEHRIEAR TR

KENEENER -
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32 PROVISIONS, LITIGATIONS AND

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were disputes between the Group and certain
contractors relating to the Group’s real estate development
project in Los Angeles, the U.S..

On 31 January 2019 (Los Angeles (“LA”), the U.S. time),
a subcontractor (the “Subcontractor”) of the Group’s real
estate project in LA (the “LA Project”), sued Oceanwide
Plaza LLC (“Oceanwide Plaza”), the LA Project subsidiary
of the Company, the general contractor (the “General
Contractor”) of the LA Project and a lender of Oceanwide
Plaza in LA County Superior Court (the “Court”) to foreclose
on a mechanic’s lien (the “First Lien”) for approximately
US$52.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$410.1
million) recorded on the LA Project’s title.

On 19 February 2019 (LA time), the Subcontractor recorded
an amended lien, the second lien, for approximately
US$49.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$383.0
million) and released the First Lien, but did not amend its
complaint.

On 26 March 2019 (LA time), the Subcontractor recorded
a new lien (the “Third Lien”) for approximately US$60.3
million (equivalent to approximately HK$467.5 million) and
filed a first amended complaint to sue for this new amount.
Oceanwide Plaza received the Third Lien on 2 April 2019
(LA time).

Oceanwide Plaza and the General Contractor filed motions
to force the Subcontractor’s lawsuit into arbitration, which
the Court denied, and which Oceanwide Plaza and the
General Contractor have appealed. The appeal is pending.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

32 BiE SFRARIEEE
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32 PROVISIONS, LITIGATIONS AND

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Oceanwide Plaza is, on the one hand, preparing a
vigorous defense and reserving all rights under the law
while on the other hand, exploring the opportunity to
negotiate a settlement with the Subcontractor to resolve
the dispute. Sufficient provision has been made in relation
to the aforesaid case after the assessment made by the
management.

Apart from the aforesaid case, as of 31 December
2020, 36 contractors had recorded mechanic’s liens
for approximately US$364.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,824.3 million) in total. 30 of the
foregoing 36 contractors who had recorded mechanic’s
liens, alongside another contractor who had released its lien
but not yet dismissed its lawsuit, were suing Oceanwide
Plaza to foreclose on their mechanic’s liens for an
aggregate claim amount of approximately US$348.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,699.5 million). Both of
these amounts, however, include the General Contractor’s
lien of approximately US$218.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,696.3 million).

Of the 31 contractors suing Oceanwide Plaza:

(i) 29 have indicated they prefer to settle their
outstanding payments and continue with the LA
Project rather than litigate, representing an aggregate
claim amount of approximately US$339.8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,634.3 million);

(i) 1, as a subcontractor of the Subcontractor,
claimed approximately US$8.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$64.3 million) for work done, and
its lawsuit, to which Oceanwide Plaza had not had to
respond, is largely controlled by what happens in the
Subcontractor’s lawsuit; and

(i) as already indicated above, 1 released its lien
for approximately US$62,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.5 million) in 2020 but had not yet
dismissed its lawsuit by the end of the year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

32 BB FREIABEAE
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32 PROVISIONS, LITIGATIONS AND

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Also, as of 31 December 2020, of the 36 contractors that
had recorded mechanic’s liens, 6 had not sued to foreclose
on their liens.

In addition, an Oceanwide Plaza vendor sued in 2020 for
an alleged unpaid balance of approximately US$93,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.7 million). It does not
have mechanic’s lien rights.

Oceanwide Plaza’s likely maximum lawsuit liability
consists of (i) the General Contractor’s lien foreclosure
lawsuit of approximately US$218.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,696.3 million), (i) a lien foreclosure
lawsuit by a direct contractor for approximately US$0.9
million (equivalent to approximately HK$7.0 million), (iii)
a lien foreclosure lawsuit by a potential direct contractor
(contract still under negotiation) for approximately
US$0.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.9
million), and (iv) the vendor’s lawsuit for approximately
US$93,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$0.7 million),
totalling approximately US$220.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,707.9 million).

On 5 March 2020 (LA time), the Company and the General
Contractor entered into a parent company guarantee (the
“Parent Guarantee”) to, among other things, guarantee
a payment obligation owed to the General Contractor
by Oceanwide Plaza. The Parent Guarantee provides if
Oceanwide Plaza does not meet this obligation: (i) the
General Contractor can force the Company to arbitrate
this issue in Los Angeles under the Fast Track Rules of
the American Arbitration Association (the “AAA”), (i) the
Company waives all defenses, and (i) the arbitrator will
issue an award on only the issue of if Oceanwide Plaza
has met this obligation. Oceanwide Plaza did not fully meet
this obligation, leaving a balance owed of US$38,440,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$298.0 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

32 PROVISIONS, LITIGATIONS AND N2 BE - FRARIBEAEE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

On 12 October 2020 (LA time), the General Contractor
informed the Company that it had demanded arbitration
with the AAA under the Parent Guarantee for an award of
US$38,440,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$298.0
million) plus attorneys’ fees, costs, and interest. California
law requires a contractor prove it has always been licensed
when attempting to collect payment. The Company
attempted to present evidence that the General Contractor
was not licensed, but the arbitrator refused to consider this
issue and awarded the General Contractor US$38,440,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$298.0 million) plus
attorneys’ fees, costs, and 10% interest on 24 November
2020 (LA time).

On 24 November 2020 (LA time), the General Contractor
filed in federal court in Los Angeles to confirm the award,
and on 10 December 2020 (LA time), the Company filed
a motion to vacate the award. Hearing is set for 3 May
2021 (LA time). The federal court will likely either send
the parties back to arbitration or confirm the award. If the
award is confirmed, the General Contractor will attempt to
enforce the award in Hong Kong, so in 2020, the Company
engaged lawyers in Hong Kong to prepare a defense.

The US$38,440,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$298.0
million) is payment for amounts included in the General
Contractor’s lien so this does not represent an increase
in Oceanwide Plaza’s aggregate liability. In 2020, the
Company made continuous efforts to secure funding
to settle and pay the claims of the General Contractor,
subcontractors, and direct contractors, which would also
satisfy Oceanwide Plaza’s obligation under the Parent
Guarantee.
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32 PROVISIONS, LITIGATIONS AND

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

For more information about the Parent Guarantee and
the legal proceeding in relation thereto, please refer to
the Company’s announcements dated 6 March 2020, 25
September 2020 and 16 October 2020, as well as Note
38(a) to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

The directors of the Company are of the view that
the Company had no contractual relationship with the
Subcontractor. Under California law, however, a contractor
is entitled to include within its mechanic’s liens amounts
that are owed to subcontractors to whom the contractor
owes payment, while not required to show proof when
recording such lien.

These claims are under examination by management of
the Company and, based on the available information, the
management of the Company estimates the outcome of the
expenditures and liens, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the expenditures and liens and
recognises payables and accruals for variation orders and
damages according to contractual terms entered with the
subcontractors, if appropriate.

Since the outcome of legal proceedings is inherently
uncertain, contingent liabilities have therefore been
disclosed for those litigation and claims that can be
assessed and for which the chance of success was
deemed not implausible. It is too early to estimate how
likely their prospects of success will be. As stipulated in
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent, in order not to prejudice the
outcomes of the proceedings and the interests of the
Group, we have not made any further disclosures about
estimates in connection with the financial effects of, and
disclosures about, uncertainty regarding the timing or
amount of contingent liabilities in connection with the
litigation and claims.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

32 BB FREIABAE

(%)

BB RARERREREBERFAN
HIE  m2BEARABHS A A
20203 H6H 202069 H25H
M2020F 10 A16 B M A% - UK
REREMERE T B REZME38()

ARREERR AREENEHE
WEAWBE - AT - REMA R
ERMZER  AEEEENEMET
BERABAEABBRNSBEH
Rk MEBEARCTHEHEBERR
HRARER -

ARAERELEEREHRR M
ARAEEBERERBEHAXLRE
EEORARNTEENEER  ERX
AREMBXH B ERNE
R WREEDBER LA D IF
RERBERRNETHENEN
IR K ERTIRE (WER) °

HRZEZEFHNEREAE LT
EMERAFEREABET
ERFARBEENKBEAEED
FE -REBRBGEABEES 2
BEe HMBEB G LR FEI7H
BE - AEBEEERIBEERR
T ABRTEBELEZEFNE

EAEENFZ  KMLESEA
FARBRNV B EMHRAE
BEMENK SN NEE S ED
FAa3— TR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

32 PROVISIONS, LITIGATIONS AND N2 BE - FRARIBEAEE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions represent the management’s best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the obligations, after
consultation with the technical experts, internal and external
legal counsels on the possible outcome and liability of
the Group would then be recognised, if appropriate. The
directors of the Company are of the view that the claims
made by the counterparties are over-assessed and, as
at 31 December 2020, based on the best estimate, an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,239,014,000
(2019: HK$1,059,154,000) (Note 24) has been accrued
for the expenditures and liens matters in respect of the
Group’s real estate development project in Los Angeles,
the U.S..

As disclosed in Note 17, on 2 September 2020, the
Group has entered into a loan financing term sheet
together with subsequent amendments to the term sheet
with a third party for a loan of approximately US$900.0
million (equivalent to HK$6,977.3 million) for financing the
completion of the Group’s real estate development project
in Los Angeles, U.S. and paying off all current debts to the
creditors for the project, including the contractors. The
directors of the Company are of the view that, subsequent
to the payment to the contractors, the Group would
settle the disputes with them and it is expected that such
disputes are not expected to have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

33 EXMABALERS

TRANSACTIONS

The directors of the Company consider the ultimate holding RRAREEFRE  ARAAWRKE
company of the Company to be Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd*, R AR AREBIERARAR %A
a company incorporated in the PRC, which is ultimately AR B - WHEERL

controlled by Mr. Lu Zhigiang.

BRI -

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial ARG ETERREMEHTHEE
statements, the following significant transactions were EO o FANCEEE HETATE
carried out with related parties during the year in the ARG ZERGTTRETELER
normal course of business at terms determined and agreed RBAEISFEFEE LB ENKR
by both parties: T

(a) Sales (a) $HE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
B FT B F T
() Rental income from fellow (i) AR EH B A R UMELR
subsidiaries el
(1) Oceanwide Power Holdings Co., (1) ZBEZER
Ltd.* BRAA 26 27
(2) Tohigh Property Investment (2 MEEXKEER
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Tohigh BRAT
Property”) (IBBEx]) 3,805 903
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

33 EXEBLTXRZ (&)

(b) Purchases (b) B
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
() Rental expenses charged by fellow (i) [FZEHMEB R FUEEY
subsidiaries Mefx
— Tonghai International Group — XERBREEREEER
(USA) Co. Ltd (“Tonghai Group R~ ([EERS
USA”, formerly known as China £E | AIEPEDZ
Oceanwide USA Holdings BEBRIERARA
Co. Ltd) (Note) al*) (M3E) 357 296
(i) Purchase of insurance services from (i) B — R & B Q7R
a fellow subsidiary IR RS
— Asia-Pacific Property & Casualty — DAMERBRER
Insurance Co., Ltd. (“API”) AR EARERR ) 2,135 2,037
(ili) Acquisition of right-of-use assets (il) WEEF REEE
— Tonghai Group USA — EFREEE 2,964 2,946
Note: The amount represented variable lease payments that B i & BIE T8kt R

do not depend on an index or a rate are not included

in the measurement of lease liabilities.

ST EREEENR - £5t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

33 EXEBLTXRS (&)

(c) Interest income F B W=
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
(i) Interest income from GSG (i) " GSGHE I F] Mz
(Note 20) (F3E20) - 11,092
(d) Finance costs
b & B A<
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT B F T
(i) Interest expense charged by an () —MEEERAER
intermediate holding company I ER A ) 2 5
— China Oceanwide Group Limited — FZERBEBRAF
(“COG") (Note 10) (TFz&E])
(Mf5E10) 298,660 312,000
(i) Interest expense charged by a fellow (i) —EIEZKHE R T
subsidiary B R FI B S
— China Tonghai Finance Limited — R BBV BER
(“China Tonghai Finance”) ~al ([ R EEE R
(Note 10) % 1) (M$3E10) 54,731 25,124
(iii) Interests of lease liabilities from a (i) kB —FERZRMEB AR
fellow subsidiary MNEEBENE
(1) PT China Oceanwide Indonesia (1) PT China Oceanwide
(“PTCOI") (Note) Indonesia
(TPTCOI) (P &E) 1,413 1,835
(2) Tonghai Group USA (Note) (2) EEBFEE (KI) 93 92

COG is an intermediate holding company of the
Company and is also a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Oceanwide Holdings,

Note: The fixed lease payments from PTCOI and Tonghai
Group USA are capitalised as lease liabilities while the
variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(e)

Construction cost paid to a non-controlling

shareholder of subsidiaries, SEPC and its
subsidiary PT.SEPC

(i)

SEPC and its subsidiary PT.SEPC are
engaged on a fixed lump sum contract
of US$431,930,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,348,581,000) for the design, engineering,
procurement, construction, commissioning,
testing and completion of, and making good of
defects in relation to two coal fuel steam power
plant facilities with net capacity of 150 megawatt
each in Medan Industrial Area, North Sumatra,
Indonesia.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, nil
(2019: HK$7,788,000) construction costs were
paid and recognised as properties, plant and
equipment and prepayments for the construction
of the power plant facilities.

SEPC is engaged to procure the main equipment
for the construction of the Group’s power plant
facilities in Banyuasin, South Sumatera Province,
Indonesia, for a total cash consideration of
US$39,550,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$306,615,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, nil construction costs were paid and
recognised as prepayments for construction of
power plants.

33 EXEBLTXRZ (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 3B EAEHAXRS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(/) Key management compensation () TEEBAEFHEE
No transactions were made with the directors and FR BRENAQRTEZERS
senior management of the Company during the BEBABNMES(BIEEE
year other than the emoluments paid to them (being BABME)(RHF15HEE)
the key management personnel compensation) as G BB FEITEMAR
disclosed in Note 15. Z °

(g) Year-end balances arising from related party () BHARZELENERES

transactions

2020 2019
2020 F 2019F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT
Amount due to an intermediate holding company & —F5h 2R A F)
(Note (i) (P ()
— C0G —hR&HE 6,579,626 6,805,367
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary JEf — R R B B 5UR
— China Tonghai Finance — REEEA K
¢ Loans from China Tonghai Finance o REFTEIBEHBH
(Note 27(c)) SR (M 27(0) 479,807 294,454
* Interest payables to China Tonghai Finance o BRI BRI A
(Note 24) ME(F 5 24) 4,678 1,113
484,485 295,567
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

33 EXEBLTXRZ (&)

(9) Year-end balances arising from related party () BEAIRBMELENERESS
transactions (Continued) (&)
2020 2019
2020 2019
HK$’°000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT
Amounts due from related parties (Note 20) JE s B 5 3R OE (B 7 20)
— SEPC, a non-controlling shareholder of — SEPC (%8I B A RN
subsidiaries (Note (ii) FEPRRR AR ) (BAFEE (i) 4,088 4,167
— PT. Satya Abadi Semesta, — PT. Satya Abadi Semesta
a non-controlling shareholder of (—ENBLRRIEER
a subsidiary (Note (ii) D ESICEA()) 8,177 8,335
12,265 12,502
Amounts due to related parties (Note 24) FE{ BBRE 5 B (M7 24)
— Oceanwide Property Management Co., Ltd*,  — Z/BW£ERERLF
a fellow subsidiary (Note (ii)) (—FARRWBLR)
GEA0)) (175) (368)
— Oceanwide Center LLC, — R LBERAF
a fellow subsidiary (—MRAZMBAR)
(Note (i) (P2 (i) (18,420) (18,504)
— AP, a fellow subsidiary — TAHR(—BRENE
(Note (ii) ) (3 i) (3,435) (1,994)
— Tonghai Group USA (Note (ii)) — BB B (3 (i) (356) (413)
(22,386) (21,279)
Rental deposits received from fellow subsidiaries AR Z KB A RN EMA SRS
— Oceanwide Power Holdings Co., Ltd.* — ZBENERERRF 10 10
— Tohigh Property —BEEE 1,134 1,066
Construction payable to a non-controlling FERHB AR —BIEERREN
shareholder of subsidiaries (Note (i) FERR FRIE (B 2 (i)
— SEPC — SEPC 153,893 154,591
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 33 EXREHAERS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(9) Year-end balances arising from related party (0) BEAIXRIMELENERESS
transactions (Continued) (&)
2020 2019
2020 F 2019F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BEFT
Interest receivable from a non-controlling KE—RH BN BIHERR R
shareholder of subsidiaries (Note 20(b)) FEU I B (FT5E 20(0))
— SEPC (Note (iv)) - SEPC (P (v)) 3,998 4,115
Loan and interest receivables from a non- RE—LMBREFHERES
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary (Note 20)  FEUE 5 ]2 Kl & (Fft 3 20)
— GSG (Note (iv)) - GSG (7% (iv)) 260,077 271,074
Lease liabilities payable to fellow subsidiaries ENRZNBARMAEEE
(Note 18) (Ff5E18)
— PTCOI - PTCOI 20,578 20,234
— Tonghai Group USA - XEBEEE 3,057 1,517
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(9)

Year-end balances arising from related party

transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the loan agreements and supplementary
agreements entered into between the Group and
COG, the loans were unsecured, interest-bearing at
5% per annum and the maturity date of the loans is
31 December 2022. However, the Group is eligible
to opt for early repayment while COG will not request
for any repayment before the maturity date of the
loan. Further, as at 31 December 2020, COG agreed
to provide available undrawn facilities amounting to
HK$5,824,533,000 to the Group.

On 22 March 2021, the Company obtained an
undertaking letter for provision of financial support
from Oceanwide Holdings, whereby Oceanwide
Holdings agrees to provide sufficient funds to the
Group so that the Group will be able to meet all
financial obligations as they fall due in the coming
twelve months from the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within the next twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amounts approximate
their fair values.

Balance is unsecured and settled based on agreed
credit terms. The carrying amounts approximate their
fair values.

Impairment losses of HK$115,000 (2019: nil) and
HK$16,542,000 (2019: nil) to receivables from SEPC
and GSG, respectively, were recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(h)

Others

(i)

(i)

As at 31 December 2020, an intermediate
holding company of the Company pledged
bank deposits of RMB238,600,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$283,505,000) and its
respective interest income to secure a loan
borrowed by the Company with a carrying
amount of HK$250,176,000 (2019: nil) (Note
27(a)).

As at 31 December 2020, an intermediate
holding company of the Company (i) provided
a guarantee (equivalent to the outstanding
loan amount and interests); and (i) pledged
bank deposits of RMB600,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$712,920,000) and
its respective interest income to a bank to
secure a bank loan borrowed by a subsidiary
of the Company with a carrying amount of
HK$712,920,000 (2019: nil) (Note 27(a)).

As at 31 December 2020, an intermediate
holding company of the Company acted
as guarantor and provided a guarantee
on a loan borrowed by a subsidiary with a
carrying amount of HK$1,034,972,000 (2019:
HK$1,063,034,000) (Note 27(b)).
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& 7 #1,063,034,000
T BB SRR R (P 5E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(h)

Others (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

A keepwell agreement was entered into
among an intermediate holding company of
the Company, the lender and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as borrower in
respect of a loan with carrying amount of
HK$1,146,239,000 (2019: HK$1,080,153,000),
pursuant to which, the facility agreement will be
cancelled and all outstanding amounts (including
principal and interest) due and owing by the
borrowing subsidiary to the lender under the
facility agreement shall become immediately due
and payable upon the controlling shareholders
of the Company ceasing to control at least 51%
of the issued share capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, a keepwell agreement
was executed by an intermediate holding
company of the Company to provide comfort to
the lending fellow subsidiary in respect of a loan
from the fellow subsidiary with carrying amount
of HK$279,864,000 (2019: HK$278,459,000)
that the Company shall be in sound financial
condition to meet all liabilities and perform all
obligations under the loan agreement (Note
27(c)).

As at 31 December 2020, an intermediate
holding company of the Company secured a
bank deposit of US$8,474,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$65,696,000) on behalf of
PT Mabar for a bank guarantee in favour of PT
Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero) (“PLN”), an
Indonesia state owned limited liability company.
The guarantee is required under a power
purchase agreement entered into between PLN
and PT Mabar.

33 EXEBLTXRZ (&)

(h)

(iv)

(vi)

XAoa—BEBFEERR
Al BERXAEKXRQDA — M
2 &M B R AUE BB X
ANB—ZEFEESEABK
1,146,239,000 75 (2019 4F :
7 1,080,153,000 7T ) O B 3X
RN TR Bt EAR
AIERIRER T EESAAFE
BITBRAZED51% g E W%
1&g 1ERE - MIEL B RAM S
NARERE HEEN RER
ERANBREETE(BE
AN R FB) 5N BIH & B T
XA e

M2020F12 A31H + xR A
—APEERAFREH £
A & %8 &% 279,864,000 7T
(20194 : 7 # 278,459,000
TO)RERE L BT HE - "D
EHERMERFARWEB QAR
RRFEEERITFI BN
NEITREXRBZ THRER
FREBEHER(FHE27(C) -

MR2020F12H31H - & A
A—HEAFEZERAREREK
PT Mabar A PT Perusahaan
Listrik Negara (Persero)
([PLN] » —fREIEEIBERA
al) B X AR RIT R
8,474,000 E T (HEE R LB
65,696,000 7T ) #I R 1T 17 3K °
ZIEERIBIE — DA PLNE
PT Mabar 5] 32 #)E /1 5 B &
ZIRTERM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

34 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 34
SUBSIDIARIES

FTEMBRARNFE

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 AT HHNEZEMBE R

are as follows:

AFBMT -

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
iy o
- 4 BERER
MEAR AR AR 3L itk B BRITERFE (%) FEEK
China Oceanwide International British Virgin Islands us$100 100  Holding of debt and equity
Asset Management Limited REERRES 1003 T securities
FZEREEERARAA RAEBBKKREES
China Oceanwide International Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Provision of management
Capital Hong Kong Limited N 710,000 7T services
FZBREAREBERAR REERRY
China Oceanwide Power Co., Hong Kong US$36,555,000 100 Investment holding
Limited EE 36,555,000 % 7T RERK
HEZBENBRAE
China Oceanwide Power British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Investment | Limited RBERRES 50,000 T REER
PRENREE-BRAA
China Oceanwide Power British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Investment IV Limited RBHBRES 50,000 7T REER
RRENREENERATF
China Oceanwide Property British Virgin Islands US$1 (Note a) 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited RBERARES 1% (Hfita) REER

PR ERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

34 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

34 FEWEABARFE(HE)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
XEHE
gE/ BERER
MELE A AR A 3L 3 B ERTERFE (%) ETEBEE
China Oceanwide Property Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 Investment holding
International Development oy (Note (a)) BEER
Limited 7 5,000,000 7T
FZEXBERERARARA (FHEE (@)
China Oceanwide Property Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
Sino Limited B (Note (a)) BEER
RZEETERRAR 71,000,000 7T
(Pf5E (@)
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development Holdings Limited XE#BARES (Note (a)) KEER
PR EHEREERAR AR 50,000 % 7T
(P 3£ (a))
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development | Limited RBEARES 50,000 7T REER
PREMEREE—BRAAF
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100  Investment holding
Development Il Limited REERRHES (Note (a)) HEER
hZEHEREE _BRAR 50,000 % 7T
(FI5E ()
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands ~ US$311,121,866 100 Investment holding

Development Il Limited
RzEEREE=FRAA

EBERARES

(Note (a))
311,121,866 £ 7T,
(K3 @)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

34 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

34 FEHEABRIFFE(E)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
iy |
- 4 BERES
MELE A A L B ERTELRFE (%) ETEBER
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development IV Limited REHERRES (Note (a)) RERER
PREHEREFENERAF 50,0003 7T
(P (@)
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development V Limited RBERRES (Note (a)) BEER
PZEMEREEIRRAA 50,000 % 7T
GEAE)
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development VI Limited REERRES 50,0003 T BEER
PZEMEREFENERDA
Grand Hover International Hong Kong HK$2 (Note (a)) 100  Property investment
Development Limited 5% B2 7 (MI3E (a)) MERE
BEERERER AT
Jeanwell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 (Note (a)) 100  Property investment
ERERARAA EE B 2T (5 (a) MERE
Oceanwide Investment Two Hungary Paid-in capital of 100  Provision of loan financing
(Hungary) Limited Liability £ 7F Fl US$11,200 to group companies
Company BREXR mEBEARREETAE
RBREE (I BRAE" 11,200 % 7T
Oceanwide Investment Three Hungary Paid-in capital of 100  Provision of loan financing
(Hungary) Limited Liability %) 77 US$11,200 to group companies
Company BRER REBERAIREERHE
R BREE=(RIFF)BRAR" 11,200 %T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

34 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

34 FEWEABARFE(HE)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
AEE
gE/ BERER
MELE A AR A 3L 3 B ERTERFE (%) ETEBEE
Oceanwide Real Estate U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
Development HI Corp. xH US$124,904,914 RERER
ERRCBTHERALEAF)" (Note (a))
BREXR
124,904,914 7T
(F5E (a)
Oceanwide Real Estate Group U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
(USA) Corp. X6 US$914,291,648 REER
wBRREE(EE) RH BRER
ARRATF 914,291,648 7T
Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
International Investment RBERRES 50,000 7T REER
Company Limited
wBREREARRERR AR
Oceanwide Real Estate u.s. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
Investment HI Corp. %E US$218,081,679 REER
ERRZETHERENA (Note (a))
BRrEXR
218,081,679% 7T
(P (a)
Oceanwide Real Estate u.sS. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
Investment NY Corp. %8 US$70,459,346 RERER
BT BB ERE A" (Note (a))
BRER
70,459,346 7T
(P 3% ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

34 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 34 FERBATNFEE)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
r5E
- 4 BERER
MELE A A L B ERTELRFE (%) ETEBER
Oceanwide Real Estate u.sS. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
Management HI Corp. % US$305,159,779 RERER
ERRCBTHESE AR (Note (a))
BREXR
305,159,779 % 1T
(F3E (o)
Oceanwide Center NY LLC U.S. Paid-in capital of 100  Real estate development
Az BHLERRE" XHE US$70,459,346 FEERE
(Note (a))
BRER
70,459,346 7T
(K3 (@)
Oceanwide Plaza LLC U.S. Paid-in capital of 100  Real estate development
ZBESRRRE" E3E] US$914,301,148 FiERRE
BRER
914,301,148 7L
Oceanwide Resort Community u.S. Paid-in capital of 100  Real estate development
HI LLC el US$124,854,914 FEiEER
ZBERRERERARAR" (Note (a))
BRER
124,854,914 %7
(P (a))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

34 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

34 FEWEABARFE(HE)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
XEE
gE/ BERER
MELE AR AR A 3L 4 B ERTERFE (%) ETBEE
Oceanwide Resort HI LLC U.S. Paid-in capital of 100  Real estate development
ZBERREBRNERAR" XHE US$218,081,679 FHEERE
(Note (a))
BREXR
218,081,679% T
(F5E (o)
Oceanwide Resort Paradise U.S. Paid-in capital of 100  Real estate development
HI LLC XE US$305,109,779 FHEER
wBERRERAEERAR" (Note (a))
BRER
305,109,779 £t
(PH7E (a))
PT. Banyuasin Power Energy Indonesia Rupiah 85  Operation of power plant
fje 150,000,000,000 REBER
150,000,000,000
ffeE
PT. Mabar Elektrindo Indonesia Rupiah 60  Operation of power plant
fje 210,000,000,000 RELEM
210,000,000,000
EfeE
Oceanwide Shen Gang Asset PRC (Note (b)) Paid-in capital of 100  Property investment

Operation (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* B (P (b))

wBREEERE(LB)BRAF

US$16,000,000
(Note (a))

BREXR

16,000,000 % 7T
(7% ()

NERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

34 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

34 FEHEABRIFFE(E)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest

Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity

r5E
- 4 BERER

MELE A A AL 2 ERTELRFE (%) ETEBER

Oceanwide Gang Hu Asset PRC (Note (b)) Paid-in capital of 100 Property investment
Operation (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* # B (FzE (b)) US$7,000,000 MERE

BB REERE(LB)BRAR (Note (a))

BREXR
7,000,000 7T
(FfE (@)

Tonghai Properties Corporation  U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Provision of management
(formerly known as China E3E] US$799,975 and administrative
Oceanwide International BRER services
Properties (US) Corp.) 799,975 %7 REEE RITBRE

EEREHREXERERAR"
(RITEHR B SRR B % (XE)
BRAE")
For identification purpose only
Notes:
(@)  The issued shares of the subsidiary of the Company were
pledged to secured borrowings of the Group as at 31

December 2020.

(b) A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

35 ADQAKNMBMRR KRR
w25

(@) ARXTWHBAMRRE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B BT T BB TFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBRARRE 661,035 661,035
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,002 10,012
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUG B 8~ B FUAE 9,995,251 9,374,944
Deposits, prepayments and other &4 ~ FENFIE K
receivables H b fE U k8 2,522 2,522
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 10,660,810 10,048,513
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B8 R R 3R IE 1,186,741 1,942,315
Deposits, prepayments and other &% ~ FENFIE KX
receivables H b jE I 5 IE 1,467 2,041
Restricted cash SERHIRE 135 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRLEEY 13,310 15,733
e ..........120653 1,960,089
Total assets EEHE 11,862,463 12,008,602
EQUITY R
Equity s
Share capital Exm 26 1,614,265 1,614,265
Reserves (& 7,734,963 7,885,870
Total equity R 9,349,228 9,500,135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

(Continued)

35 AL A MBI KRR

wE2E (&)

(a) ADFHHBMR R (E)

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BB F T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to an intermediate JEASE — Rl PP R PR RS
holding company NCIESQ] 1,174,136 1,609,299
Borrowings BE - 575,407
Lease liabilities HEBE - 2,225
o \74136 2,186,931
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals Hoqth B 5RIE R FEET
IEH 45,574 18,605
Lease liabilities HERAE 2,225 8,477
Borrowings BE 1,291,300 294,454
01,839,009 321,536
Total liabilities EEHAE 2,513,235 2,508,467
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEEE 11,862,463 12,008,602

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March

2021 and was signed on its behalf.

HAN Xiaosheng

B4
Chairman

EY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e B R R AR B R (AR

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b)

Reserve of the Company

35 ARQANMBMRR KRR
wE2E(HE)

(b) ARTHREE

(Accumulated
Capital Convertible losses)/
Share  redemption  Contributed  note equity retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
TERZE (2HER)/

RitRE EFRERE  SABH  BERE  REWR it

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000

AT BEFT BEFr B¥TL BETr BEFR

At 1 January 2020 R020E1A1H 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 2,121 (323,806) 7,885,870

Loss for the year ERER - - - - (149,465)  (149,465)
Repurchase and cancellation of BERHETARZE

convertible notes - - - (1,500) - (1,500)

Written back of unclaimed dividends BOREIRE - - - - 58 58

At 31 December 2020 1200F12 /318 8,181,541 3,958 1,456 21,621 (473213 7,734,963

At 1 January 2019, previously reported R019E1 A1E(NEIZR) 8,181,541 3558 1,456 23,121 107589 8,317,265

Adoption of HKFRS 16 RRERIEREENZ 68 - — - - (19 (19

At 1 January 2019, as restated 1201981 F1R(EE5]) 8,181,541 3,558 1456 2,121 107070 8316746

Loss for the year ERER - - - - (430,883) (430,883

Writen back of unclaimed dividends BERERRE - - - - 7 7

At 31 December 2019 R2019E 124318 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 23,121 (323806) 7,885,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B 7 R R B e ()

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Reserve of the Company (Continued)

The application of share premium account is governed
by section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended).

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the consolidated shareholders’
funds of subsidiaries when they were acquired by the
Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s
share capital issued for the acquisition.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

()  the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or

(i)  the realisable value of the company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution to
shareholders of the Company was nil.

35 AL A MBI KRR

wE2E (&)

(b)

DT ()

BhaBEENAEYBERE
(1981 R ADAE)KEIEFT ) F

401RESE o

ARTANBARBAER TR
WAE AR - ZSHEAA
SEEY S E L INSE
BT T RO A E O 2 3 -

RIEBREIBIFEREE)
(&HEFT)  BARGBATE DK
TR o Aifn - REETIIE
NI EEBARBEIRSKK
MR B FIER DR

() 427 B AT R
EEMAEIME S %

iy REIBEEMAEZREERS
E R B E A R B
TR AR R AR 195 (B BR B9 48
e

A2020F K 201912 A31 5 -
AME DR F AR R R A2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr e B R R M e (AR

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of each of the directors and chief
executive of the Company for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 is set out in Note 15(a).

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors of the Company received or will
receive any retirement benefits or termination benefits
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company does not pay consideration to third parties
for making available directors’ service (2019: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entitles with such
directors

As at 31 December 2020, there are no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
controlled entities with such directors (2019: nil).

36 EEREMNEF&E

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ESRRSTHRAEME

RRalsEERERTEAER
R # 220204 % 2019512 A
31 8 Lk F [Z /9 % B &5 T 5
15(a) °

EERKEANRERER

AR QA E =R E E2020
F12 31 8 IEFE W #
WS B A 1] 3R PR 4 1 ok ok B8k AR )
(20194 : &) -

RERHESESRBAFE=FX
FHRE

REZE2020F 12 A31 HIEF
B ARRUERERMKES
R mE =7 AR E2019
Ffm)o

FHUES  SESEHNZE
ErRESFHENEEAR
BANER EERREMX
ZNEHR

PR2020F 12 A31H - # &
B XEFEHNEBRRXE
EEHNERAZEANER -
EEFREHAMZ H R HE(2019
Fom|m) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B AR B (AR

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

37 DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY-OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
that have material non-controlling interests are set out

36 EEEMNKME (&)

() EERXRS ZHASHNE
A

#2020 F K 2019F 12 A31 H
R E E2020F & 20194F 12
A3 AIEEEAEMER - #
BEEARBIMICABAE
EXBARARESHELH
BERERHEAEEANENEKX
R BHFREH -

37 BEREARFERERAFE
2EWB R RS

AARFEEERFEBEDRNIEE
EMBARFERIIMT -

below.
Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights held  Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERERBENRERER PREFERERN
REZELA i/ (B8 R FERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
2020F 20195 2020% 20195 2020 F 20195
% % HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETr BETT Vi a AT
PT. Banyuasin Power Energy 15 15 (809) (1,035) 8,805 11,423
PT. Mabar Elektrindo 40 40 (10,329) (12,815) 390,996 407,999
(11,138) (13,850) 399,801 419,422

Particulars of the above non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company are set out in Note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B R B (AR

38 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group had
the following significant events after the reporting period:

(@ As of the date of this report, excluding the
Subcontractor, 38 contractors have recorded
mechanic’s liens for US$364.5 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,825.8 million) in total, 32 of
the foregoing 38 contractors who have recorded
mechanic’s liens, alongside 2 other contractors who
have released their liens but have not yet dismissed
their lawsuits, are suing Oceanwide Plaza to foreclose
on their mechanic’s liens for an aggregate claim
amount of approximately US$358.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,776.2 million). Both of these
amounts, however, include the General Contractor’s
lien of approximately US$218.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,696.3 million). As at the date
of this report, the remaining 6 contractors have not
sued Oceanwide Plaza to foreclose their liens and
Oceanwide Plaza’s likely maximum lawsuit liability

remains unchanged.

(b) Pursuant to the announcement issued by the Stock
Exchange dated 14 January 2021, shares of Huiyuan
Juice held by the Group during the year were delisted

with effect from 18 January 2021.

() The outburst of COVID-19 has brought additional
uncertainties in the global macroeconomic situation
which may affect the Group’s financial performance.
However, since the outburst is a fluid and challenging
situation facing all the industries globally, the degree
of impact could not be reasonably estimated at this
stage. The Group will closely monitor the development
of the outburst and assess its impact on the financial

position and operating results of the Group.

38 HEHMRKREIR

BRAREEMBOABEES &
SERBEHRBEUATEASE

(@)

RARERH Bzo2eErd
Gh s HEASSEZEABERE T
MILEERE B R3.6451E
EL(HRER Y B 28.25818
JL) o Rl 38 BEBEF 324
REMTEERNABDRE &
ARIMEEHRERERE
8 R $ (5] 5F FA B AR B P IE AR
FeBES WIEEE®RET
BE# PRAZRSEEH
#3.58118 E T FE R 4%
o7 76218 7T) c AT - %M
SRERFERABELBENA
2188 ET(HHE R OB
16.963 B L )M B ERE - B E
AREBE  HApeBEEH
RBEBFZEBESGAILEELR
EE MZEBESNETRS
FARTHTTE -

B I5 7O B A2 BT B4 B B /5 2021
F1A14BMRE  AEBR
FRARFBRERRARG B
Brhg - BH20214F1H18H it
AR o

MEMANEREREHEER
BB KRBT AR E
= SR EARENME
EE A ARRIEFER
B RENMATEAREY
BPEEE BT - F R IR R
ELAREMAFEFERE - K
SEBTVERRBER X
BREEEIRN NE RO E <

BERENTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i E B R R AR B R (AR

39 APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 39 #AESESHMBEHRRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved by HRAEMBHRERER2021F3 A31H
the board of directors of the Company on 31 March 2021. KANRIEESHE -

300 CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFMBEHE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

2020 2019% 2018 2017 % 20165
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
EB¥Tr  ENMTT  BETT  BEFT BRI

Results E3
Revenue WA 99,996 113,027 138,637 142,174 153,390
Operating (loss)/profit wE(BR),/HE (744,319) (47,866) (53,679) 86,556 257,436
Interest expense FERX (188,496) (6,066) - - -
(Loss)/profit before tax BRI (E1E) /FIE (932,815) (53,932) (53,679) 86,556 257,436
Income tax expense FrERi s (4,919) (17,962) (26,243) (17.411) (87,188)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),/FH (937,734) (71,894) (79,922) 69,145 170,248
Attributable to: PAT 1
Shareholders of the Company ARERR (926,596) (58,044) (48,840) 70,422 136,214
Non-controlling interests gD (11,138) (13,850) (31,082) (1,277) 34,034
(937,734) (71,894) (79,922) 69,145 170,248
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets BEBE 25,129,230 24,914,065 24,245635 21,458,109 16,967,177
Total liabilities BELE (15,600,174) (14,361,760) (13,433,195) (10,282,309)  (5,684,470)
Net assets BEEE 9,529,056 10,552,305 10,812,440 11,175,800 11,282,707
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties held by the Group which have
been completed for existing use or under development at 31

December 2020 are as follows:

MN2020FE 12 A31 B AEEFANDE
BRAERTSFAEREBYEERIT

A. Investment Properties A. BEYE
Gross Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type floor area interest
‘BB th B2 HY il EEEE iR
(sa.m)
(FI7K)
Completed
=534
Various units on levels 2, 5-7, 11 & The land use term of the Commercial 10,954 100%
16 and the whole of levels 1, 3-4, property is 50 years ;i (excluding
14-15 & 18-23, and 50 car parking from 19 November car park)
spaces in the basement, Harbour 1992 to 18 November (1=EIHBRIN)
Ring Huang Pu Centre, No. 98 Luhe 2042
Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai, %42 £ {5 PR 4E Hf
China. RAB0F - 11992 F
PE EETmERRINA K98 TEEEE 11 A19 HZE 2042 F
2 5-7 11 R16EZEEA 1 - 11 A18H
3-4 ~ 14-15 X 18-23 12 » LA Kt
TMEEH 50 [EEBAL ©
Various units on levels 9-12 & 18 and  The land use term of Commercial 28,930 100%
the whole of levels 2-4, 5-6, 13-14, the property is A (excluding
17, 23-24, 28-29 & 31-32 and 152 50 years from car park)
car parking spaces in the basement, 1 August 1993 to (1= BIHBRIN)
Harbour Ring Plaza, No. 18 Xizang 31 July 2043
Zhong Road, Huangpu District, ERJE SR dzsh Lot
Shanghai, China. 504 - 1993 4
PR EsTEARARET K 18EMEE 8 H1HE2043F7AH
%5 9-12 R 1818 % [ # L -2-4 -5-6 31H
13-14 - 17 ~ 23-24 ~ 28-29 }2 31-32
B2E - AR TMEEIS 152 #EB] ©
Under development
B
1101 South Flower Street, Freehold land with no Commercial 41,800 100%
Los Angeles, the U.S. expiry date &5 A (exclude
EBUE A 110158 KAZERELT M - BB EIE car park)
(= EI5ERIN)
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES (Continued)

EFEWRENR)

B. Other Properties B. Hfit¥z
Gross Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type floor area interest
H1B B b B2 5 HA il EEER PEih =
(sq.m)
(FFFK)
Completed
=535
Unit 1804, 1806 and 1807 on level 18  The land use term of the Commercial 575 100%
in Harbour Ring Plaza, property is 50 years 75 A
No. 18 Xizang Zhong Road, from 1 August 1993 to
Huangpu District, 31 July 2043
Shanghai, China ERJE -k 9h 2211
f B LT =R R PR P B 18 5% 504 - B11993F
BREREYS 18121804 1806 [ 1807 8A1HZE2043F7A
==4is 31H
C. Properties under development projects C. BRHYXEEB
Expected
completion Gross Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type date floor area interest
BB #h B 5 HEhl EHEIAH EEEE Lz
(sq.m)
(FFF3K)
1101 South Flower Street, Freehold land Commercial/ 2023 96,449 100%
Los Angeles, the U.S. with no expiry Residential 2023 4F (exclude
EENRIZHEIEE 110157 date EmEE car park)
KA R (FEHRIN)
E3IH A
80 South Street, Freehold land Commercial/ Not yet 75,975 100%
New York, the U.S. with no expiry Residential determined
EEMALEE B0 date A EE RE

KAFRELH
E2IH A
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES (Continued)

EFEVREHNR)

Expected
completion Gross Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type date floor area interest
H1B B R H HEhl FEHTE I A EEEE L=
(sq.m)
(FFFK)
Ko Olina Parcels 54B, 54C Freehold land Commercial/ Not yet 92,292 100%
and 55, Honouliuli, with no expiry Residential determined
District of Ewa, City and date A/ EE RIE
County of Honolulu, KAFER LM
State of Hawaii, the U.S. EREAE
EREFERMETLTEER
s R A IUR BRI R i 1R
54B ~ 54C ). 55
Ko Olina Parcels 20/21 Freehold land Commercial/ Not yet 149,412 100%
(lot 4608), 25/26 (lot with no expiry Residential determined
4609) and 19B (lot 5346- date EAEE RIE
B), Honouliuli, District of KAERELHD
Ewa, City and County of fagalpel=
Honolulu, State of Hawaii,
the U.S.
EREFERMNEFLTEHEE
PR AN IR BRI R 1R
20/21 (% 4608 5733k
25/26 (5 4609 SR %) &
19B (5 5346-B SRt )
Parcel Lots 18734, 18733, Freehold land Commercial/ Not yet Not yet 100%
18252 and 18250, Kapolei with no expiry Residential determined determined
Area, Honouliuli, District of ~ date B/ 1EE RIE (Land area:
Ewa, City and County of KA ZERE 14 - 2,045,481)
Honolulu, State of Hawaii, mIHA RIE
the U.S. (e -
EHERBMEFTLTHE 2,045,481)

EEAREERATRID

$18734 - 18733 ~ 18252

1218250
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